Hands-On Microsoft Teams

A practical guide to enhancing enterprise collaboration with Microsoft Teams and Office 365



www.packt.com

João Ferreira

Hands-On Microsoft Teams

A practical guide to enhancing enterprise collaboration with Microsoft Teams and Office 365

João Ferreira



BIRMINGHAM—MUMBAI

Hands-On Microsoft Teams

Copyright © 2020 Packt Publishing

All rights reserved. No part of this book may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted in any form or by any means, without the prior written permission of the publisher, except in the case of brief quotations embedded in critical articles or reviews.

Every effort has been made in the preparation of this book to ensure the accuracy of the information presented. However, the information contained in this book is sold without warranty, either express or implied. Neither the author, nor Packt Publishing or its dealers and distributors, will be held liable for any damages caused or alleged to have been caused directly or indirectly by this book.

Packt Publishing has endeavored to provide trademark information about all of the companies and products mentioned in this book by the appropriate use of capitals. However, Packt Publishing cannot guarantee the accuracy of this information.

Commissioning Editor: Pavan Ramchandani Acquisition Editor: Pavan Ramchandani Senior Editor: Hayden Edwards Content Development Editor: Keagan Carneiro Technical Editor: Deepesh Patel Copy Editor: Safis Editing Project Coordinator: Kinjal Bari Proofreader: Safis Editing Indexer: Tejal Daruwale Soni Production Designer: Alishon Mendonsa

First published: April 2020

Production reference: 1290420

Published by Packt Publishing Ltd. Livery Place 35 Livery Street Birmingham B3 2PB, UK.

ISBN 978-1-83921-398-4

Packt.com

To my mother, Maria José Oliveira, and my father, Carlos Ferreira, for their constant support.

– João Carlos Oliveira Ferreira



Packt.com

Subscribe to our online digital library for full access to over 7,000 books and videos, as well as industry leading tools to help you plan your personal development and advance your career. For more information, please visit our website.

Why subscribe?

- Spend less time learning and more time coding with practical eBooks and videos from over 4,000 industry professionals
- Improve your learning with skill plans designed especially for you
- Get a free eBook or video every month
- Fully searchable for easy access to vital information
- Copy and paste, print, and bookmark content

Did you know that Packt offers eBook versions of every book published, with PDF and ePub files available? You can upgrade to the eBook version at packt.com and, as a print book customer, you are entitled to a discount on the eBook copy. Get in touch with us at customercare@packtpub.com for more details.

At www.packt.com, you can also read a collection of free technical articles, sign up for a range of free newsletters, and receive exclusive discounts and offers on Packt books and eBooks.

Contributors

About the author

João Carlos Oliveira Ferreira is an acclaimed Microsoft MVP, MCP, and MCSA. João has been working with SharePoint for the last 8 years and embraced Microsoft Teams right from day one. João is responsible for the development of several products and is also the manager of several development teams.

When I was a child, I always dreamed of writing a book. Years passed by and this idea was forgotten, until the day Packt reached out to me to write this book.

None of this would have been possible without the support of my family, my girlfriend, and my friends, who gave me confidence and helped me to keep up the writing pace.

Thanks to everyone at Packt who taught me so much about the book-writing process and offered valuable suggestions that ultimately will make you a Microsoft Teams hero.

Lastly, I want to thank the Microsoft community for always being willing to help others.

About the reviewer

Michael LaMontagne is a Microsoft solutions advisor, partner evangelist, and six-time Microsoft MVP for Office Apps and Services. Michael runs the Calgary **Unified Communications (UC)** Users Group and is a member of the O365Eh! podcast.

Michael's focus is bridging professional services, products, and innovation, while working closely with Microsoft's product groups via **Technology Adoption Programs** (**TAPs**) as well as the MVP, DnA, and Elite programs. In his spare time, Michael dabbles in development around Azure services, bots, the Internet of Things, Microsoft Graph, Microsoft Power Automate, and PowerShell, and he is a father of three children under seven.

Packt is searching for authors like you

If you're interested in becoming an author for Packt, please visit authors. packtpub.com and apply today. We have worked with thousands of developers and tech professionals, just like you, to help them share their insight with the global tech community. You can make a general application, apply for a specific hot topic that we are recruiting an author for, or submit your own idea.

Table of Contents

Preface

1 Microsoft Teams Basics

Accessing Microsoft Teams	14
Microsoft Teams plans	14
Microsoft Teams clients	15
Web clients	15
Desktop clients	16
Mobile clients	18
How to sign in to Microsoft	
Teams	19
What does Microsoft Teams	
look like?	21
What is a team?	23

14	Creating a new team	24
14	What happens when I create a team?	30
15	Adding members to the team	31
15 16	What is a channel?	32
10	Creating a new channel	33
10	What happens when I create a channel?	34
19	What is a tab?	35
	Creating a new tab	36
21	Summary	38
<u> </u>		

2

Microsoft Teams' Core Features

Understanding chats and meetings	40
Managing your time using the Microsoft Teams calendar	41
Working faster on Teams with search, filters, and commands	42
Search	42
Filters	44
Commands	46

Customizing Microsoft Teams	48
Where is Microsoft Teams data stored?	53
Summary	54

3 How to Use Microsoft Teams – Chats and Conversation

Understanding the chat feature on Microsoft Teams	56
How to use private chats	57
How to manage contacts	60
How to use the chat application	62
Format	63
Set Delivery Options	63
Attach	64
Emojis	66
Giphy	67
Stickers	68
Schedule a Meeting	68
Messaging Extensions	69
Understanding message options	72
Saving Messages	73
Editing Messages	73

Deleting Messages	74
Mark as Uproad	74
	74
Translate	74
Immersive Reader	74
Reacting to Messages	75
Understanding Chats in the	
context of teams	76
Reply versus typing a new message	77
Making an announcement	78
Targeting a post's replies	80
Posting in multiple channels	80
Muting a thread	81
Mentioning a user, team, or channel	82
Using tags	84
Starting a new channel conversation	
from Outlook	87
Summary	88

4

How to Use Microsoft Teams - Meetings and Live Events

Meetings in Microsoft Teams	90	Audio Conferencing for administrators	125
How to schedule a Microsoft Teams meeting	90	Live events on Microsoft Teams	128
How to customize Microsoft Teams		Live event profiles	129
meeting requests	94	How to create a live event	129
What are the available options during		What are the available options during	
a meeting?	96	a live event?	133
Meeting options	99	Getting live event reports and the	
Meetings on the mobile app	117	recording	138
Managing meetings as an admin	120	Managing live events as an admin	141
		Meetings and live events limitations	143
Audio Conferencing	124	Summary	143

5 Public versus Private – Teams and Channels

Understanding public and private teams	146	Understanding team creation governance	159
Guest users on Microsoft Teams	146	Governance as a global Microsoft	
Understanding standard channels Understanding private channels	149	Teams administrator Governance as a team owner Archiving and deleting teams Deleting channels	160 163 164 169
How to create a private channel The structure and features of private channels Understanding private channel security	150 151 153 / 156	Organizing teams and channels Understanding team and channel limits Summary	170 173 174

6

Extending Microsoft Teams Using Apps

Understanding apps in Microsoft Teams	176	Managing personal apps Personalizing the app bar as an end	192
Installing apps on Microsoft		user	193
Teams	177	Personalizing the app bar as an	
Getting familiar with Microsoft		administrator	195
Teams		Managing the app installation as an	
ann types	179	administrator	197
	175	Managing apps as an administrator	199
Personal apps	180		
Bots	181	Uninstalling apps from	
Tabs	184	Microsoft Teams	203
Connectors	186	Summary	205
Messaging extensions	189	-	

7 Extend Microsoft Teams Using Custom Apps and Microsoft 365

Working with custom apps	208
Enabling custom apps	208
Disabling custom apps	209
Uploading custom apps	211
Installing custom apps	213
Installing custom apps as an	
administrator	216
Blocking Microsoft Teams apps	217
Extending Microsoft Teams	

using SharePoint Using out-of-the-box integrations	219 220
Extending Microsoft Teams using Power Automate	226
Extending Microsoft Teams using PowerApps	231
Summary	235

8

Build Your Own App for Microsoft Teams Using App Studio

Understanding Microsoft		Studio	242
Teams App Studio	238	Using App Studio to integrate	
Getting familiar with Microsoft Teams		SharePoint and Microsoft	
App Studio	238	Teams	251
Building an app using App		Summary	255

9

Building Your Own Bot for Microsoft Teams

Creating a bot using QnA Maker	Using the bot on Microsoft		
Packaging the bot using QnA Maker	267	Teams	279
Creating a bot using Power Virtual Agents	273	Summary	282
Packaging the bot using Power Virtual Agents	277		

10 Microsoft Teams PowerShell – a Tool for Automation

What is PowerShell and how can you use it? How to use PowerShell Installing Microsoft Teams PowerShell What are the available cmdlets in the Microsoft Teams module	284 284 287	What are the available cmdlets in the Skype for Business module? Get cmdlets Grant cmdlets New cmdlets Remove cmdlets	297 298 298 300 301
Connection cmdlets Get cmdlets Set cmdlets New cmdlets Add cmdlets Remove cmdlets	290 291 292 294 295 296	Learning how to use PowerShe from examples Example 1: Victor Example 2: John Example 3: The Funny Company Example 4: Hugh	11 302 302 304 305 306
Installing the Skype for Business PowerShell Module Other Books You May Enj	296 oy	Summary	307
Leave a review - let other		readers know what you think	311

Index

Preface

Microsoft Teams, released in 2017, is a communication platform that evolved from Microsoft's Skype for Business. In a single platform, Teams integrates most of the services included in Microsoft 365 and offers the perfect solution for chat, video calling, and file storage while still providing extensibility endpoints that allow anyone to build business processes and applications inside Microsoft Teams.

Who this book is for

This Microsoft Teams book is for power users and business professionals looking to use Teams to improve collaboration in an enterprise environment. It will also be useful to Office 365 administrators interested in implementing Microsoft Teams effectively by gaining knowledge and picking up expert tips and best practices to ensure good governance.

What this book covers

Chapter 1, Microsoft Teams Basics, enumerates each individual element of Microsoft Teams. These are the key concepts that you need to get to grips with in order to understand how to use the platform. The chapter also explains what other platforms from Microsoft 365 are used when a team is created in Teams. This helps you understand how things are connected inside the Microsoft ecosystem and how they are exposed and made available in a single location inside Microsoft Teams.

Chapter 2, Microsoft Teams' Core Features, covers all the default features that exist in Microsoft Teams out of the box. It provides a detailed explanation of all the features, including search, filters, commands, and the calendar, and explains where the data generated by each of the features is stored.

Chapter 3, How to Use Microsoft Teams – Chats and Conversation, explains the base features that make Microsoft Teams one of the best collaboration platforms o n the market. It goes through all the details associated with the chat feature for 1:1 and team chats.

Chapter 4, *How to Use Microsoft Teams – Meetings and Live Events*, covers meeting functionalities in detail, from scheduling meetings to sharing screens. It also gets into the admin options for enabling meeting features for guest users, such as remote control during a meeting.

Chapter 5, Public versus Private – Teams and Channels, covers teams and channels and the levels of privacy that can be defined for each. It highlights the differences between public and private channels and dives into the details of the architecture with scenarios that help you to understand when to use various channels.

Chapter 6, Extending Microsoft Teams Using Apps, introduces Microsoft Teams apps and teaches you how the platform can be extended using the five different types of apps.

Chapter 7, Extend Microsoft Teams Using Custom Apps and Microsoft 365, looks at custom apps. Even though Microsoft Teams offers an app store to extend the platform, it will probably not be enough for most businesses. Large organizations each have their own business processes that won't be catered for exactly by standard products. This chapter guides you on how to enable and install custom apps on Microsoft Teams.

Chapter 8, Build Your Own App for Microsoft Teams Using App Studio, covers Microsoft Teams App Studio, a "development" app that empowers any end user to build their own custom apps directly inside Microsoft Teams.

Chapter 9, Building Your Own Bot for Microsoft Teams, covers the creation of bots, powerful automated agents that will help you to accomplish daily tasks in an efficient way using natural language. Even though it sounds futuristic and complex, building a bot is accessible to everyone and does not require code. This chapter includes a step-by-step guide to creating and deploying a bot on Microsoft Teams.

Chapter 10, Microsoft Teams PowerShell – a Tool for Automation, explores PowerShell. Microsoft Teams admins will end up doing repetitive tasks to create and configure teams; this chapter introduces the PowerShell modules available for the platform that allow the automation of tasks.

To get the most out of this book

To get the most out of this book, you should have a Microsoft Teams account (free or business) and you should have the application installed on your computer and mobile phones.

The final chapter of the book covers the use of PowerShell, which requires the installation of the Microsoft Teams and Skype for Business modules. It's assumed that you are familiar with basic programming concepts.

Software covered in the book	OS requirements
Microsoft Teams	Windows, macOS X, or Linux Android or iOS
Microsoft Teams PowerShell module	Windows
Skype for Business PowerShell module	Windows

If you are using the digital version of this book, we advise you to type the code yourself or access the code via the GitHub repository (link available in the next section). Doing so will help you avoid any potential errors related to the copying/pasting of code.

Download the example code files

You can download the example code files for this book from your account at www.packt.com. If you purchased this book elsewhere, you can visit www.packt.com/support and register to have the files emailed directly to you.

You can download the code files by following these steps:

- 1. Log in or register at www.packt.com.
- 2. Select the **Support** tab.
- 3. Click on Code Downloads.
- 4. Enter the name of the book in the **Search** box and follow the onscreen instructions.

Once the file is downloaded, please make sure that you unzip or extract the folder using the latest version of:

- WinRAR/7-Zip for Windows
- Zipeg/iZip/UnRarX for Mac
- 7-Zip/PeaZip for Linux

The code bundle for the book is also hosted on GitHub at https://github.com/ PacktPublishing/-Hands-On-Microsoft-Teams. In case there's an update to the code, it will be updated on the existing GitHub repository.

We also have other code bundles from our rich catalog of books and videos available at https://github.com/PacktPublishing/. Check them out!

Conventions used

There are a number of text conventions used throughout this book.

Bold: Indicates a new term, an important word, or words that you see on screen. For example, words in menus or dialog boxes appear in the text like this. Here is an example: "Select **System info** from the **Administration** panel."

Tips, important notes or scenarios appear like this.

A block of code is set as follows:

```
$teamName= "Project Y"
$teamDescription= "The new generation of electric skateboards"
$teamOwner= "joao@funskating.com"
$teamVisibility= "Private"
$teamEditMessagesPolicy= $false
$teamDeliteMessagesPolicy= $false
```

Get in touch

Feedback from our readers is always welcome.

General feedback: If you have questions about any aspect of this book, mention the book title in the subject of your message and email us at customercare@packtpub.com.

Errata: Although we have taken every care to ensure the accuracy of our content, mistakes do happen. If you have found a mistake in this book, we would be grateful if you would report this to us. Please visit www.packtpub.com/support/errata, selecting your book, clicking on the Errata Submission Form link, and entering the details.

Piracy: If you come across any illegal copies of our works in any form on the internet, we would be grateful if you would provide us with the location address or website name. Please contact us at copyright@packt.com with a link to the material.

If you are interested in becoming an author: If there is a topic that you have expertise in, and you are interested in either writing or contributing to a book, please visit authors. packtpub.com.

Reviews

Please leave a review. Once you have read and used this book, why not leave a review on the site that you purchased it from? Potential readers can then see and use your unbiased opinion to make purchase decisions, we at Packt can understand what you think about our products, and our authors can see your feedback on their book. Thank you!

For more information about Packt, please visit packt.com.

1 Microsoft Teams Basics

Microsoft Teams is a new collaboration tool that is transforming the way people work and collaborate around the world. It reached more than 44 million active users in 2020 Q1 and does not show any signs of slowing down.

Workers spend part of their day switching between platforms to chat with their peers, access the project's documentation, schedule meetings, share files, and more. All of these tasks can be finally centralized in a single workspace, and that workspace is Microsoft Teams.

Microsoft has a lot of experience with communication and collaboration tools and Microsoft Teams is an evolution of their previous solutions. Teams inherits all the experience and know-how acquired from other Microsoft enterprise solutions over the last 20 years and is the natural successor of Microsoft Lync and Skype for Business.

If you are reading this book, you have probably asked yourself - Why Microsoft Teams?

Microsoft Teams connects the dots between other Microsoft services and applications used in business environments, empowers users to achieve more, reduces the associated costs, and boosts employee engagement.

If you want to embrace the modern workplace journey and give your teams a boost using Microsoft Teams, this book is for you.

In this chapter, we are going to cover the following topics:

- Accessing Microsoft Teams
- How to sign in on Microsoft Teams
- What does Microsoft Teams look like?
- What is a team?
- What is a channel?
- What is a tab?

Accessing Microsoft Teams

First things first, before we start digging into Microsoft Teams concepts, you need to know how and where you can access it so that you can begin working with Teams right away.

Microsoft Teams plans

Microsoft Teams has two different plans: a free version that is available for anyone to use and a paid version that is included in the Office 365 Business plans.

If you do not have access to an Office 365 subscription and still want to implement Microsoft Teams, you can start with the free version, but be aware of its limitations. The following table shows a comparison between the free and paid versions that might help you decide which version suits your needs:

	Free	Office 365 Business
Unlimited Messages and Chat	Yes	Yes
Guest Access	Yes	Yes
Maximum Users	300	Unlimited *associated with the number of Office 365 licenses
Online Video and Audio Calls	Yes	Yes
Schedule Meetings	No	Yes
Meeting Recordings	No	Yes
File Storage	2 GB/User 10 GB of shared storage	1 TB/User
Multifactor Authentication	No	Yes
Support	No	Yes

As you can see, the free version of Microsoft Teams has some limitations and it might not suit all scenarios. However, if you are building a proof of concept to drive the adoption of the platform, it can be a starting point. A detailed and updated comparison of all the Teams versions can be found online at https://products.office.com/en/microsoft-teams/free.

Microsoft Teams clients

To get started with Microsoft Teams, first, you need to know how to access it.

Teams is available for a variety of platforms. You can use it through any of the following:

- A web browser
- A desktop application
- A mobile application

Each version has its own specifications and features, so be aware that your experience of Teams might be different if you're using it on multiple devices. To get the best experience while using Microsoft Teams, it's recommended to use the native clients for mobile and desktop.

Web clients

Microsoft Teams is available as a web app and can be accessed directly from a browser by going to https://teams.microsoft.com. The web version allows you to use the main functionalities of Microsoft Teams, but you might face some limitations, depending on the browser you are using:

	Calls			Meetings		
	Audio	Video	Sharing	Audio	Video	Sharing
Internet Explorer 11	×	×	×	*	×	*1
Edge RS2	~	✓	*1	~	~	*1
Edge (Chromium)	~	~	~	~	~	✓
Google Chrome	~	~	~	~	~	✓
Firefox	×	×	×	*	×	*1
Safari 11.1+	×	×	×	*	×	*1

*PSTN coordinates are required to attend the meeting.

*¹Incoming sharing only.

When accessing the Microsoft Teams web app for the first time, you will have to bypass the download app screen by clicking the **Use web app instead** link:



Figure 1.1: Selecting the web app

If your browser is not compatible with the web version of Microsoft Teams, access to the app will be blocked and you will see a message asking you to download the app for your operating system.

Desktop clients

The full-feature experience of Microsoft Teams can be only achieved when using the desktop clients available for Windows, macOS, and Linux.

The Microsoft Teams client for Windows supports 32-bit and 64-bit architectures; unlike other office apps, it is agnostic of the architecture of the version of Microsoft Office you have installed and does not require administrator privileges to be installed. This is because the application is deployed in the user's profile folder, that is, AppData.

To install Microsoft Teams on Windows, you need to have the minimum requirements listed in the following table:

Component	Requirements
Processor	Minimum 1.6 GHz, 32-bit or 64-bit
Memory RAM	2.0 GB (4 GB is recommended for live events)
GPU	128 MB
Disk Space	3 GB available
Screen	1,024 x 768 or higher
Operating System	Windows 10, Windows 8.1
Devices	Camera, microphone, speakers

macOS

The Microsoft Teams client for macOS is available as a PKG installation file and requires administrator privileges to be installed; the application is deployed to the /Application folder.

To install Microsoft Teams on macOS, you need to have the minimum requirements listed in the following table:

Component	Requirements
Processor	Intel Core 2 Duo or higher
Memory RAM	2.0 GB (4 GB is recommended for live events)
Disk Space	1.5 GB available
Screen	1,280 x 800 or higher
Operating System	macOS X 10.11 El Capitan or higher
Devices	Camera, microphone, speakers

Linux

The Microsoft Teams client for Linux is available for Debian distributions and for Red Hat-based distributions. The installation packages are provided in DEB format (for Debian) and RPM format (for Red Hat).

Linux has a lot of different distributions but among the most used ones are Ubuntu, which are based on the Debian distribution package, and CentOS and Fedora, which are based on the Red Hat distribution package.

To install Microsoft Teams on Linux, you need to have the minimum requirements listed in the following table:

Component	Requirements
Processor	Intel Core 2 duo or higher
Memory RAM	2.0 GB (4 GB is recommended for live events)
GPU	128 MB
Disk Space	3 GB available
Screen	1,024 x 768 or higher
Operating System	Ubuntu 16.04 LTS or higher LTS version, CentOS 8, Fedora 30, RHEL 8
Devices	Camera, microphone, speakers

Mobile clients

As a platform that aims to facilitate communication and collaboration in the modern workplace environment, Microsoft Teams is also available for Android and iOS.

Android

The Android version of Microsoft Teams is available for download on the Google Play Store and is compatible with the last four major versions of Android.

For example, at the time of writing, Android is on version 10, which means that Microsoft Teams is officially supported on Android 7 or higher.

Depending on the evolution of the Android operating system, the support for Microsoft Teams can be extended to older versions. To find out what the latest version supported is, you can check the requirements for Microsoft Teams on the Google Play Store.

iOS

The iOS version of Microsoft Teams is available for download on the Apple App Store and is compatible with the last two major versions of iOS. Microsoft Teams is compatible with all iOS devices, including iPhone, iPad, and iPod Touch.

For example, iOS is on version 13, which means that Microsoft Teams is officially supported on iOS 11 or higher.

Depending on the evolution of the iOS operating system, the support for Microsoft Teams can be extended to older versions. To find out what the latest version support is, you can check the requirements for Microsoft Teams on the Apple App Store.

How to sign in to Microsoft Teams

After installing Microsoft Teams, you will need to sign in to the application. You can do this using your work, school, or Microsoft account.

When you first open the Microsoft Teams application, you will be asked for your email, as shown in the following screenshot. Once you've typed in your email, click on **Sign in**. When you do this, the application will request your password:



Figure 1.2: Sign in window when using the Microsoft Teams client

After providing your credentials, the application will take a few seconds to load all your teams and conversations. Then, you will be ready to communicate with your colleagues.

When using the web version of Microsoft Teams, the sign-in process is a bit different. The first thing you need to do is type https://teams.microsoft.com into the address bar of your browser.

If you are not authenticated with your email account for any Microsoft service, you will be redirected to the default federation authentication page, which looks as follows:



Figure 1.3: Sign-in window when using the web application

You will need to provide your email and click on **Next**. After doing that, provide your password and click on **Sign in**.

Like the desktop client, the application only takes a few seconds to load after a successful sign in.

The sign-in process in the mobile client is fairly similar and you will need to provide your email and password to go through the authentication process.

What does Microsoft Teams look like?

Now that you have Microsoft Teams installed on one or more devices, it is time to take a look at the application layout and learn how it is organized.

The following screenshot represents the web or desktop version of Microsoft Teams. All the major components are identified with numbers:



Figure 1.4: Main window of Microsoft Teams

Let's take a look at the different components, all of which have been numbered in the preceding screenshot:

- 1. **App bar**: By default, the app bar shows Activity, Chat, Teams, Calendar, Calls, and Files. These are the main default features of Microsoft Teams. This bar can be customized, and a Microsoft Teams administrator can add more apps to it and define the position of new apps. However, the default apps cannot be removed. If a new app is added to the first six positions, the default app is moved to the submenu, which can be accessed through the ... icon.
- 2. Left pane: The context of the left pane changes according to the app that is selected. From this pane, you can access your contacts, chats, and teams. The left pane is not used by all Microsoft Teams apps; apps such as the calendar only make use of the stage section.

- 3. **Stage**: The stage is where the main content of the app is displayed. It is from this section that you will chat with your colleagues and send or download files, among other things.
- 4. **New Chat**: This button allows you to start a new conversation with one user or with multiple users. The conversations will then appear in the Chat app.
- 5. **Search and Commands**: The search box has two functionalities built into it. It allows you to perform a global search on Microsoft Teams for files, people, and messages and also allows you to use commands to perform common tasks. To use a command, type / into the text box and choose a command from the list.
- 6. **Profile and settings**: Your avatar allows access to personal settings. From this option, you will be able to change your current status, which indicates your availability. It also allows you to access your saved messages and configure the global options of the Microsoft Teams app.
- 7. **Filters**: The filter option works in the context of the app you have selected, and it will show the results in the left pane.

Microsoft Teams is also available for mobile devices, but because of the smaller screen size, the app's layout is different. Not all desktop features are available in the mobile version, though Microsoft is adding them gradually to mobile apps. The following screenshot represents the mobile version of Microsoft Teams. All the main components are identified with numbers:



Figure 1.5: Microsoft Teams mobile layout

Let's take a look at the different components, all of which have been numbered in the preceding screenshot:

- 1. **App bar**: By default, the app bar shows Activity, Chat, Teams, Calendar, Calls, and these apps cannot be modified. To view the other apps, you need to swipe the app bar up and the app icons will appear inside a panel.
- 2. **Stage**: The stage on mobile displays the information from the desktop left pane and from the stage area. The stage has several levels and allows you navigate inside of your teams or chats.
- 3. **Tab**: By default, the app shows the **Chat** and **Files** tabs. Any other tabs that exist in the channel are displayed when you click on **More**.
- 4. **Menu**: The menu allows you to access the personal settings. From here, you will be able to change your current status, which indicates your availability. It also allows you to access your saved messages and configure the global options of the Microsoft Teams app. From the menu, you can also select all the tenants where you logged on to Microsoft Teams. This option allows you to switch between organizations and currently is only available on the mobile app.
- 5. **Search and tools**: The search icon a magnifying glass, allows you to search globally in the Microsoft Teams app. The cog icon allows you to select the Teams you want to see by default, while the + icon allows you to join or create a team.
- 6. **Follow channel**: This option allows you to receive notifications from the channels you follow to avoid losing important information.

Now that you are familiar with the look of Microsoft Teams on desktop and mobile, it's time to understand its main components as explained in the following sections.

What is a team?

A team is a group of people that can represent a department, a project, a class, or even a sports team. Besides grouping people, Teams also gathers a set of tools that allows members to share information and work together.

The following scenarios will be used to explain the ways you can tailor team creation for a specific team's requirements. I've tried to add as many examples as possible from multiple sectors, even though they may not fit in the overall setup of the book, just so that you are be able to connect these scenarios with your own realities.

Team Scenario #1 -Mary the marketing manager

Mary is the marketing manager for a multinational company leading a global marketing team currently working on a worldwide campaign for the holidays. Mary has created a team in Microsoft Teams that allows her to do the following:

• Keep conversations about the campaign with other members of the marketing department.

- Share documents about the campaign.
- Invite guest members to the team who will produce the TV commercials to keep them updated with the campaign ideas.
- Access the campaign tasks to each member.

Team Scenario #2 - Geno the basketball coach

Geno is a college basketball coach preparing for a new season. As the head coach, he wants to make communicating and sharing information between team members easier.

Geno has decided to create a team on Microsoft Teams that allows him to do the following:

• Keep all the team members, players, coaches, and physical therapists in

- communication with each other on the same channel.
- Schedule practices.
- Share the games calendar.
- Share the results from other teams and the standings.
- Share scouting videos.

Creating a new team

Creating a new team is the first step to taking advantage of the collaborative features Microsoft Teams offers. This can be done from all app types, although the options might appear in different locations, depending on the operating system you're using.

To create a new empty team using the web or desktop version of Microsoft Teams, do the following:

- 1. Open the Microsoft Teams App.
- 2. On the app bar, click on **Teams**.
- 3. Click on **Join or create a team** or click on the **Create a team** tile, as shown in the following screenshot:

$\langle \rangle$		ß	Search or type a command	HANDS ON SharePoint ~	-	-	×
Activity	Teams	∇	Join or create a team				
Chat	Your teams HOt HANDS ON Teams			-			
Calendar	Hidden teams		Create a team	Join a team with a code			
cals			Bring everyone together and get to work	Got a code to join a team? Enter it above.			
Get app							
Apps							
O Help	14" Join or create a team	٢					

Figure 1.6: Join or create a team

4. On the **Create your team** popup, you can choose between the options shown in the following screenshot:





Figure 1.7: Create team options

Let's explain these options in more detail:

- (a) Build a team from scratch: This option will create an empty team with a chat, a document library, and a wiki.
- (b) Create from an existing Office 365 group or team: This option allows you to create a team from an existing Office 365 group or use an existing team as a template for your new team.
- 5. As a team owner, you can choose from three different levels of privacy for the team, as shown in the following screenshot:





Let's explain these options in more detail:

- (a) **Private**: People need to be added by a team owner and the team cannot be discovered on the Microsoft Teams app by default.
- (b) **Public**: Anyone in the organization can join and the team can be discovered through the Microsoft Teams app.
- (c) **Org-Wide**: Everyone in the organization is added to the team automatically and is kept in sync with the Active Directory as more users join or leave the organization. This option is only available for environments with less than 5,000 users and only global admins will be able to create org-wide teams.

6. Provide a name and a description for your team and click the **Create** button:



Figure 1.9: Team name and description

7. Wait a few seconds for the success message to appear. Now, you are ready to start adding members to your newly created team.

If your organization is already using Office 365 groups and you want to create a team out of it or you want to use an existing team as a template for your new team, do the following:

- 1. Follow the preceding steps until step 4.
- 2. Select Create from an existing Office 365 group or team.
- 3. Select either **Team** or **Office 365 group**. Both options will show you a list of the teams or groups that you have access to:

Create a	new team from something you already own $\qquad \qquad \times$
ų	Team
J	Office 365 group

Figure 1.10: Create team from existing content

4. Pick the desired team or group:

Which team do you want to use?

Copy apps, settings, and channels over to your new team. Your existing team won't be changed.

 \times





- 5. When a new team is created from an existing team, you will have the option to control everything that is related to it. This includes the following:
 - (a) Name
 - (b) Description
 - (c) Privacy
 - (d) Members
 - (e) Tabs
 - (f) Channels

You are using "Women's Basketball Team 19/20" as a \times template for a new team

M	en's Basketball	Team	19/20		\odot
Desc	ription				
Le	t people know what this tea	am is all abo	but		
Priva	су				
Pri	vate - Only team owners ca	n add mem	bers		\sim
Cho	ose what you'd like to inc	lude from	the original team		
Mes agai	sages, files and content wo n.	n't be copie	ed. You'll need to set u	o tabs and conne	ctors
\sim	Channels	\checkmark	Apps		
\checkmark	Tabs		Members		
<	Back			Creat	e

Figure 1.12: Create new team from template

- 6. When a new team is created from Office 365 groups, it inherits the settings from the group, namely the following:
 - (a) Name
 - (b) Description
 - (c) Privacy
 - (d) Members
- 7. Click the **Create** button. Now, you are ready to start using your new team.
What happens when I create a team?

Microsoft Teams is tightly connected to other Office 365 applications and makes use of some of them to provide a rich collaboration environment every time a new team is created. The following are created when you create a team:

- A new Office 365 group
- A SharePoint site collection
- A shared calendar and a shared mailbox
- A OneNote notebook
- A Microsoft Stream group
- A Microsoft Forms group
- These can be seen in the following diagram:



Figure 1.13: Microsoft Teams connected platforms

Adding members to the team

To add members to a team, do the following:

- 1. Select your team and click on the ... icon.
- 2. On the dropdown, click Add Member.
- 3. Start typing in the name or group you want to add.
- 4. While typing, you will get suggestions regarding users that belong to your organization. Find the user you want to add and click on them. If guest access is enabled on your tenant, you will be able to add members to the team that don't belong to the organization. To do this, type in the person's email and select Add <email> as a guest:

Add members to Woman's Basketball Team 19/20

Start typing a name, distribution list, or security group to add to your team. You can also add people outside your organization as guests by typing their email addresses.

jofr@ncda.com	Add
Add jofr@ncda.com as a guest	
	Close



5. Once the users have been added to the team, a post will be automatically made in the general channel to let everyone know about the new members.

Guest users are identified by the word (Guest) in front of their name and will not be displayed with a profile picture. To clearly identify a guest user, make sure they are added with a legible name. Microsoft Teams will suggest a name based on the email, but while adding the guest to the Team, you have the opportunity to rename them. To change the name of a guest user, click on the pencil icon and type in a new name, as shown in the following screenshot. You might want to consider adding the organization of the user to their name in case you have users with the same name from different organizations:

Add members to Woman's Basketball Team 19/20

Start typing a name, distribution list, or security group to add to your team. You can also add people outside your organization as guests by typing their email addresses.



Close

Figure 1.15: Rename a guest user

So far you have learned how Microsoft Teams looks and how to create teams. In the following sections you will learn how to tailor your teams to your needs.

What is a channel?

A channel is a section inside of a team that helps you organize conversations, files, and tools inside a container.

By default, all teams are created with the General channel, which includes the conversations tab, files, and wiki.

Channels are public by default, but if it's been enabled by the administrator, it is also possible to create private channels. Private channels will be explained in detail in *Chapter 5, Public versus Private – Teams and Channels.*

Channel Scenario #1 - Mary the marketing manager

Mary is working with the company designers to create advertisements for a campaign. To avoid distracting other members of the team and to keep the information about this topic centralized, Mary has created a new channel. In the new channel, the team members working on the advertisements are doing the following:

- Chatting about the ideas to promote the campaign
- Sharing files, either specifications or the design files of the several concepts

Channel Scenario #2 - Geno the basketball coach

Geno has created his team ahead of the start of the season and is organizing a pre-season plan with his assistant coaches. Before adding the athletes to the team, Geno has created a Pre-Season channel so that he has/can do the following:

- Have a common place where the pre-season schedule can be shared.
- Communicate with the athletes and other staff member once the pre-season starts.

Creating a new channel

The creation of a new channel is straightforward and is always done in the context of the team where you want to create it. Therefore, to add a channel to the team, do the following:

- 1. Select the team and click on the ... icon.
- 2. Click on Add Channel.
- 3. Give a **name** to the channel, as well as an alternative description to help team members understand the topic or purpose of the channel.

4. Select if you want to automatically show the channel to the channel list of the team members:



Figure 1.16: Create a channel

What happens when I create a channel?

When a public channel is created, it creates a folder in the document library of the team SharePoint site collection. Each new channel gets its own folder in the document library to keep files organized by topic.

Creating a channel also generates an email address that can be used to send messages directly to the conversations that are occurring on the team.

To get the email address for the channel, do the following:

- 1. Select the channel and click on the ... icon.
- 2. Click on Get email address. A popup will open and reveal the email address.

The use of email addresses can be restricted to avoid receiving unwanted messages in the chat window. To do this, from the **Get email address** popup, click on the **advanced settings** link and select one of the available options:

- Anyone can send emails to this address
- Only members of this team
- Only emails sent from these domains:

Get email address

See advanced settings for more options.

Pre Season - Women's Basketball Team 19_20 <6bf72cd1.handsonsp.onmicrosoft.cc

- Remove email address
- O Anyone can send emails to this address
- Only members of this team
- Only email sent from these domains:

e.g. microsoft.com, gmail.com

Cancel Save



If you want to disable the email functionality of the channel, in the same popup, there is a link to remove it. Once the email has been removed, the option to get the email address will disappear from the dropdown.

In this section, you have learned how to create your own structure inside a team. In the following section, you will learn how to refine your structure even further using tabs.

What is a tab?

Tabs allow team members to access tools and content in the context of a channel inside a team. Tabs also allow team members to have conversations in the context of a tab to discuss the content the tab is displaying. On Microsoft Teams, you will find two types of tabs: the built-in ones that come by default with the application and the custom ones that are added by apps that have been installed on Microsoft Teams, either from the store or manually uploaded.

Tab Scenario #1 - Mary the marketing manager

Mary wants to make sure the advertisements for the campaign are on track and to do this, she's added a new tab to the channel with Microsoft Planner, along with the tasks of each designer.

Tab Scenario #2 - Geno the basketball coach

Geno continues to prepare for the season. He wants to share the plays and the plan for his practice sessions with the players without printing everything out. Geno has added two tabs to the Pre-Season channel for the following reasons: •To add a OneNote document with all the plays and practice sessions.

•To add a YouTube video showing the plays.

Creating a new tab

Tabs are created in the channel context. To add new tools to your channels, do the following:

- 1. Open the channel where you want to add a new tab.
- 2. On the stage section, next to the Conversation and Files tab, click on the + icon:



Figure 1.18: Create a new tab

3. From the Add a tab popup, select one of the available apps.

Add a tab)					×
Turn your fav More apps	vorite apps and	l files into tabs	at the top of th	e channel	Search	Q
Tabs for your to	eam					
	X	F			٩	Fower BI
Library	Excel	Forms	Onenote	PDF	Flanner	Power Bi
PowerPoint	SharePoint	Stream	Website	Wiki	Word	YouTube
More tabs						
b	Ë		*	♦	ed	ch
Buncee	Coo Kai Team Build	Ment.io	WittyParrot	Zenkit	EdCast	Crewhu
					نې	Manage apps

Figure 1.19: Select the app for the tab

- 4. If the app is not installed on Microsoft Teams yet, click on the **Add** button.
- 5. Configure the tab by following the options available in the form. Each app will present different options.
- 6. Click Save.

Using tabs, you will be able to create your custom structure inside of your channel. This flexibility allows you to adapt Microsoft Teams to virtually any scenario from any industry.

Summary

In this chapter, you learned about the basic concepts and operations of Microsoft Teams. Now, you are ready to start building your own teams. We can compare Microsoft Teams components to the Russian dolls with the Team, Channel, and Tab structure being the nested components inside of a team structure.

The three base concepts of Microsoft Teams are organized hierarchically and have dependencies between them. A tab can only exist inside of a channel and a channel can only exist inside of a team. This structure gives you the flexibility you need to build your teams by following the internal organization of companies or schools.

In the next chapter, you will learn how to use the main features of Microsoft Teams to communicate with other Teams members.

2 Microsoft Teams' Core Features

Now that you know what Microsoft Teams is and what it looks like, it's time to look at its core features and how you can use them to achieve more with the platform.

A hub for communication and collaboration, Microsoft Teams brings people together. It is Microsoft's carefully designed features that allow the platform to do this in such a unique way.

To get the best out of Microsoft Teams, you'll need to understand not only the basic concepts explained in the first chapter but also how to manage all of the assets that the platform brings together.

In this chapter, you will gain an overview of the following main topics:

- Understanding chats and meetings
- Managing your time using the Microsoft Teams calendar
- Working faster on Teams with search, filters, and commands
- Customizing Microsoft Teams
- Where is Microsoft Teams data stored?

Understanding chats and meetings

Microsoft Teams' main features can be divided into two major sections: **chat** and **meetings**.

The chat feature takes a principal role in Microsoft Teams and allows you to communicate with your peers in a few different ways, using text. You can have one-to-one or group chats, which can be public or private.

One-to-one chats are always private, and you will be able to start a new conversation with anyone from your own organization (an internal user) or from other organizations (a guest user).

Group chats, which you start manually by adding people to the chat, are private, while group chats that you start in the context of channels are public and accessible to all team members.

Note

The chat feature is heavily used by Microsoft Teams users and has many functionalities that deserve to be explained in detail. *Chapter 3, How to Use Microsoft Teams – Chats and Conversation*, is exclusively dedicated to chats and all of its built-in features.

The meetings feature on Microsoft Teams provides a rich environment to collaborate with peers who are not in the same location as you. It allows you to bring people from all over the world into the same room in a matter of seconds.

Meetings uses high definition audio and video and allows each member to share video and audio. It even allows screen sharing—you can share your entire desktop screen or individual application windows with other users.

Meetings on Microsoft Teams can also be recorded and shared with other members of the organization in a matter of minutes using Microsoft Stream. If you have a conflict in your schedule and are not able to attend the meeting, you can always watch the recording.

Note

Chapter 4, How to Use Microsoft Teams – Meetings, and Live Events, is exclusively dedicated to meetings, and you will find instructions there on how to use its built-in features.

Now that we understand what chat and meetings are, we still have to manage our meetings and schedule. Let's see how to do so in the next section.

Managing your time using the Microsoft Teams calendar

Microsoft Teams would not be a true collaboration solution if it were not equipped with a calendar. The calendar app is available by default on Microsoft Teams and allows you to view and schedule Teams meetings:

	Mic	rosoft Teams	Search	or type a command		a
Activity	e	Calendar			Qi Meet now	+ New meeting
E Chat		Today < > Novemb	er 2019 \vee			iii Work week $^{\vee}$
iji Teams		04 Monday	05 Tuesday	06 Wednesday	07 Thursday	08 Friday
Calendar	4 PM			Company Meeting	Project Team Meeting Conference Room - Stevens Lidia Holloway	Legal and Executives Bi-Weekly
files	5 PM	Sales Team Meeting Conference Room - Adams Lidia Holloway		Christie Cline	o	Conference Room - Crystal Lidia Holloway Ø
	6 PM		Weekly call with Subsidiary Leads Online Meeting Megan Bowen	o	Tailspin Project Discussion My Office Isaiah Langer	
	7 PM					
Apps	8 PM		Company Aniversary Engineering lab Megan Bowen		Weekly Marketing Lunch TBD Adele Vance	Lunch? TBD Lynne Robbins
() Help	9 PM	Weekly check-in with Engineers				Lidia/Isalah 1:1 Lidia's Office

Figure 2.1: Microsoft Teams Calendar

The Microsoft Teams calendar includes the following features:

- Daily view.
- Weekly view: This view can display just the workdays or the entire week.
- The ability to view the meeting scheduling details.
- The ability to schedule a meeting or live event.
- The ability to cancel a meeting.
- Synchronization with Outlook and Exchange calendars.
- The ability to meet immediately, without previous scheduling.

Note

The detailed features relating to meetings and events are explained in *Chapter* 4, *How to Use Microsoft Teams – Meeting, and Live Events.*

In our next section, we will see how using different features will help make our work faster and enable us to save time when working on Teams.

Working faster on Teams with search, filters, and commands

All the collaboration work done using chats and meetings on Microsoft Teams will generate a considerable amount of data, which can easily reach hundreds of megabytes across all the teams and channels in an organization.

Microsoft Teams comes with three features that can help you find content and carry out tasks without spending hours looking for the information manually:

- Search
- Filters
- Commands

Let's look at each of these in more detail.

Search

The search feature is available in all versions of Microsoft Teams. On the desktop version, you can find it in the title bar right at the top of the application, as shown in the following screenshot:



Figure 2.2: Microsoft Teams Search

The search feature looks for information in three different scopes:

- Messages
- People
- Files

The search results are displayed in the left pane and you can alternate between the scopes using the tabs at the top of the pane.

When you click on one of the results displayed in the **Messages** tab, it opens the message in the context it was sent, that is, in the team, channel, or one-to-one chat where the message is located.

If you are looking for a team member and click on one of the results shown in the **People** tab, you will get access to a private chat window with that particular member.

The results shown in the **Files** tab are displayed in their Microsoft Teams context. For example, a Microsoft Word document will be opened in the web version of Microsoft Word in the stage area. If the file is not compatible with the Microsoft Teams preview functionality, you will have the option to download the file locally or open it in a browser.

The mobile version of Microsoft Teams has the same search functionalities available as the desktop version, and the search feature is also located at the top of the app. To use it, you will need to click on the magnifier icon and type in your search query. The results are then displayed in a separate window divided into the same three categories: **Messages**, **People**, and **Files**.

Filters

The filters function offers another way to find content inside Microsoft Teams. You can use this feature, along with search, to filter the results retrieved or you can use it in the context of **Activity**, **Chat**, and **Teams**.

To use filters to refine your search results, you will need to click on the filter icon next to the tabs on the left pane, as in the following screenshot.

Once you have clicked on the filter icon, a popup will appear that will allow you to filter all the metadata associated with the results retrieved:



Figure 2.3: Filter search results

This popup is dynamic and displays different fields depending on the context of your search. In the context of the search function, it is only available for **Messages** and **Files** and it is not possible to filter **People**.

Outside of the search context, the filter option also has its own search box and predefined tags that you can select in order to get to the information faster.

To filter in the context of **Activity**, **Chat**, or **Teams**, click on the filter icon and type what you are looking for in the textbox. To use the predefined tags, click on the three dots (...) and choose one of the available options. The tag feature is only available in the **Activity** and **Chat** contexts:



Figure 2.4: Chat tags

Once a tag is selected, a word is added to the text box, immediately filtering the results, and can be combined with your own search query to refine the results even further.

Unlike the search feature, filters are only available in the desktop versions of Microsoft Teams. You will not be able to use this feature in the mobile app.

Commands

Commands are designed to make you work faster on Microsoft Teams. They are shortcuts for tasks such as opening a channel or changing your availability status. There are two types of commands—the ones built into the Teams application and the ones added by third-party apps.

To use the built-in commands, you will need to type / into the command box at the top of the screen, followed by the command you want to use.

Commands will perform simple tasks. Some of them will trigger the command action when you type them, while others will require data from you to trigger the action. The following screenshots show two different examples of things you can do in Microsoft Teams using commands.

If you type /busy, your presence status will be modified to busy:





If you type /chat, the search bar will change the layout and you will have access to your contacts list and a textbox to send a message. This is particularly handy if you are in a meeting and need to send a private message to someone:



Figure 2.6: Sending a quick chat to a Microsoft Teams user

The following table from the official Microsoft documentation lists all of the available commands. This list might change in the future as new functionalities are added to the platform. To view all of the available commands at any given time, you can type / in the search bar:

Command	Description
/activity	See someone's activity.
/available	Set your status to available.
/away	Set your status to away.
/busy	Set your status to busy.
/brb	Set your status to be right back.
/call	Call a phone number or Teams contact.
/chat	Send a quick message to a person.
/dnd	Set your status to do not disturb.
/files	See your recent files.
/goto	Go right to a team or channel.
/help	Get help with Teams.
/join	Join a team.
/keys	See keyboard shortcuts.
/mentions	See all your @mentions.
/org	See someone's org chart.
/saved	See your saved messages.
/testcall	Check your call quality.
/unread	See all your unread activity.
/whatsnew	See what is new in Teams.

Some apps can install command functionalities. These are also available from the search bar. To use them, you will need to type @ followed by the name of the command. Typically, these types of commands are used to bring information from outside the organization into Teams.

For example, if the Microsoft weather app is installed in your Microsoft Teams tenant, you will be able to get the current weather for any city when you type the @Weather command followed by the name of the city:



Figure 2.7: Weather command

Both built-in and third-party commands are only available on the desktop version of Microsoft Teams. This feature is not available for mobile clients.

In this section you learned how to get things done more quickly using Microsoft Teams shortcuts. Knowing how to use the command bar effectively will improve your productivity while working with Microsoft Teams.

Customizing Microsoft Teams

Even though Microsoft Teams is a working platform, it allows you to customize certain features and settings to make it fit better with your working preferences and routines.

To access the configuration settings of Microsoft Teams, do the following:

1. On the Microsoft Teams client, click on your profile picture and then click on **Settings**:



Figure 2.8: Personal settings

- 2. A popup will open, and from there you will have access to six different groups of settings:
 - (a) General: In this group, you will be able to access the Microsoft Teams themes. The default is a light theme, but a dark and a contrast theme are also available. From the General tab, you can also select the language for the app and keyboard, as well as general application settings, such as autostarting the application and using Teams as the default chat app for Office:

Settings	
🔅 General	Theme
🕆 Privacy	
Q Notifications	
🕆 Permissions	Default Dark High contrast
& Calls	Application
	Auto-start application
	Open application in background
	 On close, keep the application running
	Disable GPU hardware acceleration (requires restarting Teams)
	Register Teams as the chat app for Office (requires restarting Office applications)
	Language
	Restart application to apply language settings.
	App language determines the date and time format.
	English (United States)
	Keyboard language overrides keyboard shortcuts.
	English (United States) 🗸



(b) **Privacy**: In the privacy settings, you will find an important option that allows you to prioritize notifications from certain people when your status is set to **Do not disturb**:

Settings

3	General	Do not disturb	
Ģ	Privacy	You can still receive notifications from people who have priority access	
Ů	Notifications	when your status is set to Do not disturb.	
ſ	Devices	Manage priority access	
B	Permissions		
C	Calls	Read receipts	
		Let people know when you've seen their messages, and know when they've seen yours.	
		Surveys	
		Participate in surveys from Microsoft Teams.	

Figure 2.10: Personal privacy

Here, you can also decide whether other users can access your read receipts on the app. A read receipt is displayed next to a message, with an icon representing an eye, and tells other people that you have read their messages:



Figure 2.11: Read receipts

(c) **Notifications**: Notifications on Microsoft Teams will help you to prioritize what is most relevant to you. Your notifications can be personalized with four different options. You can choose whether a notification is displayed in the banner, in the banner and over email, only in the feed, or off completely. However, these options are not available for all notifications, and some cannot be turned off. In the following screenshot, you can see all of the notifications that can be customized in Microsoft Teams:

Settings		
General	Mentions	
D Privacy	Personal mentions	Banner and email
♀ Notifications	Channel mentions	Banner and email
Q Devices	Team mentions	Banner and email
Permissions	Macanas	
K₀ Calls	messayes	
	Chat messages	Banner and email
	Replies to conversations I started	Banner
	Replies to conversations I replied to	Banner
	Likes and reactions	Banner
	Followed channels	Banner and email
	Trending	Only show in feed
	Other	
	Team membership changes	Banner
	Team role changes	Banner
	Notification sounds	Call, mention and chat
	Missed activity emails	Once every hour
	Meetings	
	Meeting started notification	Banner
	Meeting chat notifications	Mute until join or sen
	Status	
	Follow a person's status and get notified whe	n they appear Available or Offline.
	Manage notifications	

Figure 2.12: Notifications

At the bottom of the **Notifications** page, you will find a **Manage notifications** button. This option allows you to select individual contacts and be notified every time they are online or offline.

(d) Devices: This option allows you to select which devices will be used for audio and video on Microsoft Teams. Here, you also have the option of making a test call to make sure everything is working as expected. When attending a meeting or a live event, you can always override the settings defined here and use other hardware available on your device:

Settings

ණ	General	Audio devices	
P	Privacy	Custom Setup	\sim
Ů	Notifications		
ß	Devices	Speaker	
B	Permissions	Speakers (Conexant ISST Audio)	\sim
C	Calls	Microphone	
		Desktop Microphone (Microsoft® LifeCam Cinema(TM))	\checkmark
		Make a test call	
		Secondary ringer	
		None	\sim
		Camera	
		Microsoft® LifeCam Cinema(TM)	\sim



Once you have selected the devices you want to use, Microsoft Teams offers you the possibility of testing them on a test call. To perform a test call, you need to click the **Make a test call** button.

(e) **Permissions**: To get the most out of all of Microsoft Team's features, the application has consent to use several things from your device, such as the location or the physical hardware for meetings and live events. If you want to revoke access to the peripherals or to settings such as **Location**, you can do so in this tab:

Settings		×
	Permissions	
🔅 General	Get the most out of the apps you add as tabs by allowing them to access	s your device. Apply
🕆 Privacy	the same permissions to all of them, or customize them individually belo	w.
♀ Notifications	Media (Camera, microphone, speakers)	
Devices	Location Location	
B Permissions	♀ Notifications	
& Calls	C External links	
	d [∞] MIDI device	

- Figure 2.14: Permissions
- (f) **Calls**: In this tab, you will find everything related to the calling features on Microsoft Teams. You can configure the voicemail options and the ringtone when someone calls you:

Settings			
영 General	Choose how you wa	nt to handle incoming calls.	
Privacy	 Calls ring me 	O Forward my calls	
Q Notifications	If unanswered	Voicemail	\sim
Devices			
B Permissions		Ring for this many seconds before	redirecting
& Calls		20 seconds (default)	\sim
	Ringtones		
	Choose a ringtone fo	or incoming calls	
	Calls for you	Вор	\vee \triangleright
	Accessibility		
	Turn on TTY to use t working, be sure to o	ext to communicate over the phone connect a TTY device.	ine. To get this
	Turn on TTY	mode	
	Figure 2.15:	Calls	

Microsoft Teams gives you the option to manage your settings individually and this section covered each one of the options individually. Once you start using Teams, make sure you have a look at each one of these sections to ensure that Teams is adjusted to your needs and preferences.

Now that we have an overview of what Microsoft Teams' core features are and how to use them, you might be curious to know where all that data is stored. Let's look at this in more detail in the next section.

Where is Microsoft Teams data stored?

Microsoft Teams makes use of several Office 365 services to deliver features to a central location. It is important to know that your data is not stored in a central location, as it may appear when using the Teams applications and, depending on the feature, your data might be stored in different locations.

Microsoft Teams' data is stored in all of the following apps. Some data is available to you through the app, while other information is hidden and only displayed in the Microsoft Teams client:

- Microsoft Exchange
 - (a) One-to-one chats are stored in your mailbox in a hidden folder that is not available to other users. This data can only be viewed through Microsoft Teams. (The hidden folder is available through the information protection tools if needed for legal reasons.)
 - (b) Voicemails are stored on the user mailbox and the data is available in Microsoft Teams.
- Microsoft Stream
 - (a) Meeting recordings are stored on Microsoft Stream. Users can access the recordings on the Stream portal.
- SharePoint
 - (a) Files shared in channels are stored on the team site collection. Each channel has a folder in the documents library on SharePoint. Users can access the files from SharePoint or Microsoft Teams.

• OneDrive for Business

(a) Files shared in one-to-one chats remain on the OneDrive of the person who shared it and permissions are given automatically. Microsoft Teams does not copy files to the user's OneDrive when shared in one-to-one chats. Users can access the files from OneDrive (files are located in the Microsoft Teams Chat Files folder) or from Microsoft Teams.

The following diagram is a graphical representation of where Microsoft Teams stores files and which apps are used to do so:



Figure 2.16: Microsoft Teams features and used platforms

Summary

This chapter provided an introduction to the main features included in Microsoft Teams and gave you an overview of how they work and what they look like. In the upcoming chapters, you will see that these features are common across the Microsoft Teams apps, making it really intuitive.

Chats and **meetings** are key features of Microsoft Teams. They are complemented by other features, such as **file sharing**, **search**, and **calendar**, which allow you to be more efficient as you carry out your daily tasks.

In the next chapter, we will cover the chat feature in Microsoft Teams in more detail.

3 How to Use Microsoft Teams – Chats and Conversation

Communication is the key to success when working in a team. Microsoft Teams allows you to leverage your communication skills with little effort by providing a set of tools that allow you to chat with your peers in a matter of seconds.

The chat features included in the product allow you to have private and public written conversations and help you to keep everything organized and centralized for easy access.

In this chapter, we are going to cover the following main topics:

- Understanding the chat feature on Microsoft Teams
- How to use private chats
- How to manage contacts

- How to use the chat application
- Understanding the message options
- Understanding chats in the context of teams

Understanding the chat feature on Microsoft Teams

Chat is a default application found in the app bar and allows you to start a written conversation with any member of your organization.

Before jumping into your first conversation, it is best to understand how the chat app is organized to get the most out of it. The following screenshot shows a page in the app, with its main components highlighted and described:



Figure 3.1: Chat layout

Let's cover each of these components in detail:

- 1. **The Chat app**: The **Chat** application gives you access to the private chat feature on Microsoft Teams.
- 2. **The Contacts tab**: The contacts tab allow you to find other Microsoft Teams members to start a conversation.
 - (a) **Recent**: This shows you the latest contacts you chatted with and also suggests contacts based on your recent activity. The **Recent** tab also displays your pinned contacts; these contacts are always displayed at the top for faster access.
 - (b) Contacts: This list is built by you and it will show all of your favorite contacts.
- 3. Your chat contacts: A list of contacts, filtered by the selected tab.
- 4. A chat thread: This is where you can access a chat thread and where you will see all the assets shared during a conversation. It is also the place where you can access other Teams apps using the tabs at the top of the section.
- 5. **The chat box**: This is your input element for the conversation. From it, you can write text and upload files, as well as carry out other functions, which we will look at later in this chapter.

Throughout this chapter, we will look at the Chat elements in more detail.

How to use private chats

Private chats can be used to have conversations about topics that are not relevant to an entire team. You can use it to plan your daily tasks with your co-workers or even to schedule a coffee break. All of the content shared in private chats will only be visible to you and the other members of the chat.

Microsoft Teams supports one-to-one and one-to-*n* private chats (with a limit of 100 users). In this section, we will look at how to use both.

To start a new one-to-one private conversation using Microsoft Teams, follow these steps:

- 1. Click on the **Chat** app in the app bar.
- 2. Look for the user in the left pane that you want to chat with and click on their name.
- 3. Start your conversation.

Even though this three-step process is the easiest way to start a chat on Microsoft Teams, sometimes the user you want to chat with will not be available in the contacts list. In this case, do the following:

- 1. In the top bar of Microsoft Teams, click on the **New chat** icon, seen in the following screenshot.
- 2. In the stage area, type the name of the person you want to chat with. In the left pane, you will see that a new chat has been created.
- 3. Click on **New chat** and start your conversation. The chat thread will be added to the **Recent** section in the left pane:

< >	C	Search or type a command	□ ×
Activity	Chat Recent Contacts V	To: 🗊 Grady Archie X	P ~
E Chat	Pinned		
iii Tearns	BP Bianca Pisani Draft Recent		
E Calendar	New chat	• =	
Calls	Adele Vance 11/5 You: 44*F Seattle, WA Fog. 11/5/2	2	
	You: I'm running late	20	
	João Ferreira 11/3 Im runninb late	You're starting a new conversation	
	alex Wilber	Type your first message below.	
Get app			
Apps	Brian Johnson (TAILSPIN)		
() Help	(📭 Grady Archie	Ay ! C ⊙ III 및 ☆ ··· ▷	>

Figure 3.2: New chat

Microsoft Teams also supports private group chats outside the scope of a team. To create a new group chat, follow these steps:

- 1. In the top bar of Microsoft Teams, click on the **New chat** icon, seen in the following screenshot.
- 2. Click on the arrow on the right side of the stage area.
- 3. Provide a name for the group; this helps you to identify your group chats.

- 4. Add members to the group chat.
- 5. Click on the chat box and start your group conversation. As with one-to-one chats, group chats will also appear in the **Recent** section in the left pane:

< >	1 🗹	Search or type a command
L Activity	Chat Recent Contacts V	Group name: Demo - Dry Run
= Chat	Pinned	To: 🗊 Grady Archie × 🌒 Allan Deyoung ×
teams	BP Blanca Pisani O Draft Recent	
E Calendar	(b) New chat	٠
Calls	Adele Vance 11/5 You: 44°F Seattle, WA Fog, 11/5/2	
	Johanna Lorenz 11/5 You: I'm running late	*
	João Ferreira 11/3 I'm runninb late	🙂 🙂
	Suggested	You're starting a new conversation
	餐 Alex Wilber	Type your first message below.
Get app	🧑 Allan Deyoung	
	BJ Brian Johnson (TAILSPIN)	
0	Grady Archie	Type a new message
Help		

Figure 3.3: Starting a group chat

Over time, you might need to include someone else in a private group chat. This could cause privacy issues, especially if you have messages in the chat that were not supposed to be read by any new members.

To avoid having to create a new private group chat, you can take advantage of the chat history feature, which allows you to control how much of the chat history the new member can access:

- None of the chat history
- *X* days of the chat history
- All of the chat history

This option appears at the top of the chat window whenever you add additional members to the chat, as the following screenshot shows:

	Microsoft Teams 🛛 🖄		Search or type a command				e				
Activity	Chat	Recent Contacts	7	61	⊙Alex, ⊙Isaiah 🖉	Chat Files +				00	€6 [*] 3
Chat	 Recent Alex and You: Hey Alex Vil Alex Vil Alex Vil Isaiah La Isaiah La 	I Isaiah 6 guys, don't forget to r. ber se give final review by nger y Megs! I just wanted f	3/15 E 3/15 io	0 ⁺	Megan Bowen added Alex ¹	Wilber and Isaiah La	6:11 PM Hey guys,	Add Start typin Don't inclu O Include his O Include all	ig a name ude chat history story from the past num chat history Cancel	mber of days: 1 Add	
Apps					Type a new message						
(?) Help					A. ! C 😳 🛛	er 🕁 🛱 🖗				\triangleright	

Figure 3.4: Privacy settings when adding a new member to the chat

How to manage contacts

You will not chat with all members of your organization in the same way and you will likely have a set of contacts that you will use more frequently and want to access quickly.

To create your own list of personal contacts, do the following:

- 1. Open the **Chat** app.
- 2. In the **Recent** tab in the left pane, hover over the contact you want to add to your personal list.
- 3. Click on the three dots (...) to open the context menu of the contact.
- 4. Click on Add to favorite contacts.

Your favorite contacts will be listed in the **Contacts** tab in the left pane, organized in alphabetical order:

< >		C	Search or t	ype a command		a -	□ ×
Activity	Chat Recent Contacts	16 X X	Mark as unread Pin Add to favorite contacts	Organization Activity =	+		P) (8)
Chat Teams	Bianca Pisani BPO Draft Recent		Mute Hide Notify when available	Don't forget that t	tomorrow we will spend most of th	11/5 3:58 PM Hi Adele most of the day outside	
Calendar Calls	Demo - Dry Run You: What are the plans for the Adele Vance You: 44°F Seattile, WA Fog. 11/5		Manage apps		Weather 44°F Seattle, WA		
	Johanna Lorenz You: I'm running late João Ferreira João Ferreira I'm runnibu late Suggetted	11/5			Fog, 11/5/2019 7:50 AM Feels like: 44°F Wind: 2 mph Humidity: 86% High / Low temperature: 54°F / 43°F	A	
<u> </u>	Alex Wilber				Chance of precipitation: 0% Data from Foreca More details		
Ger app Apps	Brian Johnson (TAILSPIN)		Type a new n	nessage			
Grady Archie Help			B₂ ! €			B	>

Figure 3.5: Chat options

The context menu for each contact gives you access to more features and actions that you can use to carry out your work more effectively:

- Mark as unread: If you accidentally click on a chat when there are new messages available to read but you simply don't have time to read them, this option allows you to mark the chat as unread so you don't forget that there are new messages that need your attention.
- **Pin**: If you want a contact to always be visible in the **Recent** tab, you can use this option. It is particularly handy in scenarios where you don't want to miss any updates from a user and want to reply quickly. A pinned contact is displayed in the first group of the **Recent** tab and you can pin up to 15 contacts.
- **Mute**: If you need to focus but you have colleagues always pinging you, this option allows you to mute them. A muted contact will not trigger any notifications on Microsoft Teams.

- **Hide**: If you know you won't be speaking to one of your colleagues any time soon, you can use this option to remove the contact from the **Recent** tab. This way, you will only be focusing on the conversations that matter.
- Notify when available: This option triggers a notification every time a user becomes available on Microsoft Teams, so you can start a conversation immediately. This option is only available to users that belong to the same organization.

Now that we are familiar with the application and how to set it up, in our next section we will see how to use the chat app and its different features.

How to use the chat application

The chat app on Microsoft Teams comes equipped with functionalities that go beyond writing text. To send a message inside the chat app, do the following:

- 1. Click on the text box in the chat thread.
- 2. Type your message.
- 3. To send it, press *Enter* or click on the send button.

At this stage, everything looks like a regular chat app, such as the ones we have on our phones. However, things start to get interesting when you use the extra functionalities provided by Microsoft Teams. In the following image, you can see the text box with a set of icons underneath. Each icon allows you to enrich your messages:





Bonus tip:

If you post a message and, right after pressing *Enter*, notice that something is wrong and needs to be fixed, press the **up arrow** on your keyboard. When you do this, the **edit text box** opens inside the thread and you can fix your mistake using all of the options provided by the chat box. Modified messages are tagged with a label '**Edited**' indicating that the message was edited by the author.

Let's now see what each of these icons are and how to use them, starting with the default features of Microsoft Teams.

Format

The **Format** option provides a rich text editor that allows you to format your texts to add greater clarity to your messages. The toolbar offers options to format fonts and styles, similar to the ones you find on Microsoft Word. There are also options to build lists, add quotes, tables, or even snippets of source code, with the options of selecting a programming language. As with any text editor tool, while composing your message you have the option of undoing or repeating your typing:



Figure 3.7: Text box with formatting options

Set Delivery Options

Not all messages have the same priority. In Microsoft Teams, you can clearly identify a message that needs attention as soon as possible by using the delivery options:

• **Standard**: This is the default option on Microsoft Teams. A message is added to the chat and a notification is sent to the user you are chatting with.

This is very important Allan Deyoung



Figure 3.8: Standard message

• **Important**: The message is marked with an **IMPORTANT!** tag in the chat thread. The user that you are chatting with will be able to identify it by its red color and the! icon in the message box:

11:05 PM IMPORTANT!

I'm double booked for tomorrow, I'll not be able to go with you to the 3PM meeting

Figure 3.9: Important message

• Urgent: The message is marked with an URGENT! tag in the chat thread. The user you are chatting with will be able to identify it by its red color and by the bell icon in the message. A notification is sent to the user every 2 minutes for a duration of 20 minutes:

10:57 PM URGENT! This is very important Allan Deyoung

Our final demo was anticipated one week, please make sure everything will be ready. If not let me know what need to be removed from the presentation.

Figure 3.10: Urgent message

Attach

Attach allows you to add files to a message. Files can be uploaded from your computer or your OneDrive account. The files attached from OneDrive display the path where the file is located and the ones uploaded from your computer only display the name of the file, as shown here:





Files attached to a chat thread are available in the thread itself or in the **Files** tab at the top of the **Chat** app, as in the following screenshot. The files attached from your computer to a chat are copied to your OneDrive into a folder with the name **Microsoft Teams Chat Files**. Permissions are automatically assigned, so other users in the conversation can also access the files. The **Files** tab provides you with a central view of all the files shared in a chat, so you don't have to scroll through an entire conversation thread to locate them:

Chat Recent Contacts \heartsuit		
Pinned	Conversation Files Organization Activity +	
Bianca Pisani 11:12 PM You: See you tomorrow 😒	A Share	
Allan Deyoung 11:11 PM	✓ Type Name	Shared on 👻
Sector Please have a look to the fi	Bootcamp Invite.pptx	Just now •••
Adele Vance 10:51 PM You: Here is your list of tasks fo		
Demo - Dry Run 11/11 You: What are the plans for the d	European Expansion.pptx	Just now •••
Johanna Lorenz 11/5 You: I'm running late 😐		
Suggested		
Grady Archie		

Figure 3.12: Files shared in a conversation

Bonus tip:

Images can be added inline with the text instead of as an attachment. To add an inline image, copy the image to the clipboard and then paste it when you are composing the message. The images added inline with the text will only exist in the thread and will not be copied to the OneDrive folder. If you want a copy of the image to be accessible in the OneDrive folder and the **Files** tab, you will have to attach it to the message.
Emojis

Emojis allow you to express emotions in your messages. The emoji box includes a search box, which will help you to locate the emoji you are looking for to use in the message. It also shows you the shortcut command for the emoji when you hover your mouse over the image for longer than 2 seconds, as in the following screenshot:



Figure 3.13: Emojis

Emojis on Microsoft Teams are animated and can be displayed in two different sizes. When added alongside text in a message, they are displayed as the same size as the text. When sent as an individual message, they are displayed in a bigger size, as shown here:



Figure 3.14: Emojis with different sizes

Modern operating systems have hundreds of hidden emojis for you to use. To access this *Easter egg* feature on Windows 10, press the *Windows key* + . and a new emoji menu will open, as in the following screenshot. On macOS, press *command* + *control* + the *spacebar*.



Figure 3.15: Hidden emojis

Giphy

Giphy can also be used to express emotions in your messages or to react to another user's message. Even though this is a default option on Microsoft Teams, the GIFs are provided by an external service.

Stickers

Stickers just like emojis and GIFs, allow you to react to messages. Stickers are static images that have an option for customization. Once you have selected the image you want to send, you are given the option to write your own message, as in the following screenshot:



Figure 3.16: Stickers

Schedule a Meeting

Schedule a meeting allows you to immediately schedule a meeting with the person you are chatting with without going into the calendar. The meeting is scheduled using all the options that are available in the calendar app. Once scheduled, the meeting is not added to the chat but instead goes directly into the calendar app:

New meeting \bigvee									
Title					Select a	channel to meet in			
			None	e (optional)	\sim				
Location					Invite pe	eople			
				\sim	Invite	someone			
Start		End		Repeat	Organiz	er			
Nov 16, 2019	9:00 AM	Nov 16, 2019		9:30 AM		João Ferreira			
Free: No suggestions found			() Sche	duling assistant		JoaoF@M365x419596.0	OnMicrosoft.c		
Time Zone					Attende	es			
(UTC+00:00) GMT Standard	d Time			\sim		Allan Deyoung ^{Unknown}	×		
Details									
B <i>I</i> ⊻ S	∀ <u>A</u> AA	Paragraph \vee	<u>T</u> _× ∣ <≘	·= ···					
						Close	Schedule		

Figure 3.17: New meeting

Messaging Extensions

Messaging extensions is the last option available in a chat using Microsoft Teams with the default configuration. This option allows you to configure the chat box even further by adding on extra functionalities. It also allows you to use other apps that, despite already being installed, are not displayed in the toolbar. **Praise** and **Stream** are two examples of apps that are available by default but hidden in this menu:



More apps >

Figure 3.18: Messaging extensions

Praise: Sometimes, you want to tell a member of your team how valuable they are to the organization, but you can't find the right words. This app helps you to do so by allowing you to select the type of praise you think your team member deserves. You can also type a message along with your chosen praise. This makes it easier to recognize the value of your peers. The praise is added to the chat window with a badge displayed inside an adaptive card:

Praise Send praise to people	×
Badge	То
Problem solver	Allan Deyoung
Note (optional)	
Thanks Allan for making this demo so fast	
< Back	Cancel Preview



Stream: Stream allows you to embed a video from Microsoft Stream directly into your conversation. All you need to do is copy the URL of the video and paste it into the app window. The video is added to the chat window inside an adaptive card and, before posting it, you can add a message to personalize the card. Writing a message is handy if you want to describe the content of the video and useful if you want to later locate it through the search feature:



Figure 3.20: Microsoft Stream

In Microsoft Teams, you will find more apps that can enrich the functionalities of your chat. To add more options to your chat box, do the following:

- 1. Click on the ... icon.
- 2. From the popup, select the app you want to add or click on More apps.
- 3. Type or look for the app you want to add (for example, Weather).
- 4. Click on the app you want.
- 5. The app details will pop up on the side. Click on Add:



About

Weather News + weather, Microsoft



More from Microsoft Corp.

Privacy and Permissions

Get the latest weather report

Find current weather reports for any city, zip code, or location, then share them in a channel or chat.

Messages

Insert content from the app directly into messages

Created by: Microsoft Corp. Version 1.0

More from Microsoft Corp.



Figure 3.21: Add weather messaging extension

6. The app will be added to the toolbar with its own icon, as in the following screenshot:



Figure 3.22: Weather messaging extension

When you click on the newly installed app, a popup will open and allow you to select the content (for example, the **Weather** app provides you with a search box to look for the location where you want to share the weather). The content from the app is then added to the chat thread inside an adaptive card.

Understanding message options

Each message posted in the chat app has a set of options available that you can use to manage, react to, or categorize each message. To access the message options, you will need to do the following:

- 1. Hover your mouse over the message, wait for the three dots (...) to appear, and then click on it.
- 2. A contextual menu will appear, as in the following screenshot, and you will be able to select a message option:



Figure 3.23: Message options

The contextual menu will be different for messages sent by you than for the one displayed on messages you receive. The available options are detailed in the following sections.

Saving Messages

Save this message allows you to save a message to your **Saved** list. A messaged that is saved by you is marked with a bookmark icon and is added to the **Saved** list, which means you will be able to later locate it faster from a central location.

To access your saved messages, do the following:

- 1. Click on your profile picture at the top of the Microsoft Teams client.
- 2. From the profile contextual menu, click on **Saved**.
- 3. Your saved messages will all appear in the left-side pane with a preview of each message. When you select a message, it opens up in the conversation where it happened:



Figure 3.24: Saved messages

Editing Messages

Edit is only available for the messages you send, and it allows you to modify the contents of a sent message. Each edited message is marked with a tag to let other users know that the original text was modified.

Deleting Messages

Delete is only available to you and it allows you to remove a message from a chat thread. However, it only deletes the contents of the message; the message itself will remain in the same chat position with a replacement message saying **This message has been deleted**.

Mark as Unread

Mark as unread allows you to mark messages as unread. This is handy if you need to go back to a particular message. It will be highlighted in **Teams** as unread.

Translate

Translate translates messages from different languages to your own automatically. As you can see in the following screenshot, the original message was written in Portuguese and then translated to English. Translated messages will display a language icon and, when hovered over, will show a popup telling you what the original language was:



Figure 3.25: Message translation

Immersive Reader

Immersive Reader will open up Microsoft Teams in read mode, where you will only see text, as the following screenshot shows. This option does not allow you to interact with a message. To reply or react to it, you will need to go back to regular mode. If you click on the play button, it will read the message back to you:

```
    ← contoso Finance (Audits)
    A ➡ □
    Lidia Holloway at Thursday,
    September 12, 2019 2:40 PM
    Remember that any proposal that
    ▲
```

Figure 3.26: Immersive reader

Besides being a great tool for accessibility, **Immersive Reader** also includes educational features, such as highlighting the nouns, adjectives, or verbs in a text.

Reacting to Messages

You can also react to each message you have received or sent using emojis. To use this feature, do the following:

- 1. Hover your mouse over the message until the context menu appears. Emojis will appear at the top right on the message.
- 2. Select your desired emoji.

There are six reactions available in the messages, as follows:

- Like
- Heart
- Laugh
- Surprised
- Sad
- Angry

Each message will display how many users have selected a particular emoji. The sender of the message is notified every time someone reacts to it:

Lidia Holloway 9/12 2:40 PM Remember that any proposal that we submit will need a have a new process document, Legal Process V5.5.	a thorough review from Legal. They
Legal Process V5.5.pptx	
3 replies from Pradeep and Nestor ← Reply	

Figure 3.27: Message reaction

Up to now in the chapter, we have seen the different features of the chat app and how to use them. However, chats are a bit different when used in teams, which is what we will cover in the next section.

Understanding Chats in the context of teams

Chats in the context of a team have the same functionalities as described previously. However, due to the different scope of the conversation, there are also a few other options available that will help you to communicate better and be more productive.

The chat feature is the first tab in the channel. It is called **Posts** and its position and label cannot be modified.

Each channel inside of a team starts with its own chat app, which allows you to have conversations with all of the members of a team, relating to the topic of the channel. The following section describes the special features that this app has.

Reply versus typing a new message

Unlike individual chats, where everything is displayed as an individual message, in a channel, things can quickly get out of control if everybody uses the **new message** feature.

In a channel post, each message will display a **Reply** button underneath. This is the option you should use to reply to the message.

Once you click on **Reply**, a chat text box will appear at the bottom of the screen, containing all of the options that we previously discussed, as in the following screenshot:



Figure 3.28: Reply versus new conversation

You should always reply to conversations using the **Reply** button under the message, as this way you can keep conversations organized and easier to read.

Replies made outside of the thread will lose their order and, if multiple topics are being discussed in the same channel, it will become impossible to follow the conversation.

Keep in mind that each time you start a new conversation, instead of creating a reply, your message is added to the bottom of the chat as a new conversation. In the following screenshot, the last message should have been a reply to the thread and, as you can see, it has no connection to the original conversation:



Figure 3.29: Reply versus new conversation

Making an announcement

Chats in the context of a team allow you to post announcements. Announcements are messages that allow more customization and that can be more easily identified by a user in the chat thread.

To create a new announcement, do the following:

- 1. In a team channel, click on the chat text box and then click on the first icon to expand the **compose** box.
- 2. Open the New conversation dropdown and choose Announcement:



Figure 3.30: Writing an announcement

- 3. Type a headline for the announcement.
- 4. Select a background color or background image.
- 5. Type a sub-headline.
- 6. Type your message and click on the send button.

An announcement will display a special icon on the right side and has a different format in the chat thread to give it a more distinctive look, as you can see in the following screenshot:



Figure 3.31 Announcement in the chat thread

Targeting a post's replies

When posting a message in a channel, you can define who will be able to reply to it. By default, all team members are able to reply, but you can restrict this scope by doing the following:

- 1. In a team channel, click on the chat text box and then click on the first icon to expand the compose box.
- 2. From the second dropdown, choose the audience that will be able to reply to the message. By default, everyone can reply, but you can modify it to **You and moderators can reply**:



Figure 3.32: Target post reply

Posting in multiple channels

If you need to post the same message over and over again in multiple channels, to make sure it reaches everyone, you can use the following option to help simplify the process.

To post a message in multiple channels, do the following:

- 1. In a team channel, click on the chat text box and then click on the first icon to expand the compose box.
- 2. Click on the third option in the toolbar: **Post in multiple channels**.



3. Select the channels that you want to post your message to:

Figure 3.33: Post in multiple channels

4. Type your message and send it.

A message posted in multiple channels is identified by a special icon in the chat thread to tell you that it exists in multiple locations.

If you need to monitor the replies to this message, you will need to do so in each channel that the message was posted in, as this information is not shown in a central location.

Muting a thread

If you are receiving a lot of notifications from a channel that you're not currently interested in, there is an option to mute that particular thread. To use this option, do the following:

- 1. Hover your mouse over the main message in the thread you want to mute.
- 2. Click on ... to open the context menu.

3. From the context menu, select **Turn off notifications**, as in the following screenshot:



Figure 3.34: Turn off notifications

Mentioning a user, team, or channel

Microsoft Teams allows you to mention colleagues inside a team or a group chat. When typing your message, you will need to do the following:

- 1. Type @ followed by the name of the user, team, or channel that you want to mention.
- 2. From the suggestion list, select the user:



Figure 3.35: Mention a user

When you are mentioned in a chat, the message is marked with an @ symbol, so you can easily spot it while reading the thread, as in the following screenshot:



Figure 3.36: Message indicating the user was mentioned

When a team is mentioned, everyone in the team receives a notification. When a channel is mentioned, everyone that has the channel marked as a favorite will receive a notification.

Using tags

Tags in Microsoft Teams allow you to message groups of users within a team. Tags can be added to users by the team owners or members (if allowed by the team owner in the team's settings).

To add tags to users on Microsoft Teams, do the following:

1. Next to the name of the team, click on ... and then click on Manage team:

Teams		Go to Market Plan Posts Files Wiki Product Roadmap GTM Plan Product Brochure 3 more > +	⊚ Org •••
Your teams	ital Initiative Public R	at the bottom. 3 new 4 replies from you, Miriam, and Grady ← Reply	
Gen Desi	rk 8 Project Team Ieral ign	3/15 4-52 PM Ve finished legal review of the team's proposed customer survey forms for your needs analysis, and redlined some I would suggest changing.	
Digi Go t	ital Assets Web to Market Plan	A replies from you, Adele, and Diego Add channel	
Rese Reta	earch and Developm	Add member 3/15.4/53 PM Leave the team Bowen please review the contract with Adatum. We need to approve the RFP by 4:00. Thanks! Contract with Adatum. We need to approve the RFP by 4:00. Thanks! Contract with Adatum. We need to approve the RFP by 4:00. Thanks!	0
NC4	General NC460 Sales	b Get link to team Manage tags 3/15.453 PM	
Gen	neral nthly Reports] Delete the team	
Con	itoso	. ← Reply Go to Market Plan	
8å⁺ Join	or create a team		

Figure 3.37: The Manage team menu option

- 2. Open the Members tab.
- 3. Hover your mouse over the field in the **Tags** column for the member that you want to add a tag to and click on the tag icon:

	Microsoft Teams	ď		Search or type a comma	nd		*
Activity	Teams	∇	Mark 8 Pro		@ Org		
8	Your teams Digital Initiative Public R		Members Channels Setting	is Analytics Apps			
	Mark 8 Project Team General Design Digital Assets Web Go to Market Plan	•••	Search for members Q	Title	Location	Tags ()	St Add member
	Research and Developm Retail General NC460 Sales	ment 🚺 !	MA MOD Administrator - Members and guests (17) Name	Title	Location	Tag as Type a tag name Ø Manage tags	Owner ~
	Sales and Marketing General Monthly Reports	0	20 Isaiah Langer	Sales Rep HR Manager	20/1101 14/1108		Member V X
€⊙ ≩⊞	ట్రే [*] Join or create a team	0	Irvin Sayers	Project Manager Designer	19/2106 19/2109		Member \sim \times Member \sim \times

Figure 3.38: Tagging a user

- 4. If you have tags that are already created, type the name of the tag. If you want to add a new tag, click on **Manage tag**.
- 5. In the popup, click on **Create tag**.
- 6. Type in a name for the tag and add the users that you want to add to the tag:

Create a new tag	×							
You can notify a group of people all at once by @mentioning tags.								
Tag name								
Social Media								
Add people								
禒 Alex Wilber ×								
< Back	Create							
Figure 3.39: Create a new tag								

7. Click on **Create**.

If, later on, you want to add an existing tag to another user, you just need to click on the tag icon in the list of users and, from the dropdown, select the desired tag, as in the following screenshot:

	Microsoft Teams	Nicrosoft Teams						
Activity	Teams	Y	Mark 8 Proj Mark 8 Project Team	Mark 8 Project Team ···				
ox P	Your teams Vour teams Digital Initiative Public R		Members Channels Settings	Analytics Apps				
	Mark 8 Project Team General Design Digital Assets Web Go to Market Plan		Search for members Q. Owners(2) Name Megan Bowen	Title Marketing Manager	Location	Tags. () Marketing	Add member Role Owner	
	Research and Developm Retail General NC460 Sales	ent 🚺 !	MA MOD Administrator Members and guests (17) Name	Title	Location	Tag as Truna a tan name	Owner 🗸	
	Sales and Marketing General Monthly Reports	0	Isaiah Langer	Sales Rep	20/1101	Marketing Social Media	Member 🗸 🗙	
H Apps	Contoso		Diego Siciliani	HR Manager Project Manager	14/1108	Ø Manage tags	Member V X	
() Help	診* Join or create a team	0	Grady Archie	Designer	19/2109		Member 🗸 🗙	

Figure 3.40: Tagging a user

To mention all of the users tagged in the same topic, you only need to press the @ key and select the name of the tag:

	Microsof	't Teams			Search or type a command		e
Activity	Teams		∇	Se G	Posts Files Wiki +	Org	
Chat	Your teams	al Initiative Public R		<u>0</u>	Add more people Create more channels Open the FAQ		
Calendar	Sene Gene	8 Project Team ral			Megan Bowen 3/15 4/40 PM X1050 Marking sync		
•	Desig Digita	al Assets Web			X1059 Marketing sync Occurs every work day (Mon-Fri) ©7:30 PM		
	Go to Market Plan Research and Developme		nt 🚺		€~ Reply		
	Retai			8	Suggestions		
Apps	Gene NC46	eral 50 Sales	!	2	Marketing 2 people have this tag		
? Help	୧୫ [*] Join o	r create a team	ŝ		 A≠ C © @ ₽ ₫ ▷ Ω …	⊳	

Figure 3.41: Mentioning a tag

Starting a new channel conversation from Outlook

Each channel in Microsoft Teams has its own email address, which can be used to start a new conversation in the channel. An email sent to the channel will include the body of the email and any attachments. However, if you plan on using this feature, you should be aware of the following limits:

- The maximum message size: 24 KB
- The maximum number of attachments: 20, less than 10 MB each
- The maximum number of inline images: 50

If these limits are exceeded, the message in Teams will display a link to open the original message.

To obtain a channel's email address, do the following:

- 1. Go to the channel you want to email.
- 2. Click on ... and then Get email address:



Figure 3.42: Get email address

3. Copy the email address that appears in the popup.

4. Send an email from your email client. The message should appear in the channel as follows:

	Microsoft Teams	e		
L Activity	Teams	Y	Design Posts Files Wiki Usability Priorities +	Org ••••
Teams	Your teams Digital Initiative Public R Mark 8 Project Team General Design Digital Assets Web Go to Market Plan		MOD Administrator via email 8:21 PM To Design - Mark 8 Project Team Agenda for tomorrow Download original email (1 attachment) Proposedagendatopics_1526818723.docx	
-0	Research and Developme	nt 🚺	\leftarrow Reply	
Apps	Retail		Start a new conversation. Type @ to mention someone.	
? Help	ະວີ ⁺ Join or create a team	ŝ	A₂ ⊘ ⊙ @ ♀ ⊙ № ♀ …	⊳

Figure 3.43: Message sent by email

In this section, you gained an overview of all the major chat features included in Microsoft Teams. Keep what you have learned in this chapter in mind while using Teams to make sure you follow best practices as you do so.

Summary

In this chapter, you have learned how to use Microsoft Teams to chat with your peers in multiple contexts.

A written message can be much more than a simple piece of text. This chapter has demonstrated how we can use Microsoft Teams to communicate better and improve efficiency when carrying out daily tasks.

In the next chapter, you will learn how to use Microsoft Teams' calling functionality and about other tools that you can use to complement everything you have learned so far.

4 How to Use Microsoft Teams – Meetings and Live Events

The evolution of the different web technologies and the increment of speed in terms of network connections is changing the way we all consume information and the way we all work.

The web is no longer a place where you can only find written content; more and more people are looking for video content since it is easier to consume and understand what is being explained.

This chapter covers the media functionalities of Microsoft Teams in terms of meetings and live events and explains all the main features. This will help you to decide when to use each of them. In this chapter, we are going to cover the following main topics:

- How to schedule a meeting
- Available options during a meeting
- How to schedule a live event
- What are live event profiles?
- Available options during a live event

Meetings in Microsoft Teams

As a substitute for Skype for Business, Microsoft Teams has a lot of calling and meeting functionalities that extend communication to a new level in a modern workplace.

A meeting in Microsoft Teams can start spontaneously by just clicking on a button. It can also be planned ahead of time and scheduled by generating a meeting request that can be sent to other participants.

In the following section, you will learn how to schedule a meeting and how to use all the options to get the best out of the media functionalities of Microsoft Teams.

How to schedule a Microsoft Teams meeting

Meetings can be scheduled directly from the Microsoft Teams application or from the desktop version of Microsoft Outlook if the Teams add-on has been installed on your computer and allowed by your administrator.

To schedule a meeting from Microsoft Teams, do the following:

- 1. Open the **Calendar**. The app is available in the App Bar.
- 2. Click on the purple icon that says New meeting:



Figure 4.1: New meeting

- 3. On the form, fill in the following details for your meeting:
 - (a) **Title**: The title of the meeting.
 - (b) **Location**: The location for the meeting. You will be able to pick a meeting room or type a location in.
 - (c) Start: Start time.
 - (d) **End**: End time.
 - (e) **Repeat**: Make this a recurrent event. If you select this option, you will have the possibility to define the meeting's recurrence.
 - (f) **Time Zone**: In a multi-geo workplace, it is important to define the time zone. Users who are invited to the meeting in other time zones will see the time converted into their own location's time automatically.
 - (g) **Details**: This field is ideal for providing information about the meeting so that anyone can prepare for it before joining.
 - (h) Channel: Select the team and the channel where the meeting will occur.
 - (i) Attendees: Add attendees to the meeting:

Ē	New meeting Details Scheduling Assistant		Save Close								
Time	zone: (UTC+00:00) Dublin, Edinburgh, Lisbon, London	~									
Ø	Add title										
Q¢	Add required attendees										
	Optional: Add optional attendees										
Ē	Mar 30, 2020 6:30 PM ~										
	Mar 30, 2020 7:00 PM $ \lor $ 30m	 All day 									
Ø	Does not repeat V										
	Add channel										
0	Add location										
Ξ	B I U S ∀ A AA Paragraph	$\vee \underline{I}_{\mathbf{x}} \mid \in \rightarrow \in \blacksquare \blacksquare \mid$									
	Type details for this new meeting										

Figure 4.2: Scheduling form

4. Before scheduling the meeting, you can use the scheduling assistant to avoid meeting overlaps. If everything is OK, click on **Schedule**.

Alternatively, you can start a meeting spontaneously without scheduling it. To do so, you just need to click on the **Meet now** button in the Calendar app, and once the meeting has started, you will be able to add other participants.

Meetings can also be scheduled or started from a team context. If you want to have a meeting with all the members of a team or want to discuss a subject that is being handled by the team, it makes sense to schedule it directly from the team. This will create the meeting and keep all the meeting assets centralized in the team space, making it easier to access the information.

To schedule a meeting directly from a team, do the following:

- 1. Open the team and the channel where you want to have a meeting.
- 2. Click on the Meet now option located in the text bar:



Figure 4.3: Meeting from the channel

3. A configuration pane will expand, as shown in the following screenshot. Here, you will have the option to add a subject to the meeting and to **Meet now** or **Schedule a meeting**. If you choose to schedule a meeting, a popup will open with the same options we saw when we scheduled a meeting from the Calendar app:



Figure 4.4: Scheduling a meeting from the channel

4. If you select **Meet now**, you will have the option to invite members from the team once the meeting has started. Each invited member will receive a notification on the app to join the meeting.

If you are replying to emails or checking your calendar in Outlook and have the need to schedule a meeting, there is an add-in that allows you to send out the meeting request without the need to switch to the Microsoft Teams context.

To schedule a meeting from Microsoft Outlook, do the following:

- 1. On Microsoft Outlook, open the Calendar app.
- 2. On the top bar, click on **New Teams Meeting**, as highlighted in the following screenshot:

6														@handsontek.net -	Outlook						
File		Ho	me	1	iend	I / R	eceive	Fol	ler	View	w 🛛 Tell me	e what	you want to e	lo							
New Appoint	v me	ent M Ne	Nes leet	v ing l	Ne	W 15 *	New Mer Skype	Skype eting Meeting	New Me Teams	Tea etin Mei	ms Today N g Go To	lext 7 Days	Day Work Week	Week Month Schedule View	Open Calendar • Manage C	Calendar Groups - Calendars	E-mail Calendar	Search F	leople ress Book		^
4		De	cen	ber	2019	9	*	<		Þ	Dec 1 -	7		Porto	- 🌞 Te	oday	Search Cale	ndar (Ctrl+E)	6		P
S	JN	10	ru i	WE	TH	FR	SA								5	7°F/46°F		-			
2	4 3	25	26	27	28	29	30				SUN	M	DN	TUE	WED	TH	U	FRI	SA	Т	
	1	2	3	4	5	6	7				1	2		3	4	5		6	7		
3	8	9	10	11	12	13	14														
1	5	16	17	18	19	20	21														
2	z :	23	24	25	26	27	28		10.03							-					
2	9 :	30	31						10												
		1	anua	sry 2	020																
S	JN	10	TU I	WE	TH	FR	SA		11												
				1	2	3	4														
	5	6	7	8	9	10	11		12 ^{Ph}	e.											
1	2	13	14	15	16	17	18		1.60												
1	9 7	20	21	22	23	24	25									- 3					
2	6 7	27	28	29	30	31	1		1												
	2	3	4	5	6	7	8														
M		m	5	5	E	3			2					-			~				
Items: 5								-		1		-	All fold	ers are up to date. C	onnected to: M	licrosoft Exc	hange	III	1	+ 1	100%

Figure 4.5: Scheduling a meeting from Outlook

- 3. Type in the emails of the users you want invite to the meeting.
- 4. Type in the subject.
- 5. Select the location.
- 6. Select the date.
- 7. Personalize the meeting request if needed and click **Send**.

Note

Scheduling a meeting from Outlook doesn't give you the option to select a channel.

Each user that's added to the meeting request will receive an email with the link for the meeting. Users will be able to join the meeting either by clicking on the link in the meeting request or by clicking on the meeting in the Calendar app on Microsoft Teams.

How to customize Microsoft Teams meeting requests

Branding is one the most important aspects in the enterprise world. A company logo tells a lot about a business, and Microsoft Teams has taken this into consideration.

Teams allow us to customize meeting requests in such way that every time you invite someone external to the organization, they can be easily identified if we look at the logo of their organization or company. Also, by adding the company logo, you are creating brand awareness.

To customize the meeting requests for your organization, do the following:

Note

The following steps are only available for Microsoft Teams administrators.

- Open Microsoft Teams admin center. You can do this by opening the Microsoft 365 Admin Center and then choosing Teams or by simply opening the following URL: https://admin.teams.microsoft.com
- 2. On the left panel, select Meetings and then Meeting Settings.
- 3. In the **Email invitation** section, you have the option to customize four fields related to your meeting requests:

	Microsoft Teams admin center			٥	۲	?	-
බ	⊒	Anonymous users can join a meeting	C On				
원음의	Teams ~	Email invitation					
- & ⊙	Devices \checkmark Locations \checkmark	Customize meeting invitations sent to people that can in statements for privacy or security and phone numbers for	clude your organization's logo, specific URLs and custom footers r technical support. ①	that ca	n include	9	
88 #2	Users	Logo URL	https://handsontek.net/images/hot250.png				
	Meeting policies	Legal URL	https://handsontek.net/legal				
	Meeting settings	Help URL	https://handsontek.net/help				
Ę	Live events policies Live events settings Messaging policies	Footer Preview invite	João Ferreira Microsoft MVP				
69 (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1)	Teams apps × Voice × Analytics & reports ×	Network Set up how you want to handle Teams meetings real-tim	e media traffic (audio, video and screen sharing) that flow across	your ne	twork. (D	

Figure 4.6: Email customization form

These four fields are as follows:

- (a) **Logo URL**: The URL where the logo is stored. You will need to publicly host the logo yourself. The logo format must be JPG with the dimensions 188 x 30 pixels.
- (b) **Help URL**: Use this to add a URL where people can get help if something doesn't work as expected with the meeting.
- (c) **Legal URL**: If your organization has a legal website where you want people to go to if they have legal concerns, enter the URL in this field.
- (d) Footer: Small text that is displayed at the bottom of your meeting request.

4. Click on **Preview invite** to make sure it looks as you expect:

HANDS ON tek
Join Microsoft Teams Meeting
+1 234-567-8901 Country or region, City (Toll)
Conference ID: 123 456 78#
Local numbers Reset PIN Learn more about Teams
Help Legal
João Ferreira Microsoft MVP

Figure 4.7: Customized meeting request

5. If everything is OK, scroll to the bottom of the page and click Save.

The customization options will not be available immediately. You will have to wait about an hour to see that it has been added to new meeting requests. This customization will be added to all meeting requests, irrespective of the place where they were created.

What are the available options during a meeting?

Now that you know how to schedule a meeting, it is time to learn more about the meeting interface and the available options you will find. The following screenshot shows all the main meeting components, numbered from 1 to 7.

Before joining the meeting, you will have the option to set up the devices that you will use to interact with the other participants; namely, your webcam, microphone, or other audio and video devices you may have in your environment:



Figure 4.8: Meeting setup options

Let's take a look at the available components and what they do:

- 1. **Video preview**: In this area, you will be able to preview how the image of your webcam will look to the other participants.
- 2. **Webcam toggle**: Video is not mandatory during a Microsoft Teams meeting but if you have a webcam, I recommend that you use it. By default, it is turned on, but this option allows you to turn it off.
- 3. **Blur background**: This option is only available when the webcam is on and if supported by the hardware of your computer. It adds a blur effect to the background, focusing just on the person in the video. Alternatively, you can select a background image that will replace your entire background. This is particularly handy if you want to hide the elements in the room or open workspace where you are having the meeting. We will see more on this later on in this chapter.

- 4. **Microphone toggle**: Like the webcam, the microphone is not mandatory if you are joining a meeting just to listen. Make sure you turn off the mic. By default, it is on. Microsoft Teams automatically turns off the mic if four participants are already in the meeting. This behavior can be overwritten and you can turn it back on.
- 5. **Device settings**: This option allows you to select the devices you want to use during the call. If you have multiple speakers, microphones, or webcams connected to your computer, you will be able to select the ones you want to use in this menu. From here, you will also be able to perform a test call to make sure everything is configured properly so that you can join the call and interact with the other participants without any issues. This option might have different names; it may show your device name or it may say **Custom Setup** if you have customized the hardware to use:



Figure 4.9: Meeting custom setup

- 6. **Other join options**: There are a few other options you can configure when joining a meeting that are available in this bottom section:
 - (a) **Audio off**: This option prevents echo if there is already a device with a microphone turned on in the room.
 - (b)**Phone audio**: If the organizer of the meeting has a Microsoft 365 Audio Conferencing license, you will be able to join the call using a phone number.
 - (c) Add a room: If you are in a Microsoft Teams room with certified devices for Microsoft Teams, you can add them to the meeting using this option. Typically, rooms are added using Bluetooth, so make sure you have it on your computer. A room usually includes a big screen, a wide camera, and ambient microphones so that everyone can participate without using their own devices/computers.
- 7. **Join now**: Once you have your environment prepared for the meeting, click on this button to join.

Meeting options

Now that you know how to prepare your own device to join a meeting, it is time to learn what the available options are once you are in the call.

During meetings, participants can assume two different roles:

- **Presenter**: A presenter has the option to share content, take control of a presentation or control the microphones of all participants, remove people from the meeting, or accept participants from the lobby.
- **Attendee**: An attendee is not able to share content. The attendee is able to interact with other members but will not be able to manage any of the meeting settings.

With these two profiles in mind, let's see what the interface looks like to them, depending of the actions they are taking during the meeting.

The following screenshot represents the view for presenters and attendees. It has all the main meeting options highlighted:



Figure 4.10: Meeting layout with options

Let's take a look at these options:

- 1. **Personal meeting controls**: This toolbar allows you to control the meeting at a personal level and displays the options according to the user profile during the meeting.
- 2. **Bottom pane**: This section can assume different behaviors, depending on what is being shared in the meeting. If someone is presenting, you will be able to see the attendees at a glance by the order in which they have joined the meeting. If no one is presenting during the meeting, you will be able to see your webcam image if you have it turned on. You will also be able to switch between webcams if the device you are using has more than one installed. The switch camera button appears at the top of your image as an overlay.

3. **Presenting area**: This section also assumes different behaviors if someone is presenting the content being displayed in this section; otherwise, it is used to display the images of the participants, regardless of whether they are using a webcam. The following screenshot displays the different behaviors assumed by the bottom pane and by the presenting area:



Figure 4.11: Meeting layout without content being presented

4. **Right pane**: The right pane is used to display all the participants or to allow people to participate in the written conversation during the meeting.

Bonus tip

When you join a meeting, Microsoft Teams changes its theme and displays everything in black. This is a visual way for you to identify that a meeting is occurring.
Personal meeting controls

The personal meeting controls are worth a closer look, and the following section explains all the available options and actions you can take from it. Each option is highlighted and, when necessary, is identified in terms of which profile it is available from:



Figure 4.12: Personal meeting controls

Let's take a look at these options:

- 1. **Meeting duration**: This counter indicates the duration of the meeting. When hovered over, it displays the name of the meeting.
- 2. **Camera switch**: You can turn the webcam on or off at any time during a meeting using this option.
- 3. **Microphone switch**: Like the camera, the microphone can be turned on or off whenever you want during a meeting. This option is particularly handy if you need to have side conversations during a meeting. This way, your background noise will not disrupt the other participants.
- 4. **Share**: This allows you to share content in the presenting area with all the other participants. You can share your screen, applications, or even documents. This option is not available to attendees; only presenters have the option to share content in the meeting. You can find more information about the sharing features in the next section, *Sharing content during a meeting*.

5. **More actions**: This option gives you access to more personal options that allow you to control extra meeting options. These extra options are displayed in a submenu that opens when the user clicks on this button. These options are explained in the following points, from numbers 6 to 14:



Figure 4.13: More actions menu

- 6. **Incoming video switch**: This option turns off any incoming video from other participants. It comes in handy when you have the need to free bandwidth on your network connection.
- 7. **Recording**: This option allows you to record a video of the meeting. Everything shared by any participant will be on the final video. You can find more information about the meeting recordings in the *Managing meeting recordings* section.
- 8. **Keypad**: During a meeting, if you have a need to dial a number, you can do so from this numeric keypad.
- 9. Live captions: Live captions translate anything that is being said by the other participants. Live captions appear at the bottom of the presenting area.

10. **Background blur switch**: Using video during a meeting is always a plus, but sometimes, the place where you are is not ideal or you simply don't want to share what is behind you. The blur option gives you the possibility to blur the background to hide everything except the person. In the following screenshot, you can see what it looks like with this option on and off:



Figure 4.14: Background blur

As an alternative, and instead of bluring the background, you can select one of the availabe photos in the application that will replace your entire backgroud. The option to select the blur option or the image becomes available when you toggle the blur switch:



Figure 4.15: Background image

- 11. Enter full screen: This option maximizes the content of your call and removes all the window bars and menus, leaving just the call options.
- 12. Show meeting details: The meeting details option provides information related to the meeting, such as the subject, schedule, dial-in options, and also the possibility to copy the link to join to the clipboard.
- 13. Show meeting notes: This option is very handy and allows you to take notes during the meeting. The notes are stored in the meeting context and can be visualized by any participant at any given time. The notes option appears on the right pane and when they are created, a message is posted in the chat to let the other participants know that notes were created. To find out more about the meeting notes, read the *Managing meeting notes* section.
- 14. **Show device settings**: If you have the need to modify the device settings during a meeting, you can use this option. From the right pane, you will be able to manage microphone and camera settings.
- 15. **Show conversation**: This option makes the conversation visible on the right pane. From here, you will be able to interact using text with the other participants.
- 16. **Show participants**: From this option, you will be able to see all the participants in a list format. If you are a presenter, you will have extra options, namely, the possibility to promote an attendee to presenter, to make a presenter an attendee, or to mute participants. You will also be able to add or remove participants.
- 17. Hang up: This option will disconnect you from the call.

Sharing content during a meeting

Sharing content during a call is one of the best options when using the meeting functionality on Microsoft Teams. It can be used to present a PowerPoint Presentation , to share a screen, or even to perform remote assistance using the remote control functionality.

To share content during a meeting, you must be a presenter. Attendees do not have the possibility to share. As a presenter, in order to share content with other participants during a meeting:

Click on the share button (marked as 1 in the following screenshot) in the meeting toolbar.

A menu will appear at the bottom of the screen, where you will have the option to select what content you want to share, as shown in the following screenshot:



Figure 4.16: Sharing content

This functionality gives you the possibility to share content from different sources, such as the following:

- **Include system audio**: Optionally, you can include your system audio by checking this box.
- **Desktop**: Shares everything you are seeing on your desktop with the other participants. While sharing your desktop, a red rectangle is added to your screen to tell you the content is being shared.

When a desktop is being shared, there is an option to request remote control. If you are in a meeting and want to request remote control over the presenter desktop, you will need to click the button highlighted in the following screenshot:



Figure 4.17: Request control button

The presenter needs to accept the remote control request by clicking **Allow** in the message that appears at the top of the stage area:





- Window: If you do not want to share everything, you have the option to select just one window. This allows you to open other widows without sharing its content. When you open another window as a presenter, the other participants in the call will continue to see the window you shared initially, even though it's covered by other windows in your screen.
- **PowerPoint**: If you have a PowerPoint presentation to share during the meeting, you can do so directly from Microsoft Teams without opening the PowerPoint application. PowerPoint files can be shared from three different locations, as shown in the following screenshot:





- (a) **Browse Teams and Channels** : This option allows you to select a PowerPoint file that is stored in one of the teams or channels that you have access to.
- (b) **OneDrive**: If the PowerPoint Presentation is not stored in the Teams context but it is on your personal OneDrive, you can select it using this option.
- (c) **Upload from my computer**: If the presentation is local to your computer, you can upload it to be shared using this option.

By default, all meeting participants are able to interact with the PowerPoint Presentation being shared:

(a) Presenters are able to take control and change the PowerPoint slides. The following screenshot displays the presentation controls for all the second presenters. The PowerPoint controllers are only displayed when the user hovers over the presentation:





As a main presenter, you can block the option for others to change the slides. The following screenshot displays the controls for the main presenter. The option to block slide interaction from other attendees is highlighted and is represented by an eye icon:



Figure 4.21: PowerPoint presenter controls

This option does not block the possibility for other presenters to take control. Every time someone takes presentation control, the main presenter is notified by a message displayed at the top of the presenting area, with the possibly for them to take control back again:



Figure 4.22: Taking presentation control back

At any given time during the presentation, you can also take control back by clicking the take back control button in the presentation controls.

(b) Attendees are able to change the slides if the presenter hasn't blocked that feature. The following screenshot displays the default controls for attendees. When the presenter locks the option to change the slide, an attendee will only see the number of the slide without the navigation arrows.



Figure 4.23: Limited presentation controls

• Whiteboard: Whiteboard allows you to take handwritten notes or draw during a meeting while everyone is watching it. The following screenshot displays the Whiteboard application with some handwritten content on it:



Figure 4.24: Whiteboard

To get the best out of the sharing features of Microsoft Teams, it is recommended that you use the client version, even though Google Chrome and Edge Chromium are able to support the sharing functionality. If you use the browser, you will lose the option to share individual windows.

Managing meeting recordings

All the meetings you have on Microsoft Teams, with or without sharing content, have the possibility to be recorded. When a recording starts, all the participants are notified and a red icon is displayed next to the meeting clock to inform everyone that the meeting is being recorded, as shown in the following screenshot:



Figure 4.25: Meeting bar with the recording information

The participants are notified with a recording disclaimer, as shown in the following screenshot:

You're recording Let everyone know that they're being recorded.	Privacy policy	Dismiss	

Figure 4.26: Recording notification

Even when the meeting is done only using audio, the recording is done in a video format and is hosted right after the meeting in a cloud service called Microsoft Stream.

Note that all meeting recordings are made in the cloud and the person that starts it doesn't need to remain in the meeting.

The meeting recording can be found in the meeting chat or in Microsoft Stream. To get the meeting recording from the Teams context, do the following:

- 1. Click on Chat.
- 2. In the recent list, select the meeting you want to get a record of.

3. Look for it in the **Chat** section. It will look similar to what is displayed in the following screenshot:



Figure 4.27: Recording post

4. To watch the recording, you just need to click on the video thumbnail and a popup will open with it.

To access the meeting recordings using Microsoft Stream, you need to do the following:

- 1. Open Microsoft Stream in the browser.
- 2. On the menu, click on **My content** and then **Meetings**.

3. All the meetings that you have recorded or that have been shared with you will be visible in this section, as shown in the following screenshot:

::: Stream			4 ¹ ©	? 🧊
	+ Create 🗸 🔎 Search		₹	ନ୍ 😳
Videos Groups Channels Meetings	Watchlist Followed channels	Recycle bin		
Search for videos Sort by	State	Privacy		
Search for videos Upload date		✓ All		\sim
Name	Stats	Uploaded View	Actions	
Daily Meeting (3) 03:41	0⊚ 0♡ 0⊽	07/01/2020 8,	틔 다 ⊘	

Figure 4.28: Recording on Microsoft Stream

Once the record is available, you will have access to a set of actions that will help you share the video with colleagues who were not able to attend the meeting.

To provide the best experience to people watching the recording, it is recommended that you edit the settings of the video and the metadata. To do so, you will need to click on the pencil icon under the **Actions** section. From there, you will get access to four main groups of options that you can use to make sure the recording reflects exactly what you want and that everyone watching it gets the right message. Let's take a look at what these four options are:



Figure 4.29: Managing a recording with Microsoft Stream

The following is an explanation of these options:

- 1. **Main actions**: In this section, you will be able to download the video locally to your computer, delete it for all the users if the recording is no longer relevant, or replace the video with another video file. The replace option is handy, especially when something went wrong with the original recording. This way, you will be able to replace it and people will be able to access the meeting content after it has occurred.
- 2. **Details**: By default, the details section only has the name filled in, and it inherits the name of the meeting. In this section, you are able to modify the name, add a description, and select the video language. The video language is a useful setting. Once it has been defined, it will generate a caption file automatically, making your video easy to find.
- 3. **Permissions**: By default, all the meeting participants inside your organization will have access to the video, but if you want to have fine control, you can by sharing it globally or restricting access to a certain group of people.

Note

Participants who are external to the organization will not have access to the video recording, even though it becomes visible in the meeting chat. This is caused by a current limitation of Microsoft Stream that only works with accounts that belong to the same organization. As a workaround, to share a video with external members, you can download the mp4 video file of the recording and store it inside a Team document library where external users have access.

4. **Options**: This section allows you to enhance the experience of the video. The **People** option creates a timeline showing who is presenting the video. This option also allows the viewer to jump to specific points where each person appears. From this section, you can also enable or disable the social interaction in the video by enabling or disabling the comments. Finally, you can upload your own subtitles, if necessary, to provide a transcript of the video in several languages.

Microsoft Stream also provides an editing feature that is handy for trimming Microsoft Teams recordings. To edit the final videos of your meetings, do the following:

- Open Microsoft Stream in the browser by going to https://web. microsoftstream.com/.
- 2. On the menu, click on **My content** and then **Meetings**.

- 3. Under the actions, click on
- 4. In the submenu, click on Trim Video:



Figure 4.30: Trim video

- 5. Drag and drop the left and right selectors to define the beginning and the end of the video.
- 6. Once you are happy with the result, click **Apply**. The original video will be replaced by the new shortest version.

Note

Microsoft Stream does not allow you to split a video and create a final video using multiple subsections of the original video. To do something like that, you will need to download the video, edit it using a third-party tool, and replace the original video with the new one. The meeting recordings always start with a screen displaying information related to the meetings and the video itself. On the first frames of the video, you will see the title of the meeting, the date, including the time zone, the name of the organizer, and the name of the presenter who clicked on the record button, as shown in the following screenshot:



Figure 4.31: Meeting recording start screen

How to take meeting notes

Meeting notes are always available during a meeting. However, they are not immediately visible when the meeting starts. To take notes, do the following:

- 1. During the meeting, click on the three dots (...) in the Personal meeting control bar.
- 2. In the submenu, click on Show meeting notes.

3. By default, the notes are displayed in the right pane, as shown in the following screenshot, but you can make them fullscreen if you click on the **View notes tab** link:



Figure 4.32: Notes during a meeting

Managing meeting notes, files, and whiteboards

During a meeting, you can share or produce different types of content, namely notes, files, or whiteboards. Each add value to the meeting, not just when it is occurring, but also once it finishes as all this material continues to be available so that it can be consulted in the context of the meeting where it was produced or shared.

To open a meeting and access the content produced during a Teams meeting, you can use the recent section in the chat app, as we saw previously, or you can use the search feature. Once you've found the desired meeting and clicked on it, you will get access to all its contents, including the chat.

The following screenshot shows all the meeting tabs that give you access to the assets highlighted. Each of the tabs will display the corresponding content on the stage area and you will be able to modify or share it with someone else:





Meetings on the mobile app

If you are on the go and need to attend a Microsoft Teams meeting, you can do so using the mobile app on your phone. The meeting options are not the same ones you have when joining using the computer, but you will still be able to interact with the other participants and see all the content being shared.

To join a meeting using the mobile version of Teams, you need to do the following:

- 1. Open Teams and tap Calendar.
- 2. From the agenda, choose the meeting you want to attend and tap Join.
- 3. Once connected, to get access to the meeting controls, you can tap anywhere on the screen.

Even though the screen is smaller, most of the options that you can find in the desktop version are just one tap away. The following screenshots highlight the features available when using a mobile phone to attend a meeting:



Figure 4.34: Microsoft Teams meeting mobile view

These features are as follows:

- 1. Turn on/off the video using your cellphone cameras.
- 2. Mute/Unmute yourself.
- 3. Add people to the meeting.
- 4. Access the chat and share files.
- 5. To view the content being shared, you can pinch to zoom in/out.
- 6. Take control of a PowerPoint presentation.
- 7. Share your mobile phone screen.

When sharing your screen from a mobile device, a red rectangle will be added to identify the area being shared. At any given time, you can open other apps without disconnecting the call. The Microsoft Teams mobile app will continue to record everything on the screen. The following screenshot illustrates what mobile sharing looks like to other participants in the call using the desktop version of Teams:



Figure 4.35: Sharing screen from the Microsoft Teams mobile app

Occasionally, meetings go over the scheduled time or you simply have a schedule conflict and cannot be on the computer for the entire meeting. Microsoft Teams has a built-in feature to help you with scenarios like this, which allows you to switch from the desktop to your mobile device so that you can continue the meeting with no downtime and work on the go. To transfer meetings between devices, do the following:

- 1. While connected to the meeting on your computer, open Microsoft Teams on your phone and tap the **Calendar**.
- 2. At the top of the app, you will see a message with a **Join** button and a message stating **Join to share content from this device**, as shown in the following screenshot. Tap the **Join** button:

23:12 月間 6 日	<u>አ</u> ፈኳ ድመ
Landing page presentation	n this device
\equiv Calendar	Q
Today	
Landing page presen 23:30 - 8 Jan, 00:00 Microsoft Teams Meeting	tation Join
Tomorrow	Jan 08
No meetings	
Thursday	
No meetings	
Friday	Jan 10
No meetings	
Saturday	
No meetings	
Sunday	Jan 12
No meetings	
Monday	13
Activity Chat	ද්රීපී 🛄 认 reams Calendar Calls
4	•

Figure 4.36: Joining a meeting from the Microsoft Teams mobile app

3. Disconnect from the meeting on your computer and you are good to go!

Managing meetings as an admin

Some of the meeting options described in this chapter can be controlled by the admin and might not be available for everyone in the organization. This section covers what you need to know about meetings from the administrator's perspective.

Meeting features are managed through policies and can be applied to users individually. This means that you can enable different features for different users. To manage existent meeting policies or create new ones, do the following:

- 1. Open **Microsoft Teams admin center.** You can do this by opening the Microsoft 365 Admin Center and then choosing Teams or by simply going to the following URL: https://admin.teams.microsoft.com
- 2. On the left menu, click on **Meetings** and then **Meeting policies**:

	Microsoft Teams admin cer	ter	¢1	ŵ	?	JF
බ සෳ &	■ Dashboard Teams V Devices V	Meeting policies Meeting policies are used to control what features are available to users when they join Microsoft Teams meetings. You can use the Global (Org-wide default) policy and customize it or create one or more custom meeting policies for people that host meetings in your organization. Learn more				
3 80 111	Locations ~ Users Meetings ^ Conference bridges	MEETING POLICIES SUMMARY USER STATISTICS 6 0 Default policies Custom policies 25 Default policies				
	Meeting policies Meeting settings Live events policies Live events settings	+ Add / Edit Duplicate Delete Reset Global policy R ^R Manage users 6 items Q Name 1 Custom policy Global (Org-wide default) No	Search		٢	
E 88 100 100	Messaging policies Teams apps ~ Voice ~ Policy packages	AllOn No RestrictedAnonymousAcce No AllOff No				
	Analytics & reports Org-wide settings Planning	RestrictedAnonymousNoR No Kiosk No				

Figure 4.37: Meeting policies

3. To create a new policy, click on **Add**. To manage an existing one, click on one of the policy's names.

- 4. Each policy is defined by a name, a description, and a bunch of settings that are divided into four different groups that allow you to turn on/off meeting features. The following screenshots illustrate each of the groups and their respective features. Let's take a look:
- **General**: In this group, you will find the general settings for the meeting related to scheduling:





• Audio and video: In this group, you will find settings related to the audio and video that are used during a Teams meeting:



Figure 4.39: Audio and video options

• **Content sharing**: In this group, you will find settings for the different types of content that can be used during a Teams meeting that are held in your organization:

Screen sharing mode	Entire screen V
Allow a participant to give or request control	On
Allow an external participant to give or request control	• Off
Allow PowerPoint sharing	On On
Allow whiteboard (1)	On On
Allow shared notes 🗊	On On

Figure 4.40: Content sharing options

• **Participants and guests**: In this group, you will find participant and guest settings that allow you to control access to Teams meetings:

Let anonymous people start a meeting (i)	Off Off
Automatically admit people ③	Everyone \vee
Allow dial-in users to bypass the lobby 🛈	On
Allow Meet now in private meetings	On
Enable live captions	Disabled but the organizer can override $\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \$
Allow chat in meetings	Enabled \checkmark

Figure 4.41: Participant's options

Each newly created policy needs to be applied to users to take effect. To apply a new policy to an existing user, do the following:

- 1. Once in the **Microsoft Teams admin center**, click on **Users**, located in the left menu.
- 2. Select the users you want to apply the new policy to.
- 3. Click on Edit settings.
- 4. Change the desired policy, as shown in the following screenshot:

	hands on B.	net	Microso	oft Teams admin center	ii.			
		=						Edit settings
ŵ			Use	rs				You can assign policies to one or more people in your organization. At most, you can select 20000 users at one time. Learn more
502			You car	n manage audio conferenc	ing settings, the policies assigne	d to them, phone numbers and	other features for	
\$		1	adding	or deleting users, changin	g passwords or assigning license	es. Learn more	r other user settings	Policies
۲		1						Meeting policy
-			0 8	Edit settings				Global (Org-wide default)
曲		~						Global (Org-wide default)
		_		Display name	Usemame	Phone number	Location	AllOff
68				Office Mac	officemac@handsonsp.	on	Portugal	AllOn
			*				Portugal	Kiosk
				Francisca Peixoto	Francisca@handsonsp.c	an	Portugal	RestrictedAnonymousAccess
<i>3</i> 1				Francisco Tabuaço	Francisco@handsonsp.	on	Portugal	

Figure 4.42: Appling a meeting policy to users

5. Click on Save.

We have now understood how to create, schedule, and customize meetings. In the next section, we will see how to set up an audio conference in Microsoft Teams meetings.

Audio Conferencing

Audio Conferencing is an add-on to Microsoft Teams that allow users to join meetings by dialing a number from their phones. This feature is included with the Office 365 E5 plan, but on Office 365 E1 and E3, it is sold separately.

Audio Conferencing comes in handy in a variety of scenarios, such as the following:

- When the meeting is audio only.
- The user doesn't have access to a computer or a mobile phone with the Microsoft Teams app installed.
- The network bandwidth is not good enough for audio to be used.

The custom license for Audio Conferencing is only necessary for those users who will schedule meetings. Users attending meetings are not required to have the same license.

Note

```
Audio Conferencing is not available in all countries. To check if it is available
in your region, go to https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/
microsoftteams/country-and-region-availability-
for-audio-conferencing-and-calling-plans/country-
and-region-availability-for-audio-conferencing-
and-calling-plans.
```

When a user has an Audio Conferencing license assigned to them, the meeting request that's sent for any meeting will include the dial-in details, as shown in the following screenshot:

Join Microsoft Teams Meeting

+1 437-703-4268 Canada, Toronto (Toll)

Conference ID: 607 334 911#

Local numbers Reset PIN Learn more about Teams Meeting options

Figure 4.43: Meeting request with dial-in options

The meeting request will show a default number, but the participant has the ability to use a local number. The list of local numbers is available through the **Local numbers** link in the meeting request. Once a participant dials the phone number, they will be asked to introduce the conference ID so that they can be connected to the correct meeting.

Audio Conferencing for administrators

Audio Conferencing might require configuration from the Microsoft Teams administrator in order to get the call information in the meeting requests. In this section, you will find basic instructions that will help you get started with the Audio Conferencing and conferencing bridge configurations.

To configure Audio Conferencing, do the following:

- 1. Open the Microsoft 365 Admin Center.
- 2. In the left navigation bar, go to Voice and then Phone numbers.
- 3. Click on **Add**. The options beyond this point might be different, depending on the country you select. The following screenshot includes the fields for Portugal.
- 4. Provide an order name and a friendly description.
- 5. Select your country.
- 6. Select the number type. Microsoft Teams uses different number types, depending on how you plan to use them in your organization:
 - (a) **Call queue (Toll)**: These are service numbers that are used when you are creating a call queue and will be used on resource accounts.
 - (b) **Call queue (Toll Free)**: These are service numbers that are used when you are creating a call queue and will be used on resource accounts.
 - (c) **Auto attendant (Toll)**: These are service numbers that are used when you are creating an auto attendant and will be assigned to a resource account.
 - (d) **Auto attendant (Toll Free)**: These are service numbers that are used when you are creating an auto attendant and will be assigned to a resource account.
 - (e) **Dedicated conference bridge (Toll)**: These are service numbers that are used on conference bridges so that users can dial in to meetings.
 - (f) **Dedicated conference bridge (Toll Free)**: These are service numbers that are used on conference bridges so that users can dial in to meetings.

7. Fill in all the other options in the form, as shown in the following screenshot:

	🔀 Contoso Electronics	Microsoft Teams admin center			Ĺ) 🕸	?	JF
≡	Phone numbers \ Get phone numbers							
ŵ		Meeting number						
දීරී	Select location and quantity							
٨	Get numbers	Lisbon Office						
٢	Confirmation	Location and quantity						
දී		Country or region						
Ē		Portugal	~					
Ę		Number type 🛈						
BŶ		Dedicated conference bridge (Toll)	~					
ବ		City						
¢		Lisbon						
Â		Area code ()	~					
		Quantity 🕕						
ĩ≣		1		100 REMAINING	99.0%			
S								
Ø		Next				C	ancel	

Figure 4.44: New meeting number

- 8. Click on **Next** and wait for a number to be assigned to you.
- 9. If everything looks OK with your number, click on **Place order**. You have 10 minutes to do this, after which the number will return to the pool of available numbers:

	윉 Contoso Electronics	Microsoft Teams admin center	٥	۲	?	JF
Ξ	Phone numbers \ Get phone numbers					
	✓ Select location and quantity Get numbers Confirmation	Get numbers Please review your information displayed below. If everything looks good, please submit your order. We'll let you know when your num if there are any issues. Country or region Number type Are code Quantity Portugal Toil 21 1 Reserved numbers +351 21 122 24/9	bers are	ready to	go. or	
3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1						
		Back Place order 08 : 11 remaining to complete this order.		Ca	incel	

Figure 4.45: Placing a number order

10. Click on Finish.

Now that you have your new number to use, it is time to configure the Audio Conferencing bridge. A conferencing bridge is the hub for your phone numbers and can contain one or multiple numbers for multiple countries.

The numbers included in the Conferencing Bridge are the ones that will be included in the meeting request. Bridges can have two types of numbers:

- Dedicated: Numbers available for users inside the organization
- Shared: Numbers that can be shared with another organization

Note

Once the organization has been enabled for Audio Conferencing, numbers for different countries are automatically assigned, but you can modify the Conferencing Bridge and add more numbers.

- 1. Open the Microsoft 365 Admin Center.
- 2. In the left navigation bar, go to Meetings and then Conference bridges.

🔡 😤 Contoso Electronics		Microsoft Teams admin center					?
	≡.						
ඛ	Dashboard	Conference bridges					
දුටු	Teams \lor	Conference bridges let people dial into meetir	ngs using a phone. You can use	the default settings for a conference	e bridge or		
٨	Devices \checkmark	change the phone numbers (toll and toll-free)	and other settings such as the l	PIN or the languages that are used.	Learn more		
٢	Locations \sim						-
පී	Users	+ Add ∨ ₹⊗3 Bridge settings				\$	23
•	Meetings ^	✓ Phone number Î Nun	iber type Type	Location	Primary langu	age	
	Conference bridges	+1 323 553 0998 Toll	Shared	Los Angeles, United States	English (Uni	ted States)
	Meeting policies	+1 437 703 4268 (Default) Toll	Shared	Toronto, Canada	English (Uni	ited States	;)
	Meeting settings	+1 469 848 0234 Toll	Shared	Dallas, United States	English (Uni	ited States	;)
	Live events policies	+1 787 520 5276 Toll	Shared	San Juan, Puerto Rico	English (Uni	ted States	;)
Ę	Messaging policies	+1 849 937 8533 Toll	Shared	Santiago, Dominican Repu	Spanish (Me	exico)	
œ	Teams apps V	+1 872 215 6235 Toll	Shared	Chicago, United States	English (Uni	ted States	;)
6	Voice ~	+1 929 229 5346 Toll	Shared	New York City, United Stat	English (Uni	ited States	;)
1	Policy packages	+27 21 829 5766 Toll	Shared	Cape Town, South Africa	English (Uni	ited Kingd	om
alí l	Analytics & reports \sim						

3. Click on Add and select the type of number you wish to use:

Figure 4.46: Adding a new conference bridge

4. Select the number from the list and click Apply.

Now that Audio Conferencing has been configured, your users can include the call information in the meeting. We will now move on to configuring live events in Microsoft Teams.

Live events on Microsoft Teams

Live events on Microsoft Teams are an extension of meetings and should be used every time you have the need to broadcast for a large audience. Meetings on Microsoft Teams only supports 250 attendees. If you are planning a meeting that exceeds this number, you must use live events instead, which supports up to 10,000 attendees.

Live events are, by definition, a one-to-many communication since the presenters have the rights to speak and share content and all the other attendees can only listen and interact with the presenters through the moderated Q&A.

Live event profiles

By reading the live events introduction, you can probably tell that it might be too complicated for a single person to manage everything that happens during the event. If you have had this thought, then you are right: when looking at live events, you will find four different profiles:

- **Organizer**: This is the person who is responsible for scheduling and inviting presenters and producers to the event and is also responsible for defining the live event permissions. Once the event is over, the organizer will get access to the final reports showing the attendees and the questions that were asked during the event.
- **Presenter**: As the name suggests, the presenter will have the rights to present video, audio, or a desktop window. A live event can have one or more presenters.
- **Producer**: A producer is responsible for starting and stopping the live event, as well as managing everything related to the media presentation, including selecting what video is going live at any moment.
- Attendee: An attendee can watch the event and participate through the moderated Q&A. Live events allow attendees to join using authenticated means or anonymously, depending on the event's permissions.

The full experience of live events is only accessible to all profiles through the desktop version of Microsoft Teams. If you are a producer or a presenter, it is mandatory to use the desktop client. If you are an attendee, you can join using the desktop, web, or mobile clients of Teams.

How to create a live event

Live events must be created on Microsoft Teams, and the process is similar to scheduling a meeting. To create a live event, do the following:

- 1. On the desktop Teams client, open the **Calendar**.
- 2. Click on the arrow next to the **New meeting** button.

3. On the popup, select New live event. By default, New meeting is selected:

	Mic	rosoft Teams	ď	Search or type a command		HANDS ON SharePoint 🗸 💏
Activity	Ē	Calendar			Ĝi Meet now	+ New meeting 🗸
	¢	Today < > M	March 2020 - April 2020	Ý		Schedule meeting
Teams		30 Monday	31 Tuesday	01 Wednesday	02 Thursday	US Friday
Calendar	3 PM					
Calls	4 PM					
	6.004					
	2 PM					
	6 PM					
	7 PM					
(?) Help						

Figure 4.47: New live event

- 4. Fill in the form with the event's details.
- 5. Define your role for the event.
- 6. Invite other producers and presenters. The organizer can assume one of these two roles:

New live event \lor					
Title					Invite people to your event group
NEW Product - Internal	Release				Invite presenters
Location					Organizer
(3 available, Building 1 F	Rooms)			\sim	João Ferreira
Start		End			Producer V
Jan 10, 2020	1:00 PM	Jan 10, 2020		1:30 PM	Event group
Time Zone					Presenter V
(UTC+00:00) GMT Stand	ard Time			\sim	L
Details					
B I ⊻ ⊖ Provide info about th	∀ <u>A</u> ⊿A ne live event	Paragraph \sim	<u>T</u> _× ∣ <=	·= ···	
					Close Next

Figure 4.48: Presenters and producers

- 7. Click Next.
- 8. Select the event permissions. Here, you will find three different options, as follows:
 - (a) **People and Groups**: As the event organizer, you need to invite the people and groups that will have permission to watch the event.
 - (b) **Org-wide**: Everyone in the organization will have access to the event, and the attendees will be identified by the corporate account. Org-wide events require the user to sign in.
 - (c) **Public**: Everyone with the link will be able to join without authentication:

vee	event permissions	
දී	People and groups Only the specified people and groups can watch the live event.	
	Org-wide Everyone in your org can watch the live event. (Sign-in required)	
	Public The live event will be open to anyone. Use when most of the attendees are outside your org. (No sign-in required)	
l ow Te	will you produce your live event? eams	
Vo	u plan to use Teams to share content from presenters' webcams and screens	
10	Deserving available to producers and presenters	
	Recording available to producers and presenters	

Figure 4.49: Live event permissions

- 9. Select the production options for the event. Here, you can choose Teams or a thirdparty app or device. If you select Teams, there are a few settings you can configure for the live event and for the content generated after it, as follows:
 - (a) **Record availability**: You can select the profiles that the recording will be available to after the meeting. Depending on the configurations made by the administrator, one or more options can be locked or not even exist. To find out more, please read the *Managing live events as an admin* section.

- (b) Captions: During the event, you can enable captions for the attendees to follow. To use this option, you will have to define the spoken language. From here, you will be able to select up to six different languages for the captions.
- (c) **Attendee engagement report**: This option generates a report of the behavior of the attendees during the live event.
- (d) **Q&A**: This option enables a Q&A session during the live event. Attendees will be able to ask a question and the presenter or the producer will be able to reply to it privately or publicly:



Figure 4.50: Production options

10. Define the URL for the support. The default value can be modified by the administrator.

11. Click on **Schedule**.

12. Once scheduled, you will see the details of the event with the option to get an attendee link that you can use to invite people to the event, for example, through a newsletter or a blog post:

Internal release of the product

Invite attendees To invite attendees, copy the link and Get attendee link (2) Learn	d share it or send it in a calendar invite. more
Friday, January 10, 2020 11:00 AM - 11:30 AM (30 minutes) Microsoft Teams Meeting Join Chat	Organizer João Ferreira Presenter, Organizer Event group
You are the organizer. Cancel meeting Live event resources Refresh	Adele Vance Presenter, Unknown Allan Deyoung Producer, Unknown
	Close Edit

Figure 4.51: Get attendee link

What are the available options during a live event?

Live events will be displayed differently, depending of the participant role, and show different screens with different options for each of them.

Unlike meetings, live events have the possibility for dry runs to be performed so as to make sure that everything works as expected once the event goes live. Only producers and presenters have access to this pre-live stage of the event. If an attendee joins the event during the pre-live, they will wait in a virtual lobby until the event starts.

Producer

The following screenshot represents the screen of a producer during the pre-live stage, with the main options highlighted:



Figure 4.52: Producer view

Let's explain each of these options:

- 1. **Content selector**: In this section, you will see all the presenters and the content being shared. Once you click on the content, it is sent to the queue. In this section, you will also see yourself and your controls for the camera and microphone.
- 2. **Queue**: This is the preview of the content waiting to be sent live. Here, you can see how things will look before sending them to the event.
- 3. Live event: An image of what is being shared in the event at the moment. This section only displays content once you've sent something from the queue to the live event. To start a live event, it is mandatory to have something already being shared, otherwise the **Start** button will remain disabled, as shown in the preceding screenshot.
- 4. **Share**: The producer also has the option to share content from your computer. If you want to do so, click on the **Share** button.

- 5. **Mute all**: The producer has the option to mute all the participants in the live event. If you have the need to do this, press the **Mute all** button.
- 6. Live event information: In this section, you will get information about the status of the event and the number of attendees. The attendees counter will work even if you are not live yet. This will let you know how many attendees are waiting for it to start.
- 7. **Personal and event options**: In this section, you will find your personal settings for the event, such as the option to configure the microphone and webcams. These options are available when you press the cog well. In this bar, you will also find options for the event, such as Q&A, notes, and chat, among others. The first icon in this group is a tool that you can use to monitor the status of your internet connection before going live to make sure you have sufficient bandwidth to stream and manage the content:

Bonus tip

Microsoft Teams marks the event with a yellow label when it is not live and wraps the content that is not live with a yellow border. Once the event is live, a red label is added to the event and the content being shared is marked with a red border. If you are a visual person, this will definitely help you understand what is live and what is not.



Figure 4.53: Producer Q&A

- 8. **Q&A**: The Q&A is displayed in the right pane on Microsoft Teams and will indicate whether it's enabled for the event. You can get access to it by clicking the second button shown for the event options.
- 9. **Question groups**: The questions you receive during a live event are private and are organized into three different groups, as shown in the preceding screenshot. They are moved to the groups when you publish or dismiss them.
- 10. **Q&A status**: The producer has the option to decide when to open the Q&A. If you do not want to have it open during the entire event, you can use this toggle to close it.
- 11. **Questions queue**: In this section, you will be able to see all the questions sent during the event, reply to them, publish them to everyone, and see or dismiss them. You also have the option to reply to a question without publishing it. Private replies are labeled private with a locker icon and will only be shared with the attendee who made it.
- 12. **Make an announcement**: The announcement option allows you to write on the Q&A panel for the attendees.

When you click on the start button, Microsoft Teams will show a warning message to inform users that a live event cannot exceed 4 hours. Attendees will see it with a 10-20 second delay:

Are you sure you want to start the live event now?

Once you start, you can't stop and restart. The event can last up to 4 hours from start time and attendees will watch at a 10-20 second delay. Learn more

Cancel	Continue



Presenter

The presenter options during a live event are the same as the ones explained previously in the *What are the available options during a meeting*? section.

Compared to the options available during a meeting, the presenter loses the ability to share a PowerPoint presentation directly and share whiteboards. The UI also gets two new options, which are highlighted in the following screenshot:



Figure 4.55: Presenter controls

These options are as follows:

1. **Status**: This label allows you to understand what the status of the event is using three different words mapped with colors:

Pre-Live: Yellow **Live**: Red

Ended: Gray

2. **Q&A**: Opens the Q&A panel in the right pane. The presenter has the same controls as the producer when it comes to managing the questions that are sent by the attendees.

Attendee

Attendees only have the option to view the content being shared and, if enabled, interact with the presenters and producers through the Q&A. The following screenshot demonstrates what the window looks like to an attendee during the live event:



Figure 4.56: Attendee view
There are two areas here, as follows:

- 1. **Stage**: In this area, the attendee will see the content being shared and have the option to leave the event if they want to.
- 2. **Q&A**: The Q&A panel is also displayed in the right panel but with limited options. An attendee will be able to see their own questions and the replies to them and the ones that the producer or the presenter have made public by publishing them. An attendee has the option to make anonymous questions. To do this, they just need to check the box under the text area.

Getting live event reports and the recording

A live event produces a video of the recording and a series of reports that you can use to analyze the behavior of the attendees and measure the success of the event.

The organizer and the presenters will have access to this data through Microsoft Teams once the event is over.

To download them, do the following:

- 1. Open Microsoft Teams and click on the Calendar.
- 2. Click on the live event on the Calendar.
- 3. On the event popup, scroll to the Live event resources section:

NEW Product - Internal Release

Live event resources		\sim
Recording		$\overline{\uparrow}$
Q&A report		$\overline{\uparrow}$
Attendee engagement report		$\overline{\uparrow}$
Recording for attendees		Disable
- Transcript		
English (United States)		$\overline{\uparrow}$
Spanish (Spain)		$\overline{\uparrow}$
Chinese (Simplified, PRC)		$\overline{\uparrow}$
German (Germany)		$\overline{\uparrow}$
- Advanced options		
Backup recording		$\overline{\uparrow}$
	Refresh	Delete all
	Close	Edit

Figure 4.57: Live event resources

For each live event, Microsoft Teams can produce several types of resources, and all of them must be downloaded to be viewed:

• Videos: Each live event produces two recordings so that in case something goes wrong, there is always a backup available. Videos are produced using the mp4 video format.

• **Reports**: After the event, Microsoft Teams generates two reports, one with all the questions that were asked during the event, and another with the behavior of the attendees during the event. Both reports are produced using the CSV file format and can be viewed using Excel, as shown in the following screenshot:

1	5 -0				Qna_Report.csv - Excel								
F	ile Hom	e Insert Page	Layout Form	ulas Data	Review View Q Tell me what you want t						João Fer	reira 🗛	Share
A1			<i>f</i> x Sou	rce									~
	A	В	с	D	E	F	G	н	1	J	к	L	
1	Source	Туре	Identity	Timestam	Conversation Id	Content							
2	Attendee	Question	Adele Vance	******	768bb723-5743-44d9-a58a-5cdb94f8ddad	Will this w	ork also or	n classic Sh	arePoint?				
3	Moderator	Response	João Ferreira	########	768bb723-5743-44d9-a58a-5cdb94f8ddad	No, this wi	I only wor	rk modern	SharePoint(Adele Vand	e asked	Will this w	vorl
4	Attendee	Question	Adele Vance	*****	6c8f0846-4c36-4eb2-a0f7-02112662a8bb	Will this w	ork also or	n classic Sh	arePoint?				
5	Moderator	Announcement	João Ferreira	*****	6781efc1-7adb-4a42-be67-5c78e78ceecc	A demo en	veironme	nt will be p	provided after	er the even	t		
6													-
	Q	na_Report (Ð			1.4	1					J.	
Read	ły								III II	四 -	- 1	+	100%

Figure 4.58: Live event report

• **Transcripts**: Transcripts are the subtitles you can add to your videos. Microsoft Teams produces transcripts for all the languages selected when the event is first created (up to six). The transcripts are produced using the VTT file format.

The recordings from a live event are not stored in Microsoft Stream, but you can use the generated video file and transcripts to upload them and make them available on the media platform.

You can distinguish between a live event on a Microsoft Teams Calendar from a meeting by looking at the antenna icon that the live event displays:

				Search or type a command		💏 - 🗆 x
 Activity	Ē	Calendar				Qt Meet now + New meeting
E Chut	(1)	Today < > January 20	020 V			\boxplus Work week \vee
iii Teama		06 Monday	07 Tuesday	08 Wednesday	09 Thursday	10 Friday
Calendar	11 AM					
-	12. PM					
				Final adjustments before internal release		
	1 PM					NEW Product - Internal Release Microsoft Teams Meeting, João Fe 1gl
H Apps	2 PM					
O Help						

Figure 4.59: Live event icon

Managing live events as an admin

You may not see all the options described in this chapter for live events; some of them can be controlled by the administrator using policies.

If you are an administrator and want to enable or disable live event features, do the following:

- Open Microsoft Teams admin center. You can do this by opening the Microsoft 365 Admin Center and then choosing Teams or by simply opening the following URL: https://admin.teams.microsoft.com
- 2. On the left menu, click on Meetings and then Live events policies:

	Microsoft Teams admin	center	4 ⁰			
() ₩ & ©	E Dashboard Teams Devices Locations	Live events policies Teams live events policies are used to turn on or off features, such as who can join a live event, if transcription is provide attendees, or if recording live events is available for people that schedule and hold live events. You can use the Global (C wide default) policy and customize it or create additional policies with different settings and assign them to people that live events in your organization. Learn more	d for)rg- hold			
ස	Users	LIVE EVENTS POLICIES SUMMARY USER STATISTICS				
	Meetings	1 0 Custom policies				
	Conference bridges	Default policy Custom policies 23 Default policies				
	Meeting policies					
	Meeting settings	+ Add 🖉 Edit 🕒 Duplicate 💼 Delete 🔿 Reset Global policy 🕫 Manage users 1 Item 🔍	Search		۲	
	Live events policies					
	Live events settings	Name Custom Policy				
Ę	Messaging policies	Global (Org-wide default) No				
B	Teams apps					
6	Voice					
٩	Policy packages					
MÎ	Analytics & reports	× .				
	Org-wide settings	^				
	External access					
	Guest access			Give f	eedbac	k

Figure 4.60: Live event policies

3. To create a new policy, click on **Add**. To manage an existing one, click one of the policy's names.

Each policy is defined by a name, a description, and four settings that allow you to turn on/off features and define who has access to live events, as illustrated in the following screenshot:

Allow scheduling	On
Allow transcription for attendees	On
Who can join scheduled live events	Everyone 🗸
Who can record an event	Always record \checkmark

Figure 4.61: Live event policy options

By clicking the **Who can join scheduled live events** setting, you will see three different options that will restrict the options available when scheduling the event:

- **Everyone**: All users, including external and anonymous users, will have permission to join the live event. To create public live events, this option must be selected.
- Everyone in the organization: All users from your organization will be able to join the live event.
- **Specific users or groups**: You will have to define the users or groups who will have access to the live event when scheduling.

By clicking the **Who can record an event** option, you will see that three options are available:

- Always record: The video will always be recorded, and the organizer and the presenters will have access to it once the meeting is finished.
- Never record: The live event will not be recorded.
- **Organizer can record**: The organizer has the option to decide whether the live event is recorded.

Meetings and live events limitations

Live events and meetings features have a few limitations that you should be aware of before using them. In the following table, you will find the important limit numbers that you should take into consideration when choosing between meetings and live events.

	Meetings	Live Events
Max number of people	250	10,000
Max length	NA	4h
Max number of concurrent events	NA	15
Max PowerPoint file size	2 GB	NA
Max streaming resolution	NA	720p
Max number of presenters	NA	10
Max number of people using Audio Conferencing	250	NA

Please note that as Microsoft Teams evolves, these numbers may increase:

Summary

In this chapter, you have learned how to use Microsoft Teams to schedule meetings and organize live events using all the features included in the product. You were provided with a full description of all the features included in both functionalities and are now ready to decide when to use each of them.

In the next chapter, you will learn how to protect information inside Microsoft Teams using private channels and what they mean in Teams.

5 Public versus Private – Teams and Channels

In the first chapter of this book, we covered the basics of all the Microsoft Teams components and the general usage scenarios for teams, channels, and tabs.

In this chapter, we will dive into the teams and channels features included on Microsoft Teams. We will look at the differences between the several types of teams and channels that are available, with scenarios that will help you understand what the best approach to follow is, based on your requirements.

In the following pages, you will find information about these main topics:

- Understanding public and private teams
- Understanding standard channels
- Understanding private channels
- Understanding team creation governance
- Organizing your teams and channels
- Understanding team and channel limits

Understanding public and private teams

When creating a new team, you have the option to make it public or private, but before making that decision you need to be aware of the differences between both types.

A public team is discoverable to all members of an organization and is listed in the Teams gallery.

A public team scenario—Peter the office manager

Peter is responsible for managing the company office in Portugal. To do it better and to communicate with others, Peter has created a new team for the office where he posts everything related to it. Anyone working in Portugal or visiting the office can join the team to access things such as the location and working hours, or simply to ask Peter or any of the other office members something.

A private team can be discoverable or non-discoverable. Also, to be a member of a team, you need to either be approved or added to the team. If the team is discoverable, you can request to join it; if it's non-discoverable, a team owner needs to add you.

A private team scenario—company managers

The HANDS ON tek company has a private team for all company managers where new acquisitions are discussed. The information in this team is private and must not be discovered by any user. Every time a new manager is hired or promoted, they are added to the team by one of the owners.

Keep in mind the two scenarios described in this section every time you have doubts about what type of team you should create.

In the next section, we will learn what guest users on Microsoft Teams are and how they are related to the public and private concepts.

Guest users on Microsoft Teams

Don't get misled by the type of a team; public teams don't mean that you will be able to add guest users to them by default. In fact, you are able to add users from other organizations to your teams when using public and private teams. All you have to do is enable the guest access on your tenant. Guest access can be only enabled by the Microsoft Teams global administrator and once enabled, everyone can use it. If you have the right permissions and want to enable guest access to your organization, do the following:

- Open the Microsoft Teams admin center (https://admin.teams. microsoft.com).
- 2. In the left-hand side menu, click on **Org-wide settings** and then on **Guest access**.
- 3. Switch the Allow guest access in Teams toggle to On.
- 4. Configure the available features for **Calling**, **Meeting**, and **Messaging** that guest users will be able to use on your tenant, as in the following screenshot:

	Microsoft Teams admi	in cente	r)		۵	۲	?	-
<u>බ</u> සං	Dashboard Teams	=	Guest access Guest access in Teams lets people outside your organization acc control which features guest users can or can't use. Learn more	ess teams and channels. You can us	e the se	ettings b	elow to	
&	Devices	~	Allow guest access in Teams	On				
8 10 10 10	Users Meetings	÷	Manage calling specific controls for guest users. Make private calls	On				
E 88 6	Messaging policies Teams apps	~	Meeting Turn on or turn off settings for guests in meetings.					
•	Voice Policy packages	, v	Allow IP video	On On				
aii ¢	Analytics & reports Org-wide settings	~	Screen sharing mode Allow Meet Now	Entire screen			~	
	External access	-	Messaging					
	Teams settings		Turn on or turn off settings for guests in chats or channel conver	sations.				
	Teams upgrade		Edit sent messages	On On				
	Holidays		Delete sent messages	On On				
	Resource accounts		Chat	On On				
:≣	Planning	~	Use Giphys in conversations	On On				
9	Legacy portal		Giphy content rating	Allow all content			~	
- 50	Call quality dashboard		Use Memes in conversations	On On				
			Use Stickers in conversations	On On				
			Allow immersive reader for viewing messages	On On				
			Save Discard					

Figure 5.1: Enabling guest access on Microsoft Teams

5. Click Save.

Once this feature is enabled, you can add users from other organizations to your teams. When doing so, you will notice that Microsoft Teams displays a message showing that the user is a guest, as in the following screenshot:

Add members to Women's Basketball Team 19/20

Start typing a name, distribution list, or security group to add to your team. You can also add people outside your organization as guests by typing their email addresses.

joaoferreira@handsontek.net	Add
Add joaoferreira@handsontek.net as a guest	
	Close

Figure 5.2: Adding a guest member to a team

All teams with guest users will also display a label at the top of the screen showing the number of guest members that exist in the team, as in the following screenshot:





Guest access allows the creation of real multi-organizational environments on Microsoft Teams. Any user with an email account can be added to the team to collaborate and be able to access files, meetings, and chats.

Important note: Guest access checklist

In order to enable guest access in Microsoft Teams, it must also be enabled in Azure Active Directory, Office 365 groups, and SharePoint. To make sure your tenant is prepared to be accessed by guest users, validate the checklist at the following site:

```
https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoftteams/
guest-access-checklist
```

Understanding standard channels

Standard channels were, until recently, the only available way of creating a channel inside a team. Standard channels, as seen in *Chapter 1, Microsoft Teams Basics*, are subsets of a team and are used to have conversations and share documents on the same topic.

Everything shared in a standard channel becomes available to all the team members. However, this was, for a long time, a major limitation to Microsoft Teams, forcing channel owners to duplicate their teams in order to share private and sensitive information.

A standard channel scenario—John the teacher

John is a teacher responsible for an eighth-grade class and a strong advocate of Microsoft Teams. He wants to build an e-learning platform for his class using Teams. This platform will be publicly available to all the class students and teachers.

John has created a standard channel for each school subject and added all the teachers and the students to the team using their school accounts. John has structured the team but is now facing an issue with the **Teachers** standard channel, which may contain information that should not be available to students.

The following screenshot shows how this scenario will look when implemented:



Figure 5.4: John's team structure

This is the typical channel scenario you will find in Microsoft Teams and is also a perfect example of how private channels are handy when you need to target information within the same team. The **Teachers** channel should be a private place where all the teachers can share private information about the students. Let's see how this works in the next section.

Note

The scenario represented in this section of the book uses an education tenant. Education tenants include all the main features and components that are included in the standard version of Microsoft Teams; however, they have different layouts to manage teams and include specific user profiles for users, such as teacher and student. I have not covered this tenant in this book as it has special features that are only available for education. However, more information about Microsoft Teams education tenants can be found at https://support.microsoft.com/en-us/office/microsoft-teams-5aa4431a-8a3c-4aa5-87a6-b6401abea114?ui=en-US&rs=en-US&ad=US#ID0EAABAA=About.

Understanding private channels

Private channels were the most requested feature ever since Microsoft Teams was released, with more than 25,000 requests for it to be implemented. It took almost 3 years for them to be publicly available:

Welcome to the Microsoft Teams UserVoice!

← Public



Support for Private Channels

Private channels enable focused private collaboration among a subset of your team...

Angela Sze shared this idea · November 01, 2016 · Flag idea as inappropriate...



COMPLETED · Alex (Teams Engineering, Microsoft Teams) responded · November 07, 2019

Private channels enable focused private collaboration among a subset of your team. We are super excited to share that this feature is fully rolled out to the public ring. You can find detailed information on the capabilities and management of the private channels feature here – <u>https://docs.microsoft.com/MicrosoftTeams/private-channels</u>.

Figure 5.5: A user voice request

A private channel has pretty much the same functionalities as a standard channel. The main differences between the two are individual site collections and special permissions are not inherited from the team.

What is a site collection?

A site collection on SharePoint is a container for a group of sites, files, or pages that has its own permissions. A site collection starts with a top-level site and can contain other subsites underneath.

A private channel scenario—Geno the basketball coach

Geno is a college basketball coach who uses Microsoft Teams to manage everything related to his team. He has created several channels inside his team that are publicly available to athletes, coaches, and staff members.

Geno likes to keep information centralized for better management and faster access, so he is looking for a solution that allows him to discuss and share private information with his assistant coaches.

Private channels are the correct solution for this scenario and Geno has created two private channels inside the team to discuss the following:

- Athletes' scouting
- Athletes' calls for upcoming games

By following this approach, Geno was able to keep the information centralized and at the same time, keep sensitive data private and hidden from the rest of the team.

How to create a private channel

The creation of private channels is only available to members of the organization. As a user, when you create a new private channel, you will be made the owner of the channel automatically.

To create a new private channel in your teams, do the following:

- 1. Hover over the name of the team where you want to create the private channel and click on ... next to the name.
- 2. From the options menu, click on Add channel:



Figure 5.6: Adding a channel

3. In the creation form, provide a name and a description to help identify the channel and select **Private** in the **Privacy** dropdown:



Figure 5.7: Creating a private channel

- 4. Click Next.
- 5. Add members to the channel and select their roles (either members or owners). Optionally, you can skip this step and add them later.

- 6. Even though a site collection is created with the new private channel, it will be available for use in just a few seconds.
- 7. The URL for the private channel site collection is a combination of the name of the team and the name of the channel; for example, https://handsontek. sharepoint.com/sites/hr-vacations.Looking at the URL of this site collection, we can tell that it belongs to the *Vacations* private channel in the *HR* team.

Private channels can only be created. Due to their special structure, it is not possible to transform an existent standard channel into a private channel.

The structure and features of private channels

Private channels have a different physical structure to standard channels. If you create a private channel, keep in mind that each new channel generates a new site collection with different permissions for the team.

Each team on Microsoft Teams creates a new site collection and each standard channel creates a folder inside a document library. When a new private channel is created, instead of getting a new folder in the document library, you will get a new site collection, where all your files and conversations will be stored.

The following diagram shows the physical structure of a team with standard channels versus a team with private channels:



Figure 5.8: Microsoft Teams versus SharePoint physical structure

Even though a private channel creates a new SharePoint site collection, you should not plan to use it as a regular site. Site collections associated with private channels do not allow the creation of pages; you will be only able to create libraries and lists.

To support private channels, SharePoint increased the limit of site collections from 500,000 to 2,000,000.

Private channels, when compared to standard channels, are also limited in features. You will be able to access the chat and wiki, but bots and meetings are not available. The following table shows a comparison between standard channels and private channels that will help you to decide which one to use based on the available features:

	Standard channel	Private channel
Channel email	√	\checkmark
Apps	√	\checkmark
Bots	√	×
External users	√	√
Channel meetings	\checkmark	\checkmark
Scheduled channel meetings	\checkmark	×

Private channels have their own settings and override some of the settings defined by the team. The following table shows a comparison between standard and private channel settings and allows you to understand how each of these settings are overwritten by the private channel:

	Standard channel	Private channel
Member permissions	Team	Channel
Guest permissions	Team	Team
@mentions	Team	Channel
Fun stuff	Team	Channel
Moderation permissions	Channel	N/A

Channel settings are available to the team owners on the standard channels and to the channel owners on the private channels. To access these settings, do the following:

- 1. Hover over the channel name and then click on ... to open the options menu.
- 2. From the options menu, click on **Manage channel**. Depending on the type of the channel, a popup will open with different options:

(a) For standard channels, you will have access to the channel moderation permissions, as in the following screenshot:



Figure 5.9: Standard channel settings

(b) For private channels, you will have access to the **Member permissions**, **@mentions**, and **Fun stuff** options, as in the following screenshot:

Members Settings					
 Member permissions 	Change member permissions				
	Allow members to create, update, and remove tabs	\sim			
	ive members the option to delete their messages				
	Give members the option to edit their messages	\checkmark			
	Choose if @channel mention is allowed				
	Give members the option to @channel or @[channel name]. This will notify everyone who's shown the mentioned channel in their channel lists.	\checkmark			
✓ Fun stuff	Allow emoji, memes, GIFs, or stickers				
	Giphy				
	Enable Giphy for this channel	\leq			
	Filter out inappropriate content using one of the setting below:				
	Moderate V 🛈				
	Stickers and memes				
	Enable stickers and memes	\checkmark			
	Custom Memes				
	Allow memes to be uploaded	\checkmark			

Figure 5.10: Private channel settings

Understanding private channel security

Private channels have their own owners—this means a team owner in the private channel is not necessarily the private channel owner and it is also possible that they are not even part of the private channel. If a team owner does not belong to a private channel, they will be able to see it exists but will not be able to see any of the content inside it.

To become a member of a private channel, a user *must* be a member of a team first. This means that any member of a private channel will have access to all the information in the team.

Private channels also support external users, if they are members of the team already.

An unsupported private channel scenario—Mary the team manager

Mary manages a team of developers in a consulting company that builds custom software based on the customer's requirements. She has a consulting team on Microsoft Teams already and uses it to assign new projects and to share proposals and requirements with the team members.

With the release of private channels, Mary wants to modify the consulting team. She has to do the following:

- Create a private channel for each customer.
- Add the customer as an external member to the private channel.

This scenario is not supported by private channels. To modify the team as Mary wants, she needs to add all her customers to the team where she already has confidential information about all the past projects. By doing this, the customer will be able to see not just the information in the private channel but also the conversations and the files in the standard channels. They will also be able to see who all of Mary's customers are and they will be able to chat with each other.

Pro tip

When working with private channels, do not modify the security settings on the SharePoint site collection. The permissions are managed by Microsoft Teams and they are tightly connected. If you modify the permissions on SharePoint, they will be reverted to the original values automatically to avoid disruption in the private channel functionality. The following questions will help you understand the privacy policies in private channels with real scenarios that you will face when using Microsoft Teams:

- What happens when a private channel owner leaves the private channel? When the owner of a private channel leaves the channel, the team, or the company, Microsoft Teams will automatically promote a new team member as the owner of the private channel.
- **Can an external user be a private channel owner?** No, an external user will always be a guest in the team and the private channels and cannot be promoted to the channel owner.
- If a user is removed from a team, will they also be removed from the private channels?

If a user is removed from a team, they are removed from all the private channels in the team.

• Can a team owner view a private channel?

Yes, team owners are able to see private channels. As a team owner, if you would like to see all the channels in your team, including the private ones, you should click on the ... option that appears when you hover over the name of a team and then click on **Manage team**. In the stage area, click on the **Channels** tab and you will see all the team channels, as in the following screenshot. Private channels can be identified by the lock icon in the **Type** column:

Teams Your teams	7	WB Wom This tear	1en's Bask n is the central ho	etball Tea	m 19/20 ···· on for the season 2019/2020		٥) Team 🕄
WB Women's Basketball Tea		Members Pending	Requests Char	nels Settings	Analytics Apps			
General Coaches 台 Pre Season		Search for channels	۹				🗄 Add	channel
Men's Basketball Team 1		Name 🔶	Show for me	Show for mem	pers Description	Туре	Last activity 17m ago	
Flidden teams		Coaches			Channel to discuss topics tha	ô	16m ago	
		Pre Season			The aim of pre season trainin	۲	10/23/19	
		> Deleted (0)						

Figure 5.11: Managing team channels

• Can a team owner access a private channel?

No, a team owner will not be able to access a private channel if they are not a member of the channel.

• **Can a team owner delete a private channel?** Yes, a team owner will be able to delete a private channel, even if they are not a member of it. This will delete the channel and all its assets.

• Can a private channel owner leave the channel?

Yes, if they are not the last member in the channel. If the member leaving is the only owner, a random member will be assigned as the owner of the private channel.

• Can a team guest create a private channel?

No, private channels can only be created by a member of the organization. Team owners and team members can both create private channels.

The following tables summarize the permissions and actions each profile can have in private channels. Note that in private channels we have a second tier of profiles and it's important to be aware of the different permissions. A team owner will not control everything that happens inside a team if private channels exist:

Action	Team owner	Team member	Team guest
Create a private channel	Yes	Yes	No
Delete a private channel	Yes	No	No
Edit a private channel	No	N/A	N/A
Restore a deleted private channel	Yes	No	No
Add members to a private channel	No	N/A	N/A
Edit the settings of a private channel	No	N/A	N/A
Manage tabs and apps in a private channel	No	N/A	N/A

In the following table, you can how the actions each profile can take are different on private channels:

Action	Private channel owner	Private channel member	Private channel guest
Delete a private channel	Yes	No	No
Leave a private channel	Yes	Yes	Yes
Edit a private channel	Yes	No	No
Restore a deleted private channel	Yes	No	No
Add members	Yes	No	No
Edit settings	Yes	No	No
Manage tabs and apps	Yes	Yes	No

Keep this section of the book in mind and come back to it every time you have doubts about private channels and the level of permissions for each profile.

Understanding team creation governance

Governance is one of the things you should plan carefully. If you have an administrator role, make sure you define a set of rules and configure Teams the way you want ahead of time.

This is no easy task and it will always depend on each individual scenario. You should keep in mind that if you leave everything open, Teams can quickly become a wild west with hundreds of teams and channels that don't make sense. On the other hand, if you adopt a restrictive policy, you may lose users and they will eventually look for alternatives to Microsoft Teams (most likely outside of the Microsoft environment).

This section of the book shows where you can find the teams and channels features that you will be able to manipulate to reach a balance on your Microsoft Teams tenant.

On Microsoft Teams, there is no option to disable the creation of new teams. However, it is possible to disable the creation of Office 365 groups—but it is not recommended to do so as this will have a major impact on other applications.

Pro tip

Don't try to restrict the functionalities on Microsoft Teams unless extremely necessary. Removing features from Microsoft Teams will force your users to use other services that are potentially not secure or compliant with the standards of Microsoft Teams.

Instead of disabling the creation of teams, you can adopt a few practices that will help you manage the teams and, if necessary, restrict the creation of private channels.

Governance as a global Microsoft Teams administrator

As a Microsoft Teams global administrator, you have the power to disable the creation of private channels globally or enable it just for particular users. To do so, you will have to work with **Teams policies** in the **Microsoft Teams admin center**.

To manage Teams policies and to attribute them to specific users, do the following:

- 1. Open the Microsoft Teams admin center. You can do this by going to https://admin.teams.microsoft.com/.
- 2. In the left-hand side menu, expand the **Teams** option and then select **Teams policies**:

	Microsoft Teams admir	n cent	er				Q			Ŧ
6) #	Dashboard Teams Manage teams	■ ^	Teams policies Teams and channel policies a channels. You can use the Glo people that are members of a	re used to control what settings or bbal (Org-wide default) policy and a team or a channel within your org	features are available to user customize it or create one or janization. Learn more	s when they are using team: nore custom policies for the	s and ose			
	Teams policies		TEAMS POLICIES SUM	MARY	USER STATISTICS					
\$	Devices	~	1	0		O Custom policies				
٣	Locations	~	Default policy	U Custom policies		5 Default policies				
දර	Users									
Ē	Meetings	~								
Ę	Messaging policies		+ Add 🖉 Edit 🕼	Duplicate 📋 Delete 📿 Re	set Global policy 🦷 🕺 Man	age users 1 Q Searc	:h		٢	
ß	Teams apps	~	Name 1	Description	Custom policy	Discover private teams	Crea	ite private	chann	els
ଙ୍କ	Voice	~	Global (Org-wide d	efault)	No	On	On			
۴	Policy packages						-	-		
สมัตโ	Analytics & reports	~								
త	Org-wide settings	~								
這	Planning	~								
S	Legacy portal 12									
Ø	Call quality dashboard 다									



- 3. By default, you will only have the **Global** policy and this is the one that will be applied to all the users in the organization.
- 4. Select the policy and click on the Edit button.

- 5. The **Global** teams policy has only two settings, which gives you the option to do the following:
 - (a) Enable/Disable the discovery of private teams: If the discovery of private teams is enabled, users will be able to find them and request to join.
 - (b) Enable/Disable the creation of private channels: This setting allows you to turn off the creation of private channels for the entire organization. When this setting is enabled, a team owner can decide whether members of the team have the right to create private channels.
- 6. If you want to apply different settings to some of the members of your team to allow them to create private channels, do the following:
 - (1) Open the Microsoft Teams admin center. You can do so using https://admin.teams.microsoft.com/.
 - (2) In the left-hand side menu, expand the **Teams** option and then select **Teams policies**.
 - (3) Click on Add.
 - (4) Provide a name and a description that will help you identify your custom policy.
 - (5) Define the settings for private team discovery and private channel creation:

		n center	
ି କ		Teams policies Teams and channel policies are used to control what settings or features are available to users when the channels. You can use the Global (Org wide default) policy and customize it or create one or more custo people that are members of a team or a channel within your organization. Learn more	New teams policy Name Management channels
			Description
		TEAMS POLICIES SUMMARY USER STATISTICS	This policy must be applied just to managers to allow them to create private channels
ا		~ 0 Custon	channels
۲		Under Costom policies Default	Discover private teams (i)
පී			Create private channels ①
Ē		× _/_	On On
Ę		+ Add 🖉 Edit 😰 Duplicate. 🖹 Delete. 🔿 Keset Global policy. 🥂 Manage users	
ß		V Name 7 Description Custom policy	
ଙ		Global (Org-wide default) No	
<i>.</i>		V	
6		v	
ζЩ.	Planning	Y	Apply Cancel

Figure 5.13: Creating a new teams policy

7. Click Apply.

8. In the left-hand side menu, click on Users.

9. From the list of users, select the ones that you want to apply the new policy to. Selecting more than 20 users at once is not recommended. If your number is greater than 20, you must do it in batches or using PowerShell:

	Microsoft Teams admir	n center							Q	۵	?	-
		=										
	Dashboard		الدم	rc								
ះកំទ	Teams	~	You car	n manage audio conferen	cing settings, the policies as:	signed to them, phone nur	nbers and oth	er features for peop	le in			
ا	Devices	~	your or adding	ganization that use Team or deleting users, changin	s and Skype for Business. Go ng passwords or assigning li	to Admin center > Users censes. Learn more	o manage ot	ner user settings suc	:h as			
٢	Locations	~										
:			0 6	idit settings				Q Search		Y	' ©	
Ē	Meetings	~										
	Messaging policies		~	Display name	Username	Phone number	Location	Policies	assigne	d		
ß	Teams apps	~	_	David Ramalho	d.ramalho@handsonsp.	on	Portugal	10 glo	ibal, 0 p	er-user		
	Voice	~	~	Francisca Peixoto	Francisca@handsonsp.o	n	Portugal	10 glo	bal, 0 p	er-user		
1	Policy packages			Francisco Tabuaço	Francisco@handsonsp.o	n	Portugal	10 glo	ibal, 0 p	er-user		
aii	Analytics & reports	~	~	João Ferreira	joao@handsonsp.onmic	ro	Portugal	9 glob	oal, 1 pe	r-user		
	Org-wide settings	~		João Tabuaço	j.tabuaco@handsonsp.o	n	Portugal	10 glo	ibal, 0 p	ier-user		
	Planning	~	-				_					
S	Legacy portal											

Figure 5.14: Selecting users

- 10. Click on Edit settings.
- 11. In the right-hand side pane, look for **Teams policy** and select the policy you have just created:

	=					Edit settings	
	-	Use	rs			You can assign policies to one or r your organization. However, it's re that you only do 20 people at a tir	nore people in commended me. Learn
	~	You ca	n manage audio conferencir	ig settings, the policies assigned	to them, phone numbers and other features	more	
	¥	your o	rganization that use Teams a	nd Skype for Business. Go to Au	dmin center > Users to manage other user set		
	4		to accord and a construction	hannes as a sould and a soul		Keep existing policy	~
Ð						App permission policy	
10		0	Edit settings			Keep existing policy	\sim
	~					App setup policy	1
		~	Display name	Usemame	Phone number	Keep existing policy	~
			Beezy Inc.	Beezy@handsonsp.onm	icr	Call park policy	
	~		108 19 202 202 407 194			Keep existing policy	~
	÷	. ×				Calling policy	
				Francisco@handsonsp.c		Keep existing policy	~
			Second Second			Teams policy	
	×	~				Global (Org-wide default)	~
	\sim		Office Mac	officemac@handsonsp.	un	Global (Org-wide default)	
	~					Management channels	
						Apply	
						Cancer	

Figure 5.15: Applying a Microsoft Teams policy

12. Click Apply. Policies can take up to 24 hours to be applied to users.

Governance as a team owner

If your tenant has the creation of private channels enabled globally for all users, you can fine-tune it for the teams you own. Teams allows you to control who is able to create standard and private channels from the settings of each team.

To disable the creation of standard or private channels by members, do the following:

- 1. Open the team you want to modify.
- 2. Click on ... next to the name of the team to expand the options menu.
- 3. From the menu, click on Manage team.
- 4. Click on the **Settings** tab.
- 5. Expand Member permissions.
- 6. Uncheck the highlighted settings shown in the following screenshot according to your requirements:

Teams	V	MT Microsoft Teams ···	© Org
Your teams		-	
MT Microsoft Teams		Members Channels Settings Analytics Apps	
General		Team picture Add a team picture	
Hidden teams		Member permissions Enable channel creation, adding apps, and	nd more
	annels 🖸		
		Allow members to create private channel	ls 🜌
		Allow members to delete and restore cha	annels 🕑
		Allow members to add and remove apps	
		Allow members to upload custom apps	<i></i>
		Allow members to create, update, and re	move tabs
		Allow members to create, update, and re	move connectors
		Give members the option to delete their	messages 🥑
		Give members the option to edit their m	essages 🧧
		Guest permissions Enable channel creation	
		@mentions Choose who can use @team and @chan	nel mentions
		Team code Share this code so people can join the te	am directly - you won't get join requests
85* Join or create a tear	m (©		

Figure 5.16: Channel settings for team members

Note

If the creation of private channels is disabled by the global admin, you will not be able to enable it as a team owner. If you want to use private channels and for the options under **Member permissions** to look like the following screenshot, you must contact your Microsoft Teams administrator: Allow members to create private channels

Private channel creation permissions require channel creation to be enabled as well.

Figure 5.17: Private channels disabled by the global administrator

Guest members in your teams can also create or delete channels. However, this feature is not enabled by default, but any team owner can enable it by doing the following:

- 1. Open the team you want to modify.
- 2. Click on ... next to the name of the team to expand the options menu.
- 3. From the menu, click on Manage team.
- 4. Click on the **Settings** tab.
- 5. Expand Guest permissions.
- 6. Enable the options highlighted in the following screenshot:

Teams	∇	MT Microsoft Tea	ims ···	⊚ Org
Your teams		Microsoft learns		
MT Microsoft Teams		Members Channels Settings	Analytics Apps	
General		Team picture	Add a team picture	
Hidden teams		Member permissions	Enable channel creation, adding apps, and more	
		Guest permissions Enable channel creation		
			Allow guests to to create and update channels	
			Allow guests to delete channels	
		@mentions	Choose who can use @team and @channel mentions	
		▶ Team code	Share this code so people can join the team directly - you won't get join requests	
		➤ Fun stuff	Allow emoji, memes, GIFs, or stickers	
දීරී [*] Join or create a team	0			



Archiving and deleting teams

When using Microsoft Teams, you will end up with a lot of teams and channels that are no longer needed. To better use the platform, you can decide between archiving and deleting them permanently.

An archived teams scenario—Geno the basketball coach

Geno was the main coach of a basketball team during the 2019/2020 season. The season was a success and Geno and his team were the state runners-up. Now that the season is over, Geno no longer needs this team and will archive it. All the content that was shared during the season will remain on the Microsoft servers but the activity will cease.

When a team is archived, all the standard and private channels are archived with it, including the dedicated site collections. To archive one of your teams, you need to open the **Manage teams** panel in Microsoft Teams by doing the following:

- 1. In the **Manage teams** panel of Microsoft Teams, click on the cog icon at the bottom of the left pane.
- 2. Expand the **Active** pane, choose the team you want to archive, and at the bottom of the row, click on ... to open the options menu.
- 3. In the menu, click on Archive team:



Figure 5.19: Archiving a team

4. Choose whether you want to make the SharePoint site collection associated with the team read-only:

Want to archive "Women's Basketball Team 19/20"?

This will freeze all team activity, but you'll still be able to add or remove members and update roles. Go to Manage teams to restore the team. <u>Learn more.</u>

Make the SharePoint site read-only for team members

Cancel	Archive
--------	---------

Figure 5.20: Archive confirmation

5. Click on Archive.

After archiving a team, if you decide that it's necessary to make it active again, you can do so.

An archived team can still be accessed; however, it will display a message at the top informing the user that the team cannot be modified, as in the following screenshot:

This team was archived, so you can't make any changes.

Figure 5.21: An archived team message

Restoring a team scenario-Geno the basketball coach

Geno has archived the team for the current season but he had forgotten about the runner-up celebration. To notify all the team members that contributed to the season's success, Geno has restored the team again and posted an announcement to the general channel with information about the celebration.

To restore an archived team, do the following:

- 1. In the **Manage teams** panel in Microsoft Teams, click on the cog icon at the bottom of the left pane.
- 2. Expand the **Archived** pane, choose the team you want to restore, and at the bottom of the row, click on ... to open the options menu.
- 3. From the menu, click on **Restore team**.
- 4. A popup will open while the team is being restored and after a few seconds, it's ready to be used again.

5. If a team is no longer needed, you can delete it permanently, along with all the assets associated with it. Before deleting a team, you should be aware that its mailbox and calendar in Exchange are also deleted, along with the SharePoint site collection and all the files in it.

Deleting a team scenario—Mary the consultant

Mary is a consultant and, over the last few months, has been working on a project for a software company. To manage all the requirements and share them with coworkers and the software company during the project, Mary has created a private team in Microsoft Teams. After delivering the project successfully, the software company requested that Mary delete all the sensitive information from the team. Since Mary was the team owner, she went ahead and deleted the entire team, removing any information related to the software company from the consulting tenant.

To delete a team, do the following:

- 1. In the **Manage teams** panel in Microsoft Teams, click on the cog icon at the bottom of the left pane.
- 2. Expand the **Active** pane, choose the team you want to archive and at the bottom of the row, click on ... to open the options menu.
- 3. At the bottom of the menu, click on **Delete the team**:



Figure 5.22: Deleting a team

4. Tick the checkbox that acknowledges that you understand that everything will be deleted:

Delete "Women's Basketball Team 19/20" team						
Are you sure you want to delete the team "Women's Basketball Team 19/20"? All channels, chats, files, and the Office 365 Group for this team will be deleted.						
I understand that everything will be deleted.						
	Cancel	Delete team				



5. Click on **Delete team**.

Important note

A deleted team can be recovered by the team owner or the Microsoft Teams admin within the 30 days after deletion. The 30 days are inherited by the soft delete period from Office 365 groups. After 30 days, the team and all the content are permanently deleted.

Restoring a deleted team is not as straightforward as restoring an archived team. To get back a team within the 30 days after deletion, do the following:

- 1. Open the Microsoft 365 admin center: https://admin.microsoft.com
- 2. In the left-hand side pane, click on Groups and then Deleted groups.
- 3. Select the group that you want to restore.
- 4. Click **Restore group**:

iii Microsoft 365 adm						-
=](HANDS ON SharePoint	👌 Dark mode	The new admi	in center	
លើ Home		Deleted Groups				
R Users	~	Deleted Office 355 groups will be shown here f are permanently deleted. If you need to, you ca this period. All other group types are permanen	or 30 days before the group and its associated data in restore an Office 365 group and its data within itly deleted immediately.			
Groups	*	Learn more about restoring Office 365 group	ps			
Shared mailboxes	•	C Restore group	1 selected 🔀	, ^O Search	5	
CS Briting	1	Group name	Group email	type		_
0 Customize navigation		HANDS ON Teams Graph	H0TGraph@handsomp.onmicrosoft.com	Office 365		0
··· Show all						۲
						P
	48					

Figure 5.24: Restoring a group

5. Wait for the confirmation message that will appear on the right side. The group and all the team assets can take up to 24 hours to restore, after which they will appear in Teams.

Note

Deleting a team does not delete the team recordings in Microsoft Stream.

Deleting channels

Like teams, channels can also be deleted when they are no longer needed. However, the content removed from a team is different between standard and private channels. When a standard channel is deleted, only the conversations are removed from the tenant; the files remain in the SharePoint document library.

When a private channel is removed, all the chats and files are removed with it and the SharePoint site collection is also removed. Like teams, channels can also be recovered within 30 days of being deleted. As a team owner, if you want to recover a deleted channel, do the following:

- 1. Click on ... next to the name of the team.
- 2. In the options menu, click on Manage team.
- 3. In the stage area, click on the **Channels** tab and expand the **Deleted** section.
- 4. Click on the **Restore** button, as in the following screenshot:

< >		C	Search or type a command	HANDS ON SharePoint ~	-	-		×	
 Activity	Teams	7	Women's Basketball Team 1	9/20 …			@ Te	am 🔳	1
Chat	Your teams		This team is the central hub for collaboration for	the season 2019/2020					
	We Women's Basketball Tea		Members Pending Requests Channels Settings Ana	lytics Apps					
Teams Calendar	General Coaches 🛆 Pre Season Men's Basketball Team 1		Search for channels Q, Active (3) Deleted (1)			8	Add cha	innel	
			Name *	Туре	Deletion Date				
Files	Hidden teams		Staff	٥	1/15/20	Ö	Restor	re	
Apps									
? Help	టి Join or create a team	٢							

Figure 5.25: Restoring a channel

5. The recovery of deleted channels can take up to 24 hours and is available for standard and private channels.

Now that we have understood team creation governance, we will have to organize these different teams and channels. Let's see how to do so in the next section.

Organizing teams and channels

Over time, while working with Microsoft Teams, you will end up with dozens of teams and channels in your account. Not all of them will have the same importance and you will want to be able to access the ones that are more relevant to you first.

To help you organize your teams and channels, Microsoft Teams offers the option of pinning your most relevant channels, which are the ones displayed at the top of your teams list, inside a **Pinned** group:



Figure 5.26: Pinned team channels

To make use of the pinning feature, do the following:

- 1. Click on ... next to the channel name to open the options menu.
- 2. Click on **Pin**:



Figure 5.27: Pinning a channel

3. The channel added to the **Pinned** group is identified by the team logo, channel name, and team name. By default, a new pinned channel is added to the bottom of the list, but you can manually sort them by clicking on the pinned channel and, without releasing, dragging it to the desired position:



Figure 5.28: Sorting a pinned channel by dragging it to the desired position

Note

The sorting feature using drag and drop is valid for all **Teams**, **Pinned**, **Your Teams**, and **Hidden Teams** groups.

Pinning a channel is available to organization members and guest users and works with standard and private channels

Pinned channels can also be unpinned to be removed from the top of the list. To remove a channel from the **Pinned** group, do the following:

- 1. Click on ... next to the channel name to open the options menu.
- 2. Click on Unpin:



Figure 5.29: Unpinning a channel

It's not uncommon to belong to a team that is not relevant to you, so to stay organized and keep your teams list clean, you can hide all the teams that you typically don't use.

A hidden team is added to the Hidden Teams group by doing the following:

- 1. Click on ... next to the team name to open the options menu.
- 2. Click on Hide:



Figure 5.30: Hiding a team

Using the features described in this section, you will be able to keep your teams organized, which will help you to stay focused on the locations where your work needs to be done.

Understanding team and channel limits

Microsoft Teams was designed to support large organizations; however, it is not unlimited and there are some boundaries in all the features we have seen in this chapter. When planning a new environment, you should always do so keeping the boundaries of each feature of Microsoft Teams in mind. By knowing them and planning the structure of the tenant ahead of time, you will avoid encountering the limits of the platform.
The following table shows the platform limits for teams and channels:

Feature	Limit
Teams created per user	250
Maximum number of teams per user	1,000
Maximum number of members in a team	10,000
Organization-wide teams limit per tenant	5
Maximum number of members in an organization- wide team	10,000
Maximum number of teams per tenant	500,000
Maximum number of standard channels per team (deleted channels included)	200
Maximum number of private channels per team (deleted channels included)	30

Keep the team and channel limits in mind before you start implementing a new team. By knowing them and planning the structure of the tenant ahead of time, you will avoid encountering the limits of the platform.

Summary

In this chapter, you have learned the functionalities associated with the main core features of Microsoft Teams. You saw examples of scenarios that will help you to decide when to use standard or private teams and channels.

You have also been introduced to the limits of the platform for teams, channels, and the number of users. By being aware of these limits, you will be able to plan and deploy Microsoft Teams effectively in large organizations.

In the following chapter, we will look at how you can extend Microsoft Teams functionalities to adapt them to your business needs using apps.

6 Extending Microsoft Teams Using Apps

Microsoft Teams is more than a communication platform, and its features are not limited to chat and meetings.

Microsoft Teams can be used to handle daily communication with colleagues, almost replacing internal emails. On the other hand, it can be extended with apps to support business logic that is not included by default in the application, removing the necessity to use third-party tools or bring those tools into the Microsoft Teams context.

This chapter introduces Microsoft Teams apps and explains how to get started with the app store, using available apps as examples.

In the following pages, you will find information about these main topics:

- Understanding apps in Microsoft Teams
- Installing apps on Microsoft Teams
- Getting familiar with Microsoft Teams app types
- Managing personal apps
- Uninstalling apps from Microsoft Teams

Understanding apps in Microsoft Teams

One of the weapons of Microsoft Teams is the apps you can add to it to enhance its features and make the user experience of the application better.

Apps open a wide variety of possibilities and configurations that allow you to tailor Microsoft Teams exactly according to your needs and following your own procedures and workflows.

Using apps, you will be able to bring to Microsoft Teams information and data that is stored in third-party applications. This is important in the modern workplace environment because it allows the user to continue in the same environment without the need to switch between applications.

According to the study The total economic impact of Microsoft Teams from April 2019, "Information workers save 15 minutes per day and firstline workers 5 minutes per day by having features and information sources available within Teams, rather than switching between apps. Time savings cover the mechanics of switching and cognitive re-engagement. The total savings over three years is nearly \$4.8 million."

The app experience on Teams is no different than the experience we all know in our phones and in our computers. Teams has its own application store where users can go and look for apps that suit their needs. Apps are divided into five different categories that we will look at in detail:

- **Personal apps**: These give you a personal view of your work and can be installed and configured by you according to your needs.
- **Bots**: A bot brings you information from other apps using natural language. You can query the bot and it will send you the right information
- **Tabs**: You can add the applications you need as tabs in the context of channels and one-to-one or group chats
- **Connectors**: Connectors will post notifications from other services to your channels.
- **Messaging**: Messaging apps include information in a card format from external services and post it to group, team, or one-to-one chats.

These five types of app allow you to bring information from third-party systems into meetings, chats, and calls with just a few clicks without ever leaving the Microsoft Teams ecosystem. An app can include support for one or more categories. This means it will have different behaviors when installed, which you can take advantage of and reuse in different scenarios. Now that we know what Microsoft Teams apps are, let's look at how to install them in the next section.

Installing apps on Microsoft Teams

Any user of Microsoft Teams (with the exception of guests) is able to install apps. You just need to open the app store and select the desired app, as shown in the following steps:

- 1. To open the app store in Microsoft Teams, click on the **Apps** icon in the sidebar.
- 2. The app store will open in the stage area, as shown in the following screenshot:



Figure 6.1: Microsoft Teams app store

- 3. By default, the store opens with the unfiltered list of all the available apps for your region, but the search and the vertical menu with the categories and types can be used to refine it.
- 4. Select the app you want to install and click on it.

5. A pop-up window like the one in the following screenshot will open, and from it you will be able to get a preview of the app running on Microsoft Teams, a description of the features, and access to privacy and permissions:

GitHub Developer tools		
Add 🔹		
	Northwind Traders > Development	10 × 0 15
About	Marketing 101 / Platform improvements	Links for Horsey & Links
	Incorrect error manage used when upticeding files	
Privacy and Permissions	et vers nament e twa senants op ny to de Tarons	
	 My successful a free incominanção filmas Sanata 	
	 Accessibility - Inscence (ARA Alachi used in Tagin Three Average speciel ensuremage to dover Molecety 	
	() Antomrett preview used in message over from makine app n) was carried 2 fear tage or mycla multimag	
	Missing sendliker in fixed Works spendliker in fixed	
	 Unit seat fulling with file uplead • successing insuring by terms devenue. 	
	Manage your issues and PRs. Receive noti GitHub repositories.	fications for your
	Browse issues and pull requests for your GitHub reposito messaging extension for Microsoft Teams. Use the bot to PRs, and subscribe to your repositories to receive notifica by TCS.	ries with the tabs and explore and modify issues and tions. This integration was built
	Tabs	
	Use in a tab at the top of a chat or channel	

Figure 6.2: Adding a new app

6. Click on **Add** to install the app.

Remember, depending of the app type, the Add button might assume different layouts with different options. The following screenshots show the possible variants:



Figure 6.3: Variations on the Add button

- (a) Add means that the app will become available globally.
- (b) **Add to a team** means that the app will be installed in a team. When the button just shows this option, it means the app cannot be used in any other context and you will not be able to use it as a personal app.
- (c) **Add to a chat** means that the app can be installed and added to a group chat or to a one-to-one chat.
- (d) **Open** isn't shown in the image. This option means that the app is already installed in your tenant and is ready to use.

Now that we have installed our apps, let's explore and implement the different types of apps in the next section.

Getting familiar with Microsoft Teams app types

This section will help you to understand each of the five app types by beginning with scenarios and with sample apps selected from the store.

The scenarios are described with configuration instructions. Please note that the options might be different depending on the app you will be using in your environment.

The examples are the typical scenarios that will boost your productivity when using Microsoft Teams. By using the apps on Microsoft Teams, you will be able to do most of your tasks without losing focus and wasting time switching between applications. So, let's get right to it.

Personal apps

Let's begin with our first scenario:

João, the book writer

João is writing a book about Microsoft Teams and is using Microsoft Planner to help with the deadlines and the requests made by the editor. Since João is writing about Microsoft Teams and using it intensively, he pinned Microsoft Planner as a personal app; this way, all the remaining tasks for the book are just one click away.

Microsoft Planner is pre-installed on Microsoft Teams, and to start using it as a personal app, all you have to do is this:

- 1. Click on the three dots on the app menu to expand the submenu with all the personal apps available for you.
- 2. Click on Microsoft Planner. Since it is part of your Office 365 subscription, you don't need to provide authentication. Planner will immediately display your tasks, as shown in the following screenshot:

Planner My Tasks Activity Recent	All Help About	⊕ Ø
Not started	In progress	Filter (0) 🗸 Group by Progress 🗸
HANDS ON Microsoft Teams Review notes on Chapter 4 0 02/10 0 João Ferreira	HANDS ON Microsoft Teams ○ Write chapter 7 • 🖻 02/24 ···· ↓ João Ferreira	HANDS ON Microsoft Teams Deliver Chapter 6 02/03 Completed by João Ferreira on

Figure 6.4: Personal app

Bots

We will now take a look at our second scenario:

John, the developer

John is a developer working on an open source project available on GitHub. John and the other project members are communicating through Microsoft Teams and are using the GitHub app to easily get an overview of all the open issues and to assign them to the right person.

To install the GitHub app on Microsoft Teams, do the following:

- 1. Open the Teams app store.
- 2. On the vertical menu, click on **Bots**.
- 3. Search for GitHub and click on it.
- 4. Click on **Add to team**.
- 5. Look for the channel where you want to add it.
- 6. Set up the connection to GitHub. This is required to grant permissions to get information from the GitHub repositories.

The interaction with bots is done through the chat, and you will be able to use natural language to question the application, which will reply to you using the intelligent mechanism it was built with.

Since bots and users are posting messages in the same chats, Microsoft Teams identifies bot messages with a hexagonal profile picture instead of using a round one, which is reserved for real users.

To interact with a bot, all you have to do is mention it in the chat window and then type the keywords that the bot will use to query the system. A mention on Microsoft Teams starts with @ followed by the name of the bot or the person.

If you are not sure of what you can do with the bot, check the **What can I do?** section shown in the following screenshot. It will show an overview of the commands that the bot understands. This option becomes available when you mention a bot, and it is demonstrated in the following screenshot. You can also see the hexagonal profile picture of the bot:



Figure 6.5: Mentioning a bot

If the bot doesn't know the answer to one of your questions, it will inform you so you can use alternative methods to find the information you are looking for:



Figure 6.6: Interaction with a bot

Successful replies are always made in the thread where the question was asked, and the results are displayed in a card format.

If you perform an action in the card that triggers a new question to the bot, it will reply in the same thread, keeping all the information related to the interaction aggregated in one location.

The following screenshot shows a thread conversation between a user and a bot. The user asked for the issues and, when they clicked on one of them, it triggered a new question to the bot, which replied with the issue details:



Figure 6.7: Bot conversation

Tabs

We now move on to our third scenario to understand how tabs are used:

Francis, the customer success manager

Francis is the customer success manager in an IT company and is responsible for keeping the customers happy. Francis' team has members all around the world, and to keep everyone in sync they are using Microsoft Teams.

Customers are reporting issues and requesting support using Zendesk, a customer service tool, which integrates with Microsoft Teams. To keep the information centralized and to get an immediate overview of all the requests, Francis added Zendesk for Microsoft Teams to a tab on the customer success team; this way, she can monitor the status of the tickets.

To add Zendesk as a tab on Microsoft Teams, do the following:

- 1. Open the Teams app store.
- 2. On the vertical menu, click on **Tabs**.
- 3. Search for Zendesk and click on it.
- 4. Search for the channel where you want to add the tab and click on **Setup**.
- 5. Authenticate and select the ticket view you want to display on the tab:



Figure 6.8: Tab configuration

- 6. Click Save.
- 7. A new tab is created in the channel with the name of the view, and you will be able to interact with the support system. If you need to create more tabs to display other views, repeat the entire process:

Teams	Y	cs Suppo	ort Post	s Files Wiki Recently updated tick ~ +			
Your teams CS Customer Success General		Recent 3 tickets	ly upda	ated tickets			C
Support Training			ID	Subject	Requester	Priority	Updated
Hidden teams		0	#3	Google Analytics not working on Classic SharePoint	John Smith		Today at 10:12
		P	#1	Unable to login	Pau Gasol	Normal	Today at 03:51
		5	#4	Issues with the approval workflow	Laurie A.		Yesterday at 09:52
ະວ້ Join or create a team	Ø						



Tabs allow you to modify the configurations after being added to the team. This way, if you make a mistake or if you simply want to change what is being displayed, you can modify it without deleting the tab and go through the installation process again.

Tabs can only be modified by Team owners. To do this, follow these steps:

- 1. Open the tab you want to modify.
- 2. Next to the tab name, click on the down arrow.
- 3. Click on **Settings**. This menu also has the option to rename or remove a tab:

Teams	\mathbb{Y}	s Suppo	rt Post	s Files Wiki	Recently updated tick.	ding tickets New	+	⊑ ⊭" ひ…
Your teams Customer Success General		Recentl 3 tickets	y upda	ated 3	 Settings 	\rightarrow		C
Support Training			ID	Subject		Requester	Priority	Updated
Hidden teams		0	#3	Google Ana	lytics not working on Classic SharePo	int John Smith		Feb 10
		P	#1	Unable to lo	igin	Pau Gasol	Normal	Feb 10
		5	#4	Issues with	the approval workflow	Laurie A.		Feb 10
ະອ້ Join or create a team	0							

Figure 6.10: Tab settings

4. A popup will open with the configurations for the tab. Note that the configuration options will be different in most of the tabs you have installed on Microsoft Teams.

Connectors

In this scenario, we will see how connectors are useful.

Susan, the marketing manager

Susan is the marketing manager of a Formula E racing team and is responsible for collecting everything Formula E-related that is posted by the press. To collect the news, Susan is using the RSS connector configured to get news from the main sites that cover the sport. Every time one of them publishes a new article, it also gets published on Susan's media channel on Microsoft Teams.

To add the RSS or any other connector available in the store to one of your teams, do the following:

- 1. Open the Teams app store.
- 2. On the vertical menu, click on **Connectors**.
- 3. Search for **RSS** and click on the application.
- 4. In the pop-up window, click on **Add to a team**:



Figure 6.11: Adding a connector

- 5. Select the team and the channel where you want to set up the connector.
- 6. Click on **Set up connector**.
- 7. Enter a name for the RSS connection.
- 8. Enter the RSS feed URL.
- 9. Choose the digest frequency.
- 10. Click on Save:

Connectors for "Media" channel in "SmartEV 🚙" team

 \times



Send feedback

The RSS connector sends periodic updates from an RSS feed. To set up a connector, enter a link that contains the address for a feed that you want to receive updates from.

Fields marked with * are mandatory	
Enter a name for your RSS connection. *	
FE Word news)
Address for RSS feed *	
https://fe.com/feed	
Digest frequency	٦
Choose how often you would like to receive your diges	
Every 15 minutes	
Save	
10	



Messages posted by the connector are added in a card format, and each connector has its own profile picture. Profile pictures used by the connectors have a hexagonal format to help users distinguish them from real users' profiles, which are displayed with a circular picture:



Figure 6.13: Connector message

Connectors added to channels can be modified or removed according to a user's needs. To modify a running connector from a channel, do the following:

- 1. Open the channel where you want to modify the connector.
- 2. Click on the three dots next to the name of the channel or in the top-right corner to open the context menu.
- 3. In the context menu, click on **Connectors**.
- 4. A popup will open showing the list of all connectors. The ones applied to the team are in the **Connectors for your team** section:

Connectors for "Media" channel in "SmartEV 🚓 " team

Keep your group current with content and updates from other services.

Search	2	All		Sort by: Popularity 🗸
MANAGE		Connector	s for your team	
Configured		2	RSS Get RSS feeds for your group	Configure
My Accounts			der tus leeds for your group.	
CATEGORY		F	Forms Easily create surveys, quizzes, and polls.	Configure
All		All connec	tors	
Analytics		ch.	Azure DevOps	Add
CRM		C	Collaborate on and manage software projects online.	
Customer Suppor	t	@ª	Incoming Webbook	Add
Developer Tools		৫৯	Send data from a service to your Office 365 group in real ti	me.
HR			i cha l	
Marketing		41	Gather, organize, and assign issues detected in your softwa	Add re.
News & Social				

Figure 6.14: Managing channel connectors

- 5. Click on the **Configure** button.
- 6. Reconfigure the connector and click on Save.

Messaging extensions

In this last scenario, we will try to understand when we can use messaging extensions.

Geno, the basketball coach

Geno is a basketball coach planning to schedule a party to celebrate the success of the season, but he is unsure about the date. Throughout the season, Geno used Microsoft Teams to communicate with the athletes and staff members, so he will use it one more time to do a poll regarding the celebration date. Geno will use a messaging app called Microsoft Forms, an extension of the platform with the same name that is included in Office 365. Using this, he will be able to post the poll to the General channel, and everybody will be able to vote and see the results. ×

To add Microsoft Forms or any other messaging app, do the following:

- 1. Open the Teams app store.
- 2. On the vertical menu, click on Messaging.
- 3. In the search box, type Forms.
- 4. In the app listing, click on **Forms**.
- 5. In the pop-up window, click on the arrow to open the dropdown and then click on **Add**:

-111	Microsoft Teams	Contraction (
	Apps	Forms Productivity, Utilities, Microsoft	× d
in in [n [t	All Presentations Rely Liber Competition Competition Competition	Add C S Casily create surveys, quizzes, and polls. Easily create su	And Terrary Institutes, and other Second Cold for Forems Second Cold for Councils Second
195 197		Notifications Get notifications from the app in a channel Created by: Microsoft Corp. Version 1.0.1	Compared and Compared and Andrew Compared and
1		Circelater Azure Diraci. News Wanderiter Eing News With	

Figure 6.15: Adding a messaging extension

Now that you have the app installed, it's time to use it. Messaging apps, once installed, become available to all the users, and you can find them next to the textbox used to type messages. To create a new form, do the following:

- 1. Open the channel or the chat where you want to post the form.
- 2. Under the textbox, click on the Forms icon.
- 3. In the popup, type the question for the poll and add the options.
- 4. Click on Next:

Forms Powered by Microsoft Forms	×
Create a new poll	
Vote on your date for the season celebration	
March 12	
March 24	
I can't attend	Ū II
+ Add option	Multiple answers
	Next 4
	÷ 🗉 🔁

Figure 6.16: Composing the message using the extension

- 5. If the preview looks as you expect, click on Send.
- 6. The form and the poll result are added to the channels and the chat window so anyone can vote and see the results:



Figure 6.17: Message posted using the extension

Now that we have had a look at all the different types of Microsoft Apps, in our next section, we will see how to manage our personal apps in a better way.

Managing personal apps

Personal apps were designed to boost your productivity, and they will always display content that is tailored to you. Personal apps can be launched from the vertical menu, and they can be configured by you or by the admin to better suit your needs.

The amount of space on the app bar is limited, and if there is no space to display all your apps, they will be shown in a submenu that is revealed when you click on the three dots, as shown in the following screenshot:

	Microsoft	Teams		2		Search or type a comma	nd		- 🐔
Activity	Files			(€ R€	ecent			
	Views				1	Maran	Madified -	Landia	0
	Find an app			Q	Type	Name	Modified *	Location	0
Teams				8		Ad Slogans.docx	12/14/19	HANDSONTeams / General	
Calendar	L.			•		HANDS ON Teams Notebook	12/4/19	HANDSONTeams / SiteAssets	
1	Calls				1	Doc.docx	11/23/19	HANDSONTeams / General	
Files	E s	-		-		Report.docx	11/23/19	Unknown	
	App Studio	Azure	Flow	Forms	03	Pre Season	10/23/19	WomansBasketballTeam1920 / Pre Se	
		0	•	N	X	Book.xlsx	8/27/19	oldintranet	
	Get Started	GitHub	Help	OneNote		Document.docx	8/27/19	oldintranet	
				•					
	2		Mo	re apps >					
(?) Help	+ 4	dd cloud	storage						



Let's take a look at what each of these mean:

- 1. The app bar showing the pinned apps and the ... to open the More apps menu.
- 2. All the personal apps that are not visible in the app bar are shown in this menu.

- 3. A group with all the pinned apps that are not displayed in the app bar due to the lack of space.
- 4. A group of all the unpinned personal apps that you have available.

Pro tip

Personal apps can be displayed with two different icons. The apps that are not pinned to the menu display a colored icon inside the submenu, while pinned apps are displayed with a white icon typically showing the outline of the icon.

Open personal apps can be identified in the app bar by the selected layout; however, it is different for pinned and unpinned apps:



Figure 6.19: Pinned app versus an unpinned app

- 5. Open **pinned** apps are displayed in its own position in the menu bar and in regular font.
- 6. Open **unpinned** apps are displayed at the bottom of the menu bar and in italic font.

By default, Microsoft Teams displays five apps in the app bar (**Activity**, **Chat**, **Teams**, **Calendar**, and **Files**), but this can be changed by you as an end user or by the Microsoft Teams administrator.

Personalizing the app bar as an end user

To remove personal apps from the app bar, including the default ones, you need to rightclick the app name and then select the **Unpin** option. Unpinned apps will be displayed in the submenu, and they can be pinned at any given time. To pin personal apps to the app bar, you need to right-click the app in the submenu and then select the **Pin** option:



Figure 6.20: Pinning/unpinning an app

Pinned apps are displayed in the order they were pinned, but if you are using the client version of Microsoft Teams for desktop, you will be able to change the order by dragging them to the desired position:



Figure 6.21: Pinned apps appear at the top of the list

Note

If the options to customize the app bar are not available, you should contact your Microsoft Teams administrator as this option can be enabled/ disabled globally.

Personalizing the app bar as an administrator

A Microsoft Teams administrator can personalize the default look of the personal app for all the users in the organization through the user of custom policies. This allows the admin to set up different layouts for the app bar that can then be applied to users individually according to their roles.

If you have administrator permissions and want to create a new company layout for the app bar, do the following:

- Open Microsoft Teams admin center: https://admin.teams.microsoft. com/
- 2. From the vertical menu, click on Teams apps and then Setup policies.
- 3. Click on **Add** to create a new policy:



Figure 6.22: Creating a new app setup policy

- 4. Provide a name and a description for your new policy.
- 5. Choose whether you will allow your users to upload their own custom apps. Custom apps are covered in *Chapter 7, Extending Microsoft Teams Using Custom Apps and Microsoft 365.*
- 6. Choose whether you will allow your users to pin/unpin their own apps. By disabling this option, you will remove the option to customize the personal app bar.
- 7. Click on **Add apps** to add the new apps.

- 8. Sort or remove existing apps. By default, any new policy will start with the five default apps from Microsoft Teams.
- 9. Click Save:

	Microsoft Teams admi	n center			l 🕼 ? 🏐
			pp setup policies \ Add		
ଜ	Dashboard		Developers	4	
දීරීම	Teams	\sim	Development tools are displayed on top		
٨	Devices	\sim			
٢	Locations	~	Upload custom apps (i)	O n 5	
සී	Users		Allow user pipping		
Ē	Meetings	~	Pater dat prining		
Ę	Messaging policies		Pinned apps		
Ħ	Teams apps	^	Choos order that apps are pinned in	8 eams app navigation bar.	
	Permission policies		$+$ Add apps \uparrow Move up \downarrow M	love down X Remove 7 Items	
	Setup policies				
ଙ	Voice	\sim	✓ Name	App ID	Distributor
1	Policy packages		GitHub	3/56/193-e2a/-4e2a-ad3/-a9160tc6264/	Tata Consultancy Services
A A A	Analytics & reports	\sim	Planner	com.microsoft.teamspace.tab.planner	Microsoft Corp.
త	Org-wide settings	\sim	Activity	14d6962d-6eeb-4f48-8890-de55454bb136	Microsoft
≣	Planning	~	Chat	86fcd49b-61a2-4701-b771-54728cd291fb	Microsoft
S	Legacy portal 🖸		iii Teams	2a84919f-59d8-4441-a975-2a8c2643b741	Microsoft
Ø	Call quality dashboard 🖸		Calendar	ef56c0de-36fc-4ef8-b417-3d82ba9d073c	Microsoft
			Calling	20c3440d-c67e-4420-9f80-0e50c39693df	Microsoft
		9	Save		

Figure 6.23: Defining the app setup policy with a custom personal app bar

New policies only take effect when assigned to one or multiple users. To assign your newly created policy, do the following:

- 1. From the vertical menu, click on Users.
- 2. Select the user to whom you want to apply the policy and click Edit settings.
- 3. Select the users you want to apply the new policy to.
- 4. Click on **Edit settings**.

- 5. On the App Setup Policy screen, select your newly created policy.
- 6. Click Save. New policies can take up to 24 hours to be applied to users.

Pro tip

You can assign policies to one or more people in your organization. However, it's recommended that you only do 20 people at a time. If you need to assign to more than 20 users, you can do so in batches or use PowerShell.

Managing the app installation as an administrator

By default, any app can be installed in Microsoft Teams. However, this setting can be modified by the global administrator by modifying or creating app permission policies.

App permission polices divide the apps into three categories:

- Microsoft apps: Any app published by Microsoft
- Third-party apps: Apps published on the Microsoft Teams app store by other vendors
- Tenant apps: Custom apps uploaded to Microsoft Teams

To restrict the use of apps in any one of these categories, do the following:

- Open Microsoft Teams admin center: https://admin.teams.microsoft. com/
- 2. From the vertical menu, click on Teams Apps and then Permission Policies.
- 3. Click on **Add** to create a new policy, or click on **Global (Org-wide default)** if you want to modify the default settings of Microsoft Teams.
- 4. Choose the setting for the app categories. Each one has four options that you can choose from:
 - (a) Allow all apps: Users can install and use any app.
 - (b) **Allow specific apps and block others**: Allow specific apps you want to allow and all the other ones will be blocked.
 - (c) **Block specific apps and allow others**: Add which apps you want to block and all the other ones will be allowed.
 - (d) **Block all apps**: Users are unable to install apps.

- 5. Configure your policy according to your needs and click Save.
- 6. Options (b) and (c) will require you to manually select the apps you want to block or allow, respectively. The following screenshot shows a custom app policy for marketing members that allows all Microsoft apps, just allows the installation of four apps from the store, and blocks the installation of custom apps:

	Microsoft Teams admin	Aicrosoft Teams admin center								
		App permission policies \ Add								
ŵ	Dashboard	Madation								
දීලී	Teams	Viarketing users								
٨	Devices	Policy to be used by all users from the Marketing department								
٢	Locations	Microsoft apps Chases which Teams published by Microsoft on its patheets can be installed by your years								
දෙ	Users	Choose which reality apps published by which soft of its partners can be installed by your dsets.								
	Meetings	Allow all apps								
Ę	Messaging policies	Choose which Teams apps published by a third party that can be installed by your users.								
₿	Teams apps	∧ Ø Block specific apps and allow all others								
	Manage apps	+ Add apps X Remove 4 Items								
	Permission policies									
	Setup policies	Slocked apps App ID Di	stributor							
6	Voice	Clever Google Ads ac2b56c0-f2a5-4e90-b618-882f8d3596f0 Cl	lever Ads							
٩	Policy packages	Google Analytics 4fcf98ff-e696-44e3-b4df-a6aff076ee1b M	licrosoft 1	eams Ec	osyste	m				
.	Analytics & reports			TD	,					
ঞ	Org-wide settings	Google Analytics insignts aetiobe0-0070-4537-a002-9900424a93c5 Pr	eevolut L	IU						
這	Planning	Polly 1542629c-01b3-4a6d-8f76-1938b779e48d Po	olly							
S	Legacy portal 🖸	Tenant apps								
ً⊘	Call quality dashboard 🖸	chouse which tenant apps can be installed by your users.								
		O Block all apps								

Figure 6.24: App permission policies

After creating a new policy, you need to apply it to those users who will be affected by it. To do this, do the following:

- 1. In Microsoft Teams admin center, click on Users.
- 2. Select the users to whom you want to apply the policy.
- 3. Click on Edit settings.

- 4. In the App permission policy, select the policy you want to apply.
- 5. Click on Apply:

	Microsoft Teams adm	iin center						
		=	_				Edit settings	
ଭ			Users				You can assign policies to one or your organization. At most, you 20000 users at one time, <u>Learn n</u>	/ more people in can select nore
605		· • •	You can n	nanage audio conferencing	settings, the policies assigne	d to them, phone numbers and		
\$		× .	adding or	deleting users, changing p	Policies	^		
۲		14					Meeting policy	
-			Ø Feb	t settings			Keen existing policy	
(CER)		1.00		and the second sec			Messaging policy	
				Display name 1	Usemanie	Phone number	Keep existing policy	~
티				Office Mac	officemac@handhons		Live events policy	
88		 					Keep existing policy	~
				João Ferreira	joao@handsonsp.on/	nicro.	App permission policy	
					Francisco@handsons	D.OD	Marketing	. ×
			Concession in which the				App setup policy	
			1				Keep existing policy	~
		× .		Reezy Inc	Reezv@handsonsp.or	amicr	Call park policy	
							Keep existing policy	¥.
							Calling policy	
	Analytics & reports						Keep existing policy	×
		280					Teams policy	
3≣		~					Keep existing policy	~
9								
Ø							Apply Cancel	

Figure 6.25: Assigning an app permission policy to a user

By using the app permission policy, you will get control over the apps that specific groups of users can install in Teams. Use it carefully! Excessive restrictions can make your users look for solutions outside the Microsoft ecosystem, putting your data at risk.

Managing apps as an administrator

As an administrator, you can control what apps are available to users in your Microsoft Teams app store. This can be done through policies, as we saw in the previous section, or can be blocked globally in the admin center. To block or allow applications in your organization, do the following:

- Open Microsoft Teams admin center: https://admin.teams.microsoft. com/
- 2. From the vertical menu, click on Teams Apps and then Manage apps.
- 3. Look for the app you want to control.
- 4. Select the app and, from the top bar, click on **Allow** or **Block**:

	Microsoft Teams admi	in center							۵	۲		-
		=										
ଭ	Dashboard		Mana		nne							
8 <u>6</u> 5	Teams	~	When you are managing apps for your organization, you are controlling what apps are available to users in your									
٨	Devices	~	organization's app store. You can then use app permission and app setup policies to configure what apps will be available for specific users. Learn more									
۲	Locations	~										
සී	Users		Org-wide app settings									
Ē	Meetings	~	+ Upl	oad new	app V Allow Ø	Block 487 Items		Q m		×	٢	
Ę	Messaging policies											
œ	Teams apps	~	~	Name	ASC Recording Insights	Certification ()	Categories Communication Files & docum	Publisher ASC Technologies AG		App st	iatus (2
	Manage apps				rea needed ing magne							1
\$2 	Permission policies			K)	AVA	Publisher attestation	Productivity	AvePoint, Inc.		Allow	ed	
	Setup policies			Α	Achievers		Human resources & recruiting,	Achievers		Allow	red	
ଙ	Voice	~		AdL	AddressLook		Productivity	Big Bang System Corp	c.	Allow	red	
	Policy packages			ଷ	Adobe Creative Cloud	0.112	Productivity	Adobe		Allow	red	
4	Analytics & reports	~			Adobe Sign	G Microsoft 365 certified	Communication, Productivity +	Adobe Systems Inc.		Allow	ed	
۲	Org-wide settings	~		n ^o	Advisor for Teams	(Microsoft	Microsoft		Allow	ved	
這	Planning	~		-0								
3	Legacy portal 🖸			me.	Advisor for Teams(Int)		MICrosoft	MICrosoft		Allow	ea	
Ø	Call quality dashboard			6	AgilePolly	(8	Communication, Productivity +	Polly		Block	ed	
				A	Airbrake		IT/admin	Microsoft Teams Ecos	ystem	Allow	ied	

Figure 6.26: Manage apps

In the **Manage apps** table, you will find all the information you need about the application to help you decide whether to allow or block it, and the following list describes what you can find in each column:

• **Name**: The name of the app. When you click on it, it shows the details of the app, including the current version published in the store and the App ID:



Figure 6.27: App details

• Certification: In this field, you will see the level of certification. This means that the publisher or Microsoft have verified the application and the results of the certification are publicly available. In this field, you can find the values **Publish** Attestation, Microsoft 365 certified, or it can be empty. When you click on one of the values, it will open the Microsoft portal, showing all the information about data handling, security, and compliance, helping you to decide whether to keep the app in the tenant:



Figure 6.28: App certification detail portal

- Categories: A list of categories where the app is included.
- Publisher: The name of the publisher.
- **App status**: This contains more information about the app's status at the organizational level. **Allowed** means that the app is available for users in your organization. **Blocked** means that the app isn't available for users in your organization.
- **Custom App**: Indicates whether the app was uploaded manually to the tenant or if it is available in the store. To find out more about custom apps, refer to *Chapter 7*, *Extend Microsoft Teams Using Custom Apps and Microsoft 365*.

In the **Manage apps** section, you will be able to carefully review all the apps available in the store and decide to allow or block them, keeping your Microsoft Teams tenant and data secure.

Uninstalling apps from Microsoft Teams

On Microsoft Teams, you will find different ways of uninstalling an app depending on its type. In this section, all the removal processes are detailed, so you can remove apps if you are no longer using them.

Apps that are installed in a team need to be uninstalled from the team directly. This process applies to tabs, connectors, bots, and messaging. To remove one these apps, do the following:

- 1. Open the team where the app is installed.
- 2. Click on the ... next to the name of the team to open the context menu.
- 3. In the context menu, click on Manage team.
- 4. Click on the **Apps** tab.



5. Look for the app in the list and click on the trash can icon:

Figure 6.29: Uninstalling an app from a team

6. In the confirmation popup, click on Uninstall.

Personal apps need to be uninstalled by you directly from the app bar where the app is accessible from. To do this, perform the following steps:

- 1. Locate the app you want to remove and right-click on it.
- 2. In the context menu, click on **Uninstall**:

	Microso	oft Teams			C	
L Activity	Teams				V	WB
Chat	·· ·					EÊ
Teams	Find an ap	р			Q	0
C	₽₹	.	Ø	Block		
Calls	App Studio	Azure Pipelines	Ô	Uninstal	I	
Files	-			0	?	
•••	Forms	Get Started	Gi	itHub	Help	
		19 0	۱	B	U	
	OneNote	Planner		PnP	Shifts	
	1	_				
				More	apps >	

Figure 6.30: Uninstalling a personal app

3. In the confirmation popup, click on **Uninstall** and, after a few seconds, the app will be removed.

You can only uninstall apps that were installed by you; default apps cannot be removed.

Summary

In this chapter, you have learned what Microsoft Teams apps are and how to use them in different scenarios. You have also learned how to extend Teams using the app store to create crafted experiences with the customization of the applications available to users.

In the next chapter, you will learn how Microsoft Teams can be further customized with apps from the Microsoft ecosystem that you might already be using, such as Power Apps, Power Automate, and SharePoint.

7 Extend Microsoft Teams Using Custom Apps and Microsoft 365

Microsoft Teams can be extended using apps from app store as we have seen in the previous chapter but it can be also extended with custom apps built for your business specifically. In this section of the book, you will learn how custom apps can be enabled on your tenant and how you can use other tools from the Microsoft 365 ecosystem to extend the default functionalities.

If you are using SharePoint, Power Apps, or Power Automate, in this chapter you will learn how to integrate these three platforms with Microsoft Teams.

In the following pages, you will find information about these main topics:

- Working with custom apps
- Installing custom apps
- Blocking Microsoft Teams apps

- Extending Microsoft Teams using SharePoint
- Extending Microsoft Teams using PowerAutomate
- Extending Microsoft Teams using PowerApps

Working with custom apps

Organizations are all different and have their own rules and internal processes. However, even though the Microsoft Teams store provides an awesome way of extending the platform, it will not be able to cover all the requirements of the different organizations.

To overcome this problem, Microsoft Teams allows you to upload custom apps built by developers for your organization. This way, you will be able to extend the platform according to your specifications.

Enabling custom apps

Custom apps must be enabled by the administrator and in this section, we will see how it can be done:

- 1. Start by opening the Microsoft Teams admin center at https://admin. teams.microsoft.com.
- 2. On the vertical menu, expand Teams apps and then click on Manage apps.
- 3. Click on the Org-wide app settings button:



Figure 7.1: Org-wide settings

4. Toggle the option **Allow interaction with custom apps** to **On**. This way, you can allow your users to upload custom apps that are not available in the store:



Figure 7.2: Enabling interaction with custom apps

5. Click Save.

As an administrator, you should be careful with the rollout of custom apps into Microsoft Teams. You should only install apps from trusted sources and you should plan who will be able to install this type of app. Even though custom apps get enabled globally in the org-wide settings, you can restrict who will be able to upload them through the use of setup policies, which is what we will see in the next section.

Disabling custom apps

Custom apps will be able to access information on your tenants, so it's recommended to plan which users will have the necessary permissions to install them. To restrict the installation of custom apps, you can disable this functionality on the Global (Org-wide default) policy – this way, each new user will not have the ability to upload custom apps. To do it, follow these steps:

- 1. Open the Microsoft Teams admin center.
- 2. On the vertical menu, expand Teams apps and then click on Setup policies.
- 3. Select Global (Org-wide default).
4. Click on the **Edit** button on the toolbar:

	Microsoft Teams admin cen	ter	Q			۲
	≡					
ଭ	Dashboard	Ann setun policies				
8 ტ9	Teams \checkmark	App setup policies control how apps are made available to a user with the Teams app. You can use the Global	(Org-wi	de		
ا	Devices \lor	default) policy and customize it or you can create custom policies and assign them to a set of users. Learn more	e			
٢	Locations \checkmark		0	Creat		
දිරි	Users	T Add a baile and the set of the	4	, search		
Ē	Meetings \checkmark	✓ Name Î Description C	ustom po	blicy		
Ę	Messaging policies	Custom Apps	'es			
6	Teams apps ^	FirstLineWorker	No			
	Permission policies	✓ Global (Org-wide default)	٩o		3	5
2	Setup policies	1				•
6	Voice					
1	Policy packages			Give f	eedbac	sk

Figure 7.3: Edit App setup policies

- 5. Toggle the Upload custom apps option to Off.
- 6. Click **Save**, and note that modifications of these policies can take up to 24 hours to be applied:

	Microsoft Teams admin	n center	Q			-
		App setup policies \ Global				
ଜ	Dashboard	et al.				
දී	Teams	Global				
ا	Devices	Description				
۲	Locations	Vupload custom apps 🔅 💽 Off 5				
දර	Users	Allow user pinning On				
Ē	Meetings	Pinned apps				
E	Messaging policies	Choose the order that apps are pinned in the Teams app navigation bar.				
B	Teams apps	Add apps ↑ Move up ↓ Move down × Remove 6 Items				
	Permission policies					
		Name App ID		Distribut	or	
ଙ୍କ	Voice	Activity 14d6962d-6eeb-4t48-8890-de55454bb	136	Micros	oft	
٩	Policy packages	Chat 86fcd49b-61a2-4701-b771-54728cd29	Ifb	Micros	oft	
<i>.</i>	Analytics & reports	Teams 2a84919f-59d8-4441-a975-2a8c2643b	/41	Micros	oft	
©	Org-wide settings	Calendar ef56c0de-36fc-4ef8-b417-3d82ba9d07	3c	Micros	oft	
:≣	Planning	Calling 20c3440d-c67e-4420-9f80-0e50c39693	df	Micros	oft	
\$	Legacy portal 더	Files 5af6a76b-40fc-4ba1-af29-8f49b08e44f	d	Micros	oft	
Ø	Call quality dashboard		-			
		6 Save Cancel				

Figure 7.4: Disabling custom app upload

Uploading custom apps

Now that you have disabled the upload of custom apps globally, you need to create a new policy that allows users to upload this type of app. To create a new policy for custom apps, do the following:

- 1. Open the Microsoft Teams admin center.
- 2. On the vertical menu, expand Teams apps and then click on Setup policies.
- 3. On the toolbar, click on **Add**.
- 4. Provide a name and a description for your policy.
- 5. Toggle the **Upload custom apps** option to **On**:

	Microsoft Teams adr	nin cent	er			Q	©	?	۲	
		≡	App setup policies \ Custom App	\$						
බ	Dashboard									
දීරී	Teams	~	Custom Apps						-	
♪	Devices	~	Description							
٢	Locations	~			-					
එ	Users		Upload custom apps (0 💽 0	n					
Ē	Meetings	~	Allow user pinning	• •	n					
Ę	Messaging policies									
Ħ	Teams apps	^	Pinned apps Choose the order that ap	Pinned apps Choose the order that apps are pinned in the Teams app navigation bar.						
	Permission policies		- Add	terre una de la Marine de una 🗸 Dese	L C Harris					
	Setup policies		- Add apps	nove up 🗸 Move down 🔨 Rem	love bitems					
ି	Voice	~	V Name	App ID			Distribut	or		
ŕ	Policy packages		🐥 Activity	14d6962d-6e	eb-4f48-8890-de55454bb13	6	Microso	oft		
۵Ĩ	Analytics & reports	~	Chat	86fcd49b-61a	2-4701-b771-54728cd291fb)	Microso	oft		
<u>نې</u>	Org-wide settings	~	😛 Teams	2a84919f-59d	18-4441-a975-2a8c2643b741	I	Microso	oft		

Figure 7.5: Enabling custom app upload

You now need to apply the new policy to the users who will have the power to upload custom apps. The profiles that should have access to this option are different in every organization but here are some examples you should consider:

- Administrators
- Developers
- Some team owners

To apply the custom app policy to your chosen users, do the following:

- 1. Open Microsoft Teams admin center.
- 2. On the vertical menu, click on Users.
- 3. Select the users that will have the power to upload these apps.

Note

You should not apply it to more than 20 users at a time. If you have more than 20 users, you can do this in batches or using PowerShell. PowerShell for Microsoft Teams is explained in *Chapter 10, Microsoft Teams PowerShell – a Tool for Automation*

- 4. Click on Edit settings.
- 5. On App setup policy, select your policy for Custom Apps.
- 6. Click **Apply**, remembering that custom policies can take up to 24 hours to be applied:

	Microsoft Teams admin cent	er					
	=						Edit settings
ଭ	Dashboard	Use	rs				You can assign policies to one or more people in your organization. However, it's recommended that you only do 20 people at a time. I parri
885	Teams 🗸 🗸	You car	n manage audio conferenci	ing settings the policies assigned to	them, phone numbers and	other features for	inord
\$	Devices ~	your or adding	ganization that use Teams or deleting users manging	and Skype for Business. Go to Admir g passwords or assigning licenses. Le	arn more	e other user settin	Keep existing policy
0	Locations v						Live events policy
25	Users D	10					Keep existing policy
rets.		-	tone servings				App permission policy
E	Meetings V		Discley name T	Username	Phone number	Location	Keep existing policy
티	Messaging policies		Galant	Georg A Schundranup comi		Ports	App setup policy
盼	Teams apps 🔗		Color Market	genesky nanoschop on m			Custom Apps 💛
	Permission policies		Francisca Petroto	Francisca@handsonsp.on		Portugi	Call park policy
	Λ.		Engliste Tabuata	Drandsco@bandsonin.co		Portug	Keep existing policy
	setup ponces		Pricesco racoaço	Thankado ginandao apian		Fortug	Calling policy
1	Voice	T				Portugi	Keep existing policy
	Policy packages	8	Diana T.	dianat@handsonsp.onmicr.	2	Portugi	learns policy
sii	Analytics & reports 💫 🗸					_	
٢	Org-wide settings 🧼					6	Apply Cancel

Figure 7.6: Applying a custom policy

Pro Tip:

When managing Microsoft Teams, you will stumble across multiple terms with reference to apps. As an admin, it's important to know all the concepts and the differences between them as they can be a bit confusing:

- (a) **Third-arty apps** Third-party apps are all the apps installed by users from the app store.
- (b) **Custom apps or side-loading apps** Both names are associated with apps uploaded to the tenant without using the app store.

Installing custom apps

Now that you know how to enable custom apps and how to give permissions to the right users to install them, it is time to learn how the installation process works.

Note:

The process described in this section uses a prebuilt custom app from Microsoft to install Microsoft Learning Pathways on Microsoft Teams. To learn more about this solution, visit https://docs.microsoft.com/enus/office365/customlearning/. If you want to know more about how to build custom apps for Microsoft

Teams, have a look at Chapter 8, Build Your Own App for Microsoft Teams Using App Studio.

If you are a user with permissions to upload custom apps, do the following:

- 1. Open Microsoft Teams and click on Apps.
- 2. At the bottom of the window, click on **Upload a custom app**.

3. On the menu, choose whether you want to install it globally for all the users in the tenant or just for you and your teams:



Figure 7.7: Uploading a custom app

- 4. Upload the ZIP file containing the app and click **Open**.
- 5. When you choose to install the app **for you and your teams**, a pop-up window will open and you will have to click on **Add** as shown in the following screenshot:



Figure 7.8: Adding a new app

6. When you choose to install the app **globally in the tenant**, after uploading the ZIP file, a new category is created in the app store's vertical menu, as shown in the following screenshot:

Apps		
Search all	Q	Get Started
All		Get started with on demand training for Office 365
Personal apps		
Bots		L
Tabs		
Connectors		
Messaging		
Built for HANDS ON	Sh >	
Top picks		
Analytics and BI		
Developer and IT		
Education		
Human resources		
Productivity		
Project management		
Sales and support		
Social and fun		

Figure 7.9: Installed custom app

7. To install the app, you need to click on it and then, on the popup, click on **Add**:

Depending on the custom app type, the **Add** button might assume different layouts with different options. The following screenshot represents the possible variants:



Figure 7.10: Add button - variations

Let's see what each of these options are:

- (a) Add: This means that the app will become available globally.
- (b) **Add to a team**: This means that the app will be installed in a team. When the button displays just this option, it means the app cannot be used in any other context and you will not be able to use it as a personal app.
- (c) **Add to a chat**: This means that the app can be installed and added to a group chat or to a one-to-one chat.
- (d) **Open**: This is not represented in the screenshot, but this option means that the app is already installed in your tenant and ready to be used.

Installing custom apps as an administrator

As an administrator, you will be able to install apps from the app store, as explained in the preceding section, or from the Manage Apps screen available in the admin center by doing the following:

- Open the Microsoft Teams admin center at https://admin.teams. microsoft.com.
- 2. On the vertical menu, expand Teams apps and click on Manage apps.
- 3. On the toolbar, click on **Upload new app**:



Figure 7.11: Uploading a new app as administrator

- 4. From the Upload a new custom app pop-up window, click on Select a file.
- 5. Select the ZIP file of your app and click **OK**.
- 6. Wait a few seconds for the confirmation message.

Apps installed from the admin center will become available to all the users in your organization.

Blocking Microsoft Teams apps

So far, we have seen how you can enable and disable the usage of Microsoft custom apps, but restricting the usage of these apps might be prejudiced against the adoption of the platform. A Microsoft Teams administrator always has the possibility to block custom apps or even apps installed from the store.

If you want to restrict the usage of apps on your tenant after being installed, do the following:

- 1. Start by opening the Microsoft Teams admin center at https://admin.teams.microsoft.com.
- 2. On the vertical menu, expand Teams apps and then click on Manage apps.
- 3. Click on the **Org-wide app settings** button:



Figure 7.12: Org-wide settings

- 4. Scroll down on the side menu to the **Blocked apps** section.
- 5. Search the app you want to block by name as highlighted in the following screenshot. This search will retrieve not just the custom apps installed by you and other users, but also apps in the store that are available for you to install. Once an app is blocked by the administrator in **Org-wide app settings**, it will not be available to be used by any user in the tenant:



Figure 7.13: Blocked apps

Click on the name of the app you want to block and then click Save.

Now that you know how custom apps can be managed and installed on Microsoft Teams, as an administrator, you will be able to decide how this feature will be available to your users.

Microsoft Teams can be extended with custom apps, but also with platforms that you probably already have in-house and have been using for a long time. The next section explains how SharePoint can be used to build your own custom apps for Microsoft Teams.

Extending Microsoft Teams using SharePoint

SharePoint is one of the key components of the Microsoft Teams structure and has been around since 2001, meaning that a lot of organizations have their information systems on this platform.

The SharePoint apps described in this section come pre-installed on Microsoft Teams and are available to be used in all types of teams and channels.

Using out-of-the-box integrations

As explained in the first section of the book, each team on Microsoft Teams is built on top of a SharePoint site that is used to store information shared by the team. While SharePoint can be used just to store documents, you can also take advantage of the powerful features of the platform, such as the custom pages, news, or lists, to create complex information systems.

To bring content stored on SharePoint to Microsoft Teams, you can use the out-of-the-box apps highlighted in the following screenshot:



Figure 7.14: SharePoint apps

Document Library

Document Library is a tab similar to the default files tab library you get on each team. While the files tab only gets you documents from the shared documents library in the site collection, this one allows you to pick any library from any site collection. To use this app in one of your teams, do the following:

- 1. Add the **Document Library** tab to the channel where you want to get the documents.
- 2. Select the site where the document library is located either by choosing from the **Relevant sites** list or by using a SharePoint link to the site or to the library.
- 3. Click on Next:



Figure 7.15: Document Library selection

- 4. Choose the library you want to add and click Next.
- 5. Provide a **Name** for the new tab. By default, the application suggests the name of the library.
- 6. Click Save.

The document library is a great resource when you need to bring documents from SharePoint to the Microsoft Teams context. The users will be able to perform the same actions they do on SharePoint, such as editing, uploading, renaming, and deleting files, however, the app does not give you access to custom views like the default files tab does:

Teams	\bigtriangledown	HO General	Posts Files Wiki Contoso ~ +		E 2	· · · · ·
Your teams Customer Success General Support		🚯 Shared Do	ocuments Jpload ④ Get link 🟟 Open in SharePoint			
Training		🗸 Туре	Name	Modified 🕶	Modified by	
Hidden teams		×1	QT300 Accessories Specs.xlsx	3/14/19	João Ferreira	
		R B	Potential Australia Exppptx	3/14/19	João Ferreira	
		×	Financial Reporting.xlsx	3/14/19	João Ferreira	
		×	European Backpacking Trip.xlsx	3/14/19	João Ferreira	
		WE	Corporate Giving Press Release.docx	3/14/19	João Ferreira	
		P E	contoso_marketing_facts.pptx	3/14/19	João Ferreira	
		2	contoso-timeline.pptx	3/14/19	João Ferreira	
		W	Contoso NextGen Camera Product Planning.docx	3/14/19	João Ferreira	
		w 🗉	Contoso Five Year Vision.docx	3/14/19	João Ferreira	
ະື່ອ້ Join or create a team	\$	N E	Contoso Company Goals Q1 - Q4.docx	3/14/19	João Ferreira	

Figure 7.16: SharePoint document library

Notice that this app respects the permissions on SharePoint, which means that if the users in the team don't have access to the library selected in the app configuration, they will not see any documents.

SharePoint News

Microsoft Teams doesn't have a feature that you can use to post news and announcements for the entire team, however, you can take advantage of SharePoint to do so. SharePoint team sites include by default an option to create pages and publish them as news, however, there is no mechanism to notify the users that something new was posted. The SharePoint News connector allows you to automatically post news in a channel when it is published on SharePoint. This app is not pre-installed on Microsoft Teams and needs to be added from the store. To do so, follow these steps:

- 1. Open Microsoft Teams and click on Apps.
- 2. Search for SharePoint News and click on the app with this name when it appears.
- 3. Click on Add to team.
- 4. Select the team where you want to add the connector.
- 5. Click on **Set up connector** and then **Save**.

The connector will do the configuration automatically and will connect to the SharePoint site collection associated to the team. This connector will only work on standard channels – private channels and site collections do not include the News feature:



Figure 7.17: SharePoint News connector

The news is posted in the channel using a card format and when the user clicks on it, they are redirected to the news in the browser, as illustrated in the following screenshots:



Figure 7.18: SharePoint News posts in Microsoft Teams

SharePoint

The SharePoint app allows you to add pages and lists to a channel from the site collection of the team. It has a simple configuration interface where you are able to select the list or the page you want to display, as shown in the following screenshot:



Figure 7.19: SharePoint list selection

A modern SharePoint page is designed to be displayed inside of Microsoft Teams. This means that the page will be displayed without the logo and navigation; it will only display the web parts (web parts on SharePoint are the equivalent to apps on Microsoft Teams) you have in the page.

Unlike the document library, this app does not allow you to select pages or lists from other site collections, but as a workaround, you can use the Website app, which allows you to embed any web page into a tab.

The main difference between both applications is that on the configuration window, Website requires you to add the link manually. Visually, they are very similar, and the only thing you will notice when using Website is an info message at the top the page, as highlighted in the following screenshot:



Figure 7.20: SharePoint list using the Website app

As a SharePoint user, you will be able to integrate both platforms using the out-of-thebox apps. As we will see in *Chapter 8, Build Your Own App for Microsoft Teams Using App Studio,* there is much more you can do with SharePoint and Microsoft Teams to build a reliable and centralized modern workplace.

In our next section, we will see how to build our own custom apps using Power Automate.

Extending Microsoft Teams using Power Automate

Microsoft Power Automate (formerly known as Microsoft Flow) is a tool that allows us to create automated workflows without writing code. It has more than 300 connectors divided between a free and a premium plan.

Note:

Most of the connectors from Microsoft 365 are included in the free plan and you can use it as part of your existing subscription without extra costs.

One of the free integrations available is Microsoft Teams, with which you can automate processes for you or your teams.

In this section of the book, you will learn, with the aid of examples, how easy it is to set up a workflow using Power Automate and also how they can be managed from the Microsoft Teams context.

Case study: Paul, the blog manager

Paul is the company WordPress blog manager and does all the posts and scheduling. To reach a broader internal audience, Paul wants each post to be promoted on the general channel that all the users have access to on Microsoft Teams.

Since some of the posts are scheduled and Paul wants this task to be fully automated, he will use Power Automate to publish a message on the general channel with the title, date, and link for the new post.

The idea described in this scenario can be implemented by doing the following:

- 1. Open Microsoft Power Automate at https://flow.microsoft.com/.
- 2. On the vertical menu, click on **Create**.
- 3. On the Create menu, click on Automated Flow.

- 4. On the popup, provide a name for your flow.
- 5. Select the trigger. A trigger is an event that will start the flow execution. In this scenario, the blogging platform used is WordPress, so you need to select the trigger named **When a post is created**.
- 6. Click on **Create**:

			Search for helpful resource	rces				
= 3	Home	Three ways to make a	flow					
D	Action items \sim	start from blank 🕖	Build an automated flow			~	×	٦
~ +	My flows Create	⊳∕°_+		.*	low name Blog Posts on Team	S		Â
43	Templates 2 Connectors	Automated flow Triggered by a designated event.			hoose your flow's tr	lgger * ()	-4	
0	Data ~	3			When a b Azure Blob	olob is added or modified (p o Storage	()	
مہ مہ	Al Builder V	Start from a template 🛈			Biogger	post is created	()	
	Learn	Top picks Approval Cal	Free yourself from repetitive work just by conne you already use—automate alerts, reports, and	cting the apps other tasks.	When a p WordPress	post is created	0	U.
		ø 🗠 📓	Examples: • Automatically collect and store data in busin • Generate reports via custom queries on your	ess solutions	GitHub	issue is assigned to me	6	
		Save Office 365 email attachments to OneDrive for	 Generate reports via custom queries on your 	Side Galabase	GitHub	new issue is opened and assi	0	1
		Business By Microsoft			When an	issue assigned to me is clos	0	•
		Automated 3644				Skip Create	6 cel	
		Get a daily digest of the top CNN news By Microsoft	Get updates from the Flow blog By Microsoft	Post messages to Microso Teams when a new task is created in Planner	ft			

Figure 7.21: Building an automated flow

- 7. Authenticate on WordPress. This step is common to all the triggers from third-party connectors, as you need to grant permissions to Power Automate to let it access your data from a third-party platform.
- 8. At the flow stage, click on New step.
- 9. Search for Microsoft Teams.

10. Select the action named **Post your own adaptive card as the Flow bot to a channel**. Adaptive cards are built with JSON and are an easy way to post structured information on several Microsoft 365 platforms. Adaptive cards can be built visually using the designer tool (https://adaptivecards.io/designer/). Once you get the desired layout, you can copy the generated JSON and reuse it:



Figure 7.22: Posting an adaptive card

- 11. Select the team and the channel where you want to post the card.
- 12. In the Message text box, paste the JSON code.
- 13. Look for the placeholders where you want to add the text from the post and click on the corresponding post field. Fields are added to the JSON in the cursor location once you click on them.
- 14. Click on Save.

Every time this flow is executed, it will automatically post a message on Microsoft Teams using the card format you have built, as the following screenshot demonstrates. Posts are made by Power Automate and the card includes information about the author of the message:

Teams	Y	HO General Posts Files Wiki +	© Team
Your teams PX Project X			
HANDS ON SharePoint		Add more people Create more channels Open the FAQ	
Authors Posts		B João Ferreira has added Flow to the team.	
Stats		Flow 12:38 PM	
Hidden teams		New product announcement 02/18/2020 12:37:44 João Ferreira (joao@handsonsp.onmicrosoft.com) used Microsoft Flow to automate this notification. Learn more View	
		✓ Reply	
est lais as seats a taam	~	Start a new conversation. Type @ to mention someone.	
to Join or create a team	225	A₂ (/ (□) [□□] [□] [□] [□] [□] [□] [□] [□] [□] [□	⊳

Figure 7.23: Adaptive cards in Microsoft Teams

Microsoft Teams can be used for actions, as we have seen in this example, but it can also be used as a trigger. The following lists detail all the available integrations and even though some of them are still in preview, you should be able to use them without any issues.

Triggers:

- When a new channel message is added
- When I am mentioned in a channel message
- When a new member is added

Actions:

- Get messages: This action gets messages from a channel into a team.
- Post a choice of options as the Flow bot to a user: This action creates a card with a set of options that a user must choose before responding.
- Post a message: This message is posted into a team channel.
- Post a reply to a message.
- Create a channel.
- List Channels.
- List Teams: Lists the teams you are a member of.

- Post a message as the Flow bot to a channel.
- Post a message as the Flow bot to a user.
- Post an Adaptive Card to a Teams channel and wait for a response.
- Post an Adaptive Card as the Flow bot to a user.
- Post an Adaptive Card as to a Teams user and wait for a response.
- Post your own adaptive card as the Flow bot to a channel.
- Post your own adaptive card as the Flow bot to a user.

Power Automate can also be integrated with Microsoft Teams using an app available in the Microsoft Teams store.

Note

At the time of writing, the app is still available with the old name – Flow.

Flow is available as a personal app and as a tab, and allows you to build your automations directly from Microsoft Teams.

The personal app also gives you access to the approval list and to the bot that allows you to trigger your flows using natural language. The following screenshot displays the personal flow app, showing the user view of their own **Flows**:

P	Flow Cha	t Flows Approvals About			U	⊕
	+ New \vee					Â
	Flows My flows	Team flows UI flows (preview)				L
	e/ ^a	Name	Modified	Туре		L
	Ŵ	Post company public posts on Microsoft Teams	3 h ago	Automated		L
	0	Weather London	5 mo ago	Scheduled		ł
	0	Weather Helsinki	5 mo ago	Scheduled		
	0	Weather Amsterdam	5 mo ago	Scheduled		
	Ø	Weather	5 mo ago	Scheduled		•

Figure 7.24: Managing Flows from Microsoft Teams

The tab displays your team flows and also allows you and your team members to create new ones. When creating a new Teams flow using the **tab** app, it fills in the form automatically with the team and channel details. The following illustrates how the tab app looks in configuration mode:

Teams	7	HO General Posts Files Wiki Flow ~ +	⊑∠"	ರ ⊕	
Your teams		\leftarrow Post message on Teams when a RSS feed is published \Box Save $~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~$	/ checker	∐ Test	
HANDS ON SharePoint		When a feed item is published •			Î
General		*The RSS feed URL			н.
Authors		https://teams.handsontek.net/feed			н.
Posts					н.
Stats					н.
Hidden teams		Alert the team ·	••		н.
		* Team	_		н.
		HANDS ON SharePoint			н.
		* Channel	_		н.
		General			н.
		Font \checkmark 12 \checkmark B <i>I</i> \blacksquare \checkmark \blacksquare \blacksquare \blacksquare \blacksquare \varnothing \mathscr{A}			L.
		Body of the message.			
ເວົ⁺ Join or create a team	\$	Show advanced options \lor			-

Figure 7.25: Creating a Flow from Microsoft Teams

Extending Microsoft Teams using PowerApps

Power Apps is a platform that empowers everyone to build business applications without writing code. With a simple and intuitive layout, it empowers every user to build more to achieve more. Microsoft Teams wants to embrace the power of apps created by users and allows you to use them on the platform. This way, we can say that every Power App is also a Teams app.

Note:

This section of the book does not cover the creation of an app; it only shows how you can integrate an existent app into Microsoft Teams.

Let's now take a look at a scenario to understand this better.

Case study: Adele, the event manager

Adele is responsible for all the events at the company and has a budget to manage during the year. To help her with all the events and with the visualization of how much is being spent on each one, Adele has created a PowerApp based on the data she already had.

Now that the app is working, Adele wants to share it with her team members so everyone can be aware of how much was spent.

Power Apps is available on Microsoft Teams as a tab only. This means that you can only use it in a channel or in a chat context. Every time you add a Power App to Microsoft Teams, you should guarantee that all the users will have access to the original Power App.

To start adding a Power App to one of your teams, do the following:

- 1. Go to the app store, search for PowerApps, and click on it.
- 2. Select the **Channel** or the **Chat** that you want to add it to.
- 3. Establish the connection between Power Apps and Microsoft Teams this is necessary to get access to your apps.
- 4. Select the app you want to add:

🐼 Po	werApps			About	×
Choose fro	om existing apps 🖒				
Search fo	or an app	Q	了 My apps	``	~
5	Budget Tracker ^{Adele} HANDS ON SharePoint (default)				
Looking	for more? Go to All apps.				
Or create a	n app in Power Apps 🗖				
Post	to the channel about this tab		Back	Save	

Figure 7.26: Adding an app to Microsoft Teams

5. Click on Save.

The app is added to a tab showing the original name you gave to it on Power Apps, and the layout will reflect exactly what you did on the original app. The following screenshot displays the Power Apps app behaving as a native Teams app:



Figure 7.27: A Power Apps app in Microsoft Teams

If you don't want to add the app to a team but instead want to use it as a personal app, you will need to download the application package from the PowerApps application itself. To do this, do the following:

- 1. Open the PowerApps website at https://make.powerapps.com/.
- 2. From the vertical menu, click on Apps.
- 3. Select the app you want to install and click on the ... button to open the **More options** menu.

4. Click on Add to Teams:

	hands on 🕏	NC† Power Apps	A Environment HANDS ON SharePoint				-
		$+$ New app $\checkmark \mathscr{D}$ Edit $ \triangleright $ Play $ \bowtie $ Share $ \mapsto $ Export package (preview) $ \circledast $ Add to Teams	🗠 Analytics (preview) 🔞 Settings		⇒ м	ly apps	ų.
6	Home	Anns					
0	Learn	- chho					
F	Apps	2 Apps Component libraries (preview)					
+	Create	The Name 3 2 Edit	Owner	Тур	e		
ш	Data \vee	Budget Tracker Delay	João Ferreira	Can	vas		
u ^A	Flows	ピ Share					
°¢	Al Builder \sim	1-9. Export packag	ge (preview)				
5	Solutions	昭 Add to Teams	s 4				
		Le [#] Analytics (pre	eview)				
		Settings					
		i Delete					
		① Details					

Figure 7.28: Adding an app to Microsoft Teams from Power Apps

5. From the vertical menu, click on **Download app**:

	hands or	1	.net					Add to Teams	×
=			+ Nev	rapp 🗸 🧷 Edit	▷ Play 🖄 Share 🛏 E	xport package (preview) 🛛 🕫	🖗 Add to Teams 🗁 Analytics	To add your app to Teams:	î
6	Home		Apps					1. Review and download your app (.zip fil	e)
ш 1 ш	Learn		Apps Component libraries (preview)					 Opload your app as a custom app to le 	ams
+	Create			P Name			Modified	Review app details App details can't be changed in Teams or	ice
Ш	Data	Ŷ	0	Budget Track	ter		1 mo ago	added.	1
~	Flows Al Builder							Description	1
ß	Solutions							Keep your projects and events on budget custom categories, easy data entry, and t graphing options you need to see it all cl This app will open with sample data.	, with he sarly.
								Edit details 🗂	
							5	Download app Cancel	

Figure 7.29: Downloading a Power Apps app

- 6. Save the ZIP file.
- 7. Upload the application package to Microsoft Teams, as described in the *Installing custom apps* section.

Once uploaded and installed, you will be able to access to your Power Apps app from the vertical app menu, as shown in the following screenshot:



Figure 7.30: A Power Apps app in Microsoft Teams as a personal app

Summary

In this chapter, you have learned how to extend Microsoft Teams in a more advanced way using the tools and platforms that are included on the Microsoft 365 platform. We also demonstrated, through the use of scenarios, how you can integrate the collaboration and communication areas of a modern workplace by building custom apps without writing code.

In the next chapter, we will continue to explore the options available to extend Microsoft Teams, and you will learn how to create a personal app from scratch without writing code.

8 Build Your Own App for Microsoft Teams Using App Studio

So far, we have seen how Microsoft Teams can be extended using apps from the store and apps developed by third-party developers. In this chapter, we will continue to see how Microsoft Teams can be further extended and how you can build your own applications.

Anyone can be a citizen developer on the Microsoft Teams ecosystem, and with Microsoft Teams App Studio you will be able to build your own apps and integrate your own tools inside Teams.

In the following pages, you will find information about these main topics:

- Understanding Microsoft Teams App Studio
- Getting familiar with Microsoft Teams App Studio
- Building an app using App Studio
- Using App Studio to integrate SharePoint and Microsoft Teams

Understanding Microsoft Teams App Studio

There are thousands of applications outside of the Microsoft ecosystem that are used by organizations in their day-to-day tasks; however, most of them don't have an integration with Microsoft Teams, which forces you to use them in a standalone mode.

Microsoft is well aware of this and wants to empower you to build/bring your business applications and scenarios to the Microsoft Teams context. To help with this, Teams has built App Studio.

Microsoft Teams App Studio is an app built by Microsoft to develop apps easily and quickly. Using this app, you will be able to create your own personal apps and tabs and you will also get access to some of the documentation about the design language of Microsoft Teams apps.

This simple app can be used by any citizen developer to build their own app in a matter of a few clicks. Now that we have understood the basics of what App Studio is, we will learn about its different features and get familiar with how to use it.

Getting familiar with Microsoft Teams App Studio

In order to accomplish the steps described in this chapter, third-party apps must be enabled in the **Org-wide app settings** in the Microsoft Teams admin center, as shown here:



Figure 8.1: Enable third-party apps

Note

More details about managing apps can be found in *Chapter 7, Extend Microsoft Teams Using Custom Apps and Microsoft 365.*

Microsoft Teams App Studio is a personal app and needs to be installed to be used in the organization. To get access to the studio environment, follow these steps:

- 1. Open the Microsoft Teams store by clicking on the store icon in the app bar.
- 2. Search for App Studio and click on it.
- 3. Click on Add. After a few seconds, the app will be ready to use:



Figure 8.2: Adding App Studio

4. To open the app, click on ... in the app bar and then in the more apps menu, click on **App Studio**.

Now that you have App Studio installed, you need to get familiar with it before we start using it. In the following sections, you will find a detailed explanation of all the features.

Chat

In the chat tab of App Studio, you will be able to interact with the bot to get information about how to develop apps and documentation. In the following screenshot, the bot was asked for information about the messaging extensions, and it returned links to relevant Microsoft articles:



Figure 8.3: App Studio bot

In this chat section, you will also be able to test other features that can be built using the App Studio, like the cards and adaptive cards used in the Power Automate example in *Chapter 7, Extend Microsoft Teams Using Custom Apps and Microsoft 365.* This way, you will be able to get a preview of what it will look like when added to a chat window.

Manifest editor

The Manifest editor is the tab that allows you to build your own apps. It gives you access to the form with all the necessary options to generate a Microsoft Teams app. Behind the scenes, it generates a JSON file that can be then installed in your tenant directly or downloaded and uploaded into other tenants. The following screenshot shows what the **Manifest editor** tab looks like:

App Studio Chat Manifest editor Car	d editor Control library About		
Home	Recently created apps		
Welcome Use the manifest editor to develop or import your own apps for use in Teams. Choose an option below to get started.	To do list	Video	New app New app for Microsoft Teams A description of what your app does
Build a new app from scratch Import an existing app Continue working on a project	PnP SharePoint PnP repository Get access to the PnP Respositories where you can find the		

Figure 8.4: App Studio - Manifest editor

Card editor

The card editor allows you to generate cards and adaptive cards to include in your Microsoft Teams integration, as we saw in *Chapter 7, Extend Microsoft Teams Using Custom Apps and Microsoft 365* with Power Automate. If you are planning an automated way to post messages have a look at this section; it will allow you to build the card, preview what it looks like, and get the code in three different formats: JSON, C#, and Node.

While building the card, you can test how it will behave in a real chat window. When you click on the **Send me this card** button, the card is posted in the App Studio chat:



Figure 8.5: App Studio – Card editor

Control library

If you know how to write code and want to build the most amazing native Microsoft Teams app you definitely need to check out the control library. Here, you will find all the controls that you will need to integrate in your app to make it look like a native Microsoft Teams application. The following screenshot shows all the options available in the **Control library** tab:

App Studio Chat Manifest editor Card editor Control library About							
Control Library	Dropdowns						
This tab is a showcase of the Microsoft Teams UI Controls library.	No Label						
Click through the controls below to get	left dropdown 🗸						
a preview of what is available.	With a label						
Home Useful usage information	l'm a label						
	right dropdown 🗸						
Event triggering	Custom content in items						
• <u> </u>	Customized item content						
• — Condensed event triggering	small dropdown V						
Checkboxes Multi-item selection	Small dropdown						
DadiaRuttana	Default icon						
Single-item selection	smail dropdown						
Y Toggles Y Turning things on and off	icon only dropdown						
P Inputs Text input	Show Code Editor						

Figure 8.6: App Studio - Control Library

Now that we are familiar with all our features and how to use App Studio, in the next section we will see how to build an app with it.

Building an app using App Studio

Building your first app using App Studio is an easy task. All you have to do is get the links to the applications or to the sites that you want to embed into Microsoft Teams and follow the instructions described in this section.

Note

App Studio can be used to build all five types of apps (personal apps, bots, tabs, connectors, messaging)but the only ones that can be built without writing code and that are accessible to all citizen developers are personal apps, which are the focus of this section.

Let's now look at a scenario to understand how to use the App Studio better:

John the surfer

John loves to surf and recently opened his own surfing school. John and the other teachers need to regularly check the conditions of the sea before the classes.

John's license allows him to teach on five different beaches, but visiting each one of them daily takes a lot of time. Luckily, those beaches are monitored 24/7 and live streamed on the internet, so John has decided to build his own app to get instant access to the videos while working and planning his day on Microsoft Teams.

If, like John, you also need a custom app on Microsoft Teams, follow these steps:

- 1. Open Microsoft Teams App Studio.
- 2. Click on the **Manifest editor** and then **Create a new app**.
- 3. Fill in the **App details** form. This is a long form, but there are a few fields that you can ignore if you are building the app for yourself. If you plan to publish it on the store, you should fill all the options according to the instructions to prevent the app being rejected:
 - (a) **Short name**: The short name can have a maximum of 30 characters and is the name that is displayed in the app bar.
 - (b) **Full name**: The full name allows you to exceed the 30 characters and is displayed when the app is visualized in the store. This field is mandatory and cannot be a copy of the short name if you want to submit the app to the store. However, if you want to use it on your own tenant you can use the same text as the short name and ignore the warnings.
 - (c) **App ID** : This is the unique identifier for the app. This must be a GUID and can be generated when you click on the **Generate** button.
 - (d) **Package Name**: The package name is a unique name that identifies your app, for example, com.domain.app

- (e) Version: The current version of the app. Make sure you update the version every time you deploy the app in the app store. If you try to reinstall an app with the same version number, an error will occur.
- (f) Short Description: The short description is displayed when the app is visualized in the store. It has a limit of 80 characters.
- (g) Full Description: The full description is displayed in App Source (App Source is the general Microsoft marketplace for applications). This field is mandatory and cannot be a copy of the short description if you want to submit the app to the store. If you want to use it on your own tenant you can use the same text as the short description and ignore the warnings.
- (h) Developer Name: The name of the person/company who developed the app.
- (i) **Developer Website**: The public portal for the person/company who developed the app.
- (j) MPN ID: This field is meant to be used just by Microsoft Partners. Microsoft uses the MPN ID to measure the usage of the apps built by each partner.
- (k) **Privacy Statement**: This is a link to the public privacy policy. It must be a real privacy policy if you want to submit the app to the store. If you want to use it locally and don't have a privacy policy, you can, for instance, point it to your company website.
- (1) **Terms of use**: A link to the terms of use. This must be a real document with terms if you want to submit the app to the store. If you want to use it locally and don't have one, you can, for instance, point it to your company website.
- (m) Full color logo : This is the logo that will be visible on the store and on Microsoft Teams when the app is not pinned to the app bar. The size of the logo must be exactly 192x192 pixels.
- (n) Transparent outline: This is the logo that is used when the app is pinned to the app bar. This logo must be an outline of the original logo in white and it must be exactly 32x32 pixels. If you want to submit your app to the store and your outline is not white and transparent, the app will fail the submission process. However, if you want to use it locally you will be able to use a color image.
- (o) Accent color: This color is used as the background for the logo:





4. In the second section, click on **Capabilities** | **Tabs**. In this section, you will be able to add tabs to the personal app, up to a maximum of sixteen.
5. In the personal tab section, click on Add:





- 6. Fill the tab form. All the fields are mandatory:
 - (a) Name: The name displayed on the tab. This name cannot be modified by the users in the app, so make sure you pick something related to what will be displayed on the tab. The name for your tab should have a maximum of 18 characters. After this limit, the name will be displayed with
 - (b) **Entity ID**: The unique ID for the tab. Each tab inside the app needs to have its own ID.
 - (c) Content URL: The URL that will be rendered inside Microsoft Teams.
 - (d) **Website URL**: The URL where the users are redirected when they click on the option to open the tab in the browser:

Personal tab X
Personal tabs require a name, unique ID, and content page URL.
*Name
Месо
*Entity ID
1
*Contant IIRI
https://www.voutube.com/e3ee818c-06b3-4daf-a6ad-667e634a2e78
Website URL
https://www.youtube.com/e3ee818c-06b3-4daf-a6ad-667e634a2e78
Save



Repeat steps 5 and 6 for all the tabs you want to add to your app.

- 7. Once you finish adding your tabs, move to the third and final section, Finish.
- 8. If your app will be supported in multiple languages, add the translation files in the **Languages** section. In personal apps, you will be able to submit a JSON file with the translation for the tab names.

In this section, you will find a template that can be downloaded and modified for each new language. In the following screenshot, you can see that a translation file for Portuguese has been added:



Figure 8.10: Languages

9. Click on **Domains and permissions** and make sure the domains used on your tab are listed in the domain list. By default, App Studio adds the domains from the tabs to this list, but if your app navigates to a different domain it should also be added in the **Valid domains** section.

Remember, the domain list is not updated when you remove tabs. Before installing the app, make sure the domains on the list are all being used in tabs. Unused domains can be deleted manually:

App Studio Chat Manifest editor	ard editor Control library About	
Home > Create an app		
White Sand By John F. Capabilities	Valid domains List the domains your app needs to navigate to. Use wildcards to include multiple subdomains (for example, *.example.com). Learn more Adding domains you don't own can expose your app's users to phishing attacks.	•
Messaging extensions	Enter a valid domain ex: www.contoso.com Add	
3 Finish		
🗂 Languages	Domains from your tabs	
Domains and permissi	www.youtube.com	
 Delete White Sand 	ipcamlive.com	÷



10. If you are ready to test or to use your app, click on **Test and distribute**. In this section, you will get the option to install the app directly in your tenant, download the ZIP file to install it in any other tenant, or start the process of submitting it to the store.

Note

To install the app, custom apps must be enabled for the user building the app. If you need help on how to enable custom apps, go to *Chapter 7, Extend Microsoft Teams Using Custom Apps and Microsoft 365.*

In this section, you will also find any errors or warning that may exist in your app, as the following screenshot shows. If you want to submit the app to the store, make sure that you don't have any warnings on this page; otherwise, the app will fail the submission process:

Create an app		
White Sand By John F.	Test and Distribute Choose what you'd like to do with your app. Learn more	
Tabs	Install	Description
🗂 Tabs	Install your app in Teams for testing.	Full description should not repeat the same lines in short description.
용 Bots 하 Connectors	Download Download and save your app package for distribution and	ř
Messaging extensions	submission.	
Finish	Download	
🗂 Languages	Submit	
Domains and permissi	Submit your app to the Teams app store for approval.	
* Test and distribute		

Figure 8.12: Test and distribute

These were the steps that John followed to build the app for his surf school. Since he only wanted to use it on this tenant he installed the app directly from App Studio. The end result is illustrated in the following screenshot. John made an app with five tabs that show all the spots where he can give surfing classes:



Figure 8.13: White Sand custom personal app

However, not all web applications will support the integration inside of Microsoft Teams. There are web applications that prevent being embedded inside other domains. Unfortunately, App Studio is not able to tell you whether the link you are adding is supported or not, but an unsupported page will look like this:



Figure 8.14: Error embedding a site in Microsoft Teams custom app

Using App Studio to integrate SharePoint and Microsoft Teams

As we have seen, building personal apps using Microsoft Teams is a really simple process, but if you want to build your own app using SharePoint there are a few things that you will have to take care of.

If you create the app using SharePoint pages just using the URL you copied from the browser, you will end up with an app that will only work on the web version of Microsoft Teams. On the desktop and mobile clients, the user will end up on a blank page without the option to sign in to SharePoint.

To overcome this limitation, it is necessary to use a hidden authentication page hosted in SharePoint:

- 1. Open App Studio and create or edit an existing app.
- 2. When creating the tabs, modify the Content URL to the following format: https://handsonsp.sharepoint.com/_layouts/15/teamslogon. aspx?spfx=true&dest=/sites/projects/SitePages/It's-allabout-communication.aspx.
- 3. The link to the actual page is added as a relative URL after the dest parameter in the URL. Leave the **Website URL** as the default SharePoint link:

Tahs
Personal tab X
Personal tabs require a name, unique ID, and content page URL.
*Name
SharePoint
*Entity ID
10005
*Content URL
https://handsonsp.sharepoint.com/_layouts/15/teamslogon.aspx?spfx=true&dest=
Website URL
https://handsonsp.sharepoint.com/sites/projects/SitePages/It's-all-about-commur
Savo
Save

Figure 8.15: SharePoint personal tab with the login details

- 4. For the domains and permissions, add the following domains manually by clicking on the **Add** button:
 - *.login.microsoftonline.com
 - *.sharepoint.com

```
*.sharepoint-df.com
spoppe-a.akamaihd.net
spoprod-a.akamaihd.net
resourceseng.blob.core.windows.net
msft.spoppe.com
```

Note: Wildcard domains

Wildcard domains, such as the ones in this list, will cause a warning and are not allowed if you want to submit your app to the store. All the domains in this list are from Microsoft and are safe domains. However, if while building your app you need to use wildcard domains, make sure they are safe, otherwise you may compromise the security of your application.

App Studio Chat Manifest editor Card editor Control library About Home > Create an app PnP Valid domains B By João Ferreira List the domains your app needs to navigate to. Use wildcards to include multiple subdomains (for example, *.example.com). Learn more Capabilities 🗂 Tabs Enter a valid domain App details ex: www.contoso.com Add 2 Capabilities 🗂 Tabs Additional valid domains 🖻 Bots ... handsonsp.sharepoint.com 슈켓 Connectors Messaging extensions *.login.microsoftonline.com Finish *.sharepoint.com ... Languages *.sharepoint-df.com ... Domains and permissi... -∿- Test and distribute spoppe-a.akamaihd.net n Delete PnP

The following screenshot shows how we can add Microsoft domains:

Figure 8.16: Microsoft domains

5. In the domains and permissions, scroll down and add the following value to the **AAD AppID** field:

00000003-0000-0ffl-ce00-0000000000

This app already exists on your Azure tenant and is used also by the SPFx web parts on Microsoft Teams.

Note

As mentioned in the previous chapter, web parts on SharePoint are the equivalent to apps on Microsoft Teams.

6. In the domain permission, add the URL to your SharePoint portal to the **Single-Sign-On** field:



Figure 8.17: AAD App ID

7. Save the app and install it.

The use of the resources of the SharePoint web parts explained in this section will force your Teams app to do silent authentication. This way, the content from SharePoint will be displayed as a native Microsoft Teams app.

Summary

In this chapter, you have learned how to build your own personal apps to extend Microsoft Teams using the App Studio in Microsoft Teams itself. Through these stepby-step examples, are be able to incorporate third-party web applications into Microsoft Teams, and you are also now able to create your own personal app using SharePoint.

In the next chapter, we will continue to explore the options to extend Microsoft Teams and you will learn how to create your own bot.

9 Building Your Own Bot for Microsoft Teams

If you were to say in your organization that you were going to build a bot to automate any tasks, I'm sure you would gain the attention of everyone in the room. Bots are powerful automated agents that can help you to do your daily tasks in an efficient way using natural language.

Even though it sounds futuristic and complex, building a bot is quite easy and does not require a single line of code. It is also quite easily accessible to everyone. By the end of this chapter, you will hopefully be the Microsoft Teams superhero of your organization.

The topics you will learn about in this chapter are as follows:

- Creating and packaging a bot using QnA Maker
- Creating and packaging a bot using Power Virtual Agents
- Using a bot in Microsoft Teams

Creating a bot using QnA Maker

Creating a bot for Microsoft Teams is only a few clicks away from any citizen developer using Microsoft QnA Maker, Microsoft Azure, and Microsoft Teams App Studio.

Microsoft QnA Maker is a service that allows you to build and publish bots without writing code. Using an intelligent extraction system, it is able to get the information to be used by the bot from an Excel spreadsheet, a Word document, or even a website.

Before we begin creating our bot, you will need to have access to your organization's Microsoft Azure and you must be able to deploy custom apps on Microsoft Teams.

Peter – HR manager

Peter manages HR in his organization and spends most of his day replying to questions from other employees. To save him time, Peter has compiled questions and replies in an Excel file, from which he copies them into Microsoft Teams.

To get more time to do his daily tasks, Peter wants to build a Microsoft Teams bot to reply to questions automatically, and to achieve this, he will use Microsoft QnA Maker.

If, like Peter, you see yourself building a bot, follow these steps and you will be able to do it in under 60 minutes. So let's begin:

- 1. Start by opening QnA Maker https://www.qnamaker.ai/.
- 2. Click on Sign in and authenticate using your corporate account:



Figure 9.1: QnA Maker website

- 3. Once authenticated, in the black bar at the top, click on **Create a knowledge base**. This action will redirect you to a five-step process in which you will create the intelligence for your bot.
- 4. In **STEP 1 Create a QnA service in Microsoft Azure**, click on the **Create a QnA service** button. This action will open Microsoft Azure and, if you're not yet authenticated, you must sign in with your corporate account:



Figure 9.2: Create a QnA service

5. In Azure, you will be presented with a form similar to the one in the following screenshot, which you must fill in to create your QnA service:

Microsoft Azure 🖉 Searc	h resources, services, and docs (G+/) 🖸 🎲 🗘 🔅 ? 🙄 joaoferreira@handsont (
	Home > Create
+ Create a resource	Create
😭 Home	QinA Maker
In Dashboard	Name O
	Highandsontex
	Subscription *
* FAVORITES	Visual Studio Enterprise
All resources	Pricing tier (View full pricing details) ©
(i) Resource groups	F0 (3 managed documents per month, 3 transactions per second, 100 transactions per minute, 50K transactions p 🔨
Services	Resource group *
	handsonsp V
	Azure Search pricing tier (View full pricing details) * ①
Azure Cosmos DB	F (3 Indexes)
🕎 Virtual machines	Azure Search location *
💠 Load balancers	(US) East US V
Storage accounts	App name 🐐 🔿
And Virtual naturation	HRHandsontek 🗸
	.azurewebsites.net
Azure Active Directory	1) The App service plan currently defaults to standard(S1) tier (Pricing). It can be modified by visiting the app service plan
Monitor	resource page once the resource has been created.
Advisor	Website location
Security Center	(US) East US
A Help + support	Ann Invictor O
O Cost Management + Billing	(Enable (Disable))
	Create Automation options

Figure 9.3: QnA creation form

- (a) **Name**: The name that will identify your QnA service on Azure.
- (b) **Subscription**: If you have access to more than one Azure subscription, select the one you want to use here.
- (c) Pricing tier: Select the pricing tier. There are several options available. Choose one according to the load you estimate for your bot. The F tier is free and gives you 3 transactions per second and a maximum of 50,000 transactions per month. You can start with the free instance and adjust it later if needed.
- (d) Resource group: The resource group where you want to create your service. Resource groups on Azure are typically used to group resources related to the same application or to separate resources from production and development environments.
- (e) **Azure Search pricing tier**: Azure Search is a cognitive service that will be used by the bot. This is the service that handles the natural language and retrieves the results even if the question is not an exact match to what was provided to the QnA service. The F tier is free. It gives you 50 MB of storage. If needed, you can adjust it later to a paid tier with more storage space.
- (f) Azure Search location: The data center where your service will be running. It's recommended to select the one closer to the physical location of your organization.
- (g) **App Name**: The name of your app service. By default, it will have the same name as the QnA service, but you can change it if needed.
- (h) Website location: The data center where your website will be located. It's recommended to select the one closest to the physical location of your organization.
- (i) **App insights**: App insights is a tool that helps you to understand how your app is being used. It will monitor the usage of the application so you will know what your users are doing with your bot.
- 6. Click on **Create**. The service will take a few minutes to get created. Once it's available, you will receive a notification on Azure.

Go back to the QnA Maker portal, scroll down to **STEP 2 Connect your QnA service to your KB**, and click the **Refresh** button. This will establish a connection with Azure and will get the information about the service you have just created. Select the service as shown in the following screenshot:

Cognitive Services QnA Maker	My knowledge bases Create a knowledge base	٢	JF
	Design sophisticated multi-turn conversations easily with follow-up prompts. Learn more,		
STEP 2	Connect your QnA service to your KB. After you create an Azure QnA service, refresh this page and then select your Azure service using the options below		
	* Microsoft Azure Directory ID		
	handsontek.net 🔻		
	* Azure subscription name		
	Visual Studio Enterprise 💌		
	* Azure QnA service		
	HRHandsontek 💌		
	* Language		
	English		



7. In **STEP 3 Name your KB**, provide a name for your knowledge base. This can be changed at any time if needed:

Cognitive Services QnA	aker My knowledge bases Create a knowledge b	ase	?	•	JF
	Design sophisticated multi-turn conversations	easily with follow-up prompts. Learn more.			
STEP 3	Name your KB. The knowledge base name is for you • Name	r reference and you can change it at arytime.			
	HR HANDS ON tek				



8. In **STEP 4 Populate your KB**, provide the data that your bot will use to answer the questions. This supports existing websites that will be parsed by the system to get questions, documents, and Excel spreadsheets.

9. Click on **Add file** and upload your Excel file. The following screenshot has an example of how simple your spreadsheet can be, with just two columns. In column A, we have the questions and in column B, we have the answers:

. 5)· ぐ・	÷					Questio	ns.xlsx - E	cel				Œ	1 – I	⊐ /×
File	Home	Insert	Page Layout	Formulas	Data	Review	v View	🖓 Tell m	e what you w	ant to do				João Ferreira	A Share
Paste	Calibri B I	• U • 🗄	11 ▼ A A A		∛> - €≣ •	₽ 	General \$ ~ % 🄊	.00. 0.⇒	Conditional Formatting	Format as Table *	Cell Styles •	Format *	Σ - ↓ -	AZT Q Sort & Find & Filter * Select *	
Clipboard	F	Font	5	Align	ment	F5	Numbe	r G		Styles		Cells		Editing	^
A2		\colon \times	$\checkmark f_X$	How can	l open	a suppo	ort ticket?								~
		А							В						(*
1 How	the refer	al progra	am works?	You can e	arn up	to \$100	OUSD for	each refe	erral. More i	informati	on is av	ailable at htt	ps://ł	nandsontek.ne	t/refer
2 How	can I ope	en a supp	oort ticket?	Use the s	upport	applica	tion availa	ble in th	e landing pa	ge of the	intrane	t. Use your e	mail t	to authenticat.	
3 How	many va	cation da	ays do I have?	Each year	r you ar	e entitle	ed to 22 d	ays of pa	id vacations	, to check	how m	any days you	u have	e remaining vi	sit the
4															
5															-
\rightarrow	Shee	t1	÷							4					Þ
Ready												II II II]		+ 100%

Figure 9.6: Excel questions and answers

10. Choose the **Chit-chat** option. By default, this option is off, but you can enable it to allow the bot to reply to questions that you have not planned to answer. There are five different types that you can choose from. Make sure you pick one that matches the culture of your organization:

Cognitive Services QnA Maker	My knowledge bases Create a knowledge base		J
Desig	gn sophisticated multi-turn conversations easily with follow-up prompts. Learn more,		
STEP 4	Populate your KB. Extract question-and-answer pairs from an online FAQ, product manuals, or other files. Supported formats are, txv, pdt, doc, docx, xbx, containing questions and answers in sequence. Learn more about knowledge base sources. Skip this step to add questions and answers manually after creation. The number of sources and file size you can add depends on the QnA service SKU you choose. Learn more about QnA Maker SKUs.		
	File name		
	Questions.xlsx 🗊		
	+ Add file		
	Chit-chat		
	Give your bot the ability to answer thousands of small-talk questions in a voice that fits your brand. When you add chit-chat to your knowledge base by selecting a personality below, the questions and responses will be automatically added to your knowledge base, and you'll be able to edit them anytime you want. <u>Learn more about chit-chat</u> . © None © Professional © Friendly © Caring © Caring		

Figure 9.7: Knowledge base settings

Cognitive Services QnA Maker	My knowledge bases Create a knowledge base	?	0	JF
	Design sophisticated multi-turn conversations easily with follow-up	prompts. <u>Learn more.</u>		
STEP 5	Create your KB The tool will look through your documents and create a kno service. If you are not using an existing document, the tool w knowledge base table which you can edit. Create your KB	owledge base for your will create an empty		

11. In STEP 5 Create your KB, click on Create your KB:

Figure 9.8: Create knowledge base

- 12. After a few seconds, you will be redirected to the knowledge base **EDIT** panel and you will be able to review and add alternative phrases to your questions and answers.
- 13. Click on **Save and train**, to save any modifications you may have made to the system:

Cognitive Ser	vices QnA Maker My knowledge b	bases Create a knowledge base					۲	JF
HR		EDIT	PUBLISH	SETTINGS	Save and tr	ain	← Test	
	Knowledge bas	e						
	Search the knowledge base X	93 QnA pairs		+	Add QnA pair	View opt	tions	
	Context	Question	1 Answer	2 3 4	5 10	Next	>	
		4445444	,					
	How the referal progr	How the referal program works? × + Add alternative phrasing	You can ea More inforn https://han + Add follow	rn up to \$1000USD mation is available idsontek.net/referr w-up prompt	i for each referral. at al		Û	
	How can I open a sup	How can I open a support ticket? × + Add alternative phrasing	Use the sup landing pay authenticat + Add follow	pport application a ge of the intranet. t. w-up prompt	wailable in the Use your email to		Ē	
	How many vacation d	How many vacation days do I have?	K Each year y vacations, t remaining https://han + Add follo	you are entitled to to check how many visit the vacations p udsontek.net/vacati w-up prompt	22 days of paid / days you have portal ions		Î	
	\wedge Source: qna_chitchat_Enthusiastic.tsv	,						
	Are you old?	Are you old? × I bet you're old × How old are you? ×	l'm a bot, s + Add follow	io I don't have an a w-up prompt	ige.		Î	

Figure 9.9: Knowledge base review

14. In the black bar at the top, click on **PUBLISH** and then click on the **Publish** button:

Cognitive Services QnA Maker My knowledge bases Create a knowledge	lge base				?	. JF
HR	EDIT	PUBLISH	SETTINGS	Save and train		← Test
		/				
HR HANDS ON tek						
Your service has never been deployed. Publishing your knowledge base moves your QnA: base endpoint becomes available for use in your B	s from the te lot or App	st index to the produc	ction index. Once	you publish, the kno	wledg	e
This knowledge base will be published to the hrha	indsontek Qr	nA Maker service.				
Cancel Publish						

Figure 9.10: Publish knowledge base

15. After a few seconds, you will be redirected to a success page. On this page, click on the **Create Bot** button. This will redirect you to Azure again, where you will need to create the bot itself:



16. The form on Azure is automatically filled; you just need to validate the data and make the necessary adjustments. Since this is a no-code solution, you can ignore the option selected for **SDK language**:

Micro	soft Azure		rces, services,	, and (docs (G+/)	▶.	₽	¢	ŝ	?	٢	joaoferreira@handsont @
»	Home > We	b App Bot										
+	Web App Bot Service	Bot		×								
	Bot handle *											
	hrhandsont	ek-bot										
=	Subscription											
+	Visual Studi	o Enterprise	~									
_	Resource gro	vup *										
	handsonsp		\sim									
()	Create new											
	Location * 🤇	D										
-	Central US		~									
199	Pricing tier (View full pricing de	tails)									
22	S1 (1K Prem	nium Msgs/Unit)	~									
.	App name *											
-	hrhandsont	ek-bot	×									
<u> </u>	SDK languag	.azur	ewebsites.ne	t								
	● C# ○	Node.js										
<.>	QnA Auth Ke	y* ()										
-	639db408-4	4c2a-423b-b658-b3	5bd920da									
 Image: Control of the second se	*App service	plan/Location										
-	HRHandso	ntek/East US										
۲	Application	nsights ()										
2	On	Off										
0	Microsoft A	pp ID and password	0 、									
	Auto create	e App ID and pass	/ word									
_				•								
	Create	Automation o	ptions									

Figure 9.12: Create the bot

17. Click on **Create**. This process will take a few minutes. Once the deployment finishes, you will get a notification on Azure.

18. On the Azure notification, click on the **Go to resource** button. This will open the setup page of the bot framework:



Figure 9.13: Bot framework setup

19. On the vertical menu, click on **Test in Web Chat** and check whether your bot works as you expect:



Figure 9.14: Test in Web Chat

20. On the vertical menu, click on **Channels** and then click on the Microsoft Teams logo:



Figure 9.15: Add a Microsoft Teams channel

21. Click on **Save** to create a new channel for Microsoft Teams. This action will allow you to test your bot on Microsoft Teams.

Creating a QnA bot is accessible to all users if they have access to their organization's Microsoft Azure subscription. Also, it can be used to automate processes that are currently being done manually, wasting the productive time of all collaborators.

Packaging the bot using QnA Maker

To make your bot available to all users in the organization, you have to package it as an app. In this section, you will learn what steps are needed to package your first bot for Microsoft Teams.

Note

If you are not yet familiar with Microsoft Teams App Studio, it is recommended to have a look at *Chapter 8, Build Your Own App for Microsoft Teams Using App Studio*.

Let's get right to it:

- 1. Open App Studio on Microsoft Teams.
- 2. Click on the Manifest editor tab.
- 3. Click on the **Create a new app** button:

	Mic	rosoft	Teams	Ľ			Search or type a com	nmand			
L Activity	æ	Арр	Studio Chat	Manifest edito	r Card ed	litor Contr	ol library About				
E Chat	Hom	e									
						Recently cr	eated apps				
Teams Calls		Weld Use the import Choose	come manifest editor your own apps fo an option below	to develop or or use in Teams. r to get started.		To do list	Todos To do list		Video	Video New app for Microsoft Teams	
Files		+	Create a new a	ipp							
Calendar	1	۵	Import an exis	ting app g on a project		Get access	PnP SharePoint PnP repository s to the PnP Respositories who	•••	Watch the	White Sand White Sand Surf School beaches live cams	
						you can fi	nd the				
Apps											
? Help											

Figure 9.16: Create a new app

- 4. Fill in the **App details** form. A detailed description of this form can be found in *Chapter 8, Build Your Own App for Microsoft Teams Using App Studio.*
- 5. On the **Capabilities** group click on **Bots**.
- 6. To start the connection between your bot and your Microsoft Teams app, click on **Set up:**



Figure 9.17: Setup bot

7. On the **Set up a bot** popup, click on the **Existing bot** tab:

Set up a bot
Create a new bot or configure an existing bot.
New bot Existing bot
"Bot ID
Select from one of my existing bots
 Connect to a different bot id
XXXXXXXX-XXXXX-XXXXX-XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
Messaging bot
My bot supports uploading and downloading files
My bot is a one-way notification only bot
Calling bot
My bot supports video call
My bot supports audio call
*Scope
Personal
Group Chat

Figure 9.18: Connect to a bot

- 8. Select **Connect to a different bot id** and open Azure to get the ID of your bot.
- 9. On Azure, click on All services.
- 10. In the Overview menu, click on **AI** + machine learning.
- 11. Click on the name of your newly created bot:

Ŕ	
Ŕ	
~	
56	se •



- 12. On the App Service Settings group, click on Configuration.
- 13. On the Application settings tab, look for the value MicrosoftAppId.
- 14. Click on it and copy its value:

Microsoft Azure	\mathcal{P} . Search resources, services, and docs (G+/)		5 6 0 © ?	ioaoferreira@handsont @
	« All services > Bot Services > hrhandson	tek-bot - Configuration		
+ Create a resource	hrhandsontek-bot - Con Web App Bot	figuration		×
Pome Dashboard	ρ Search (Ctri+/) α	🕐 Refresh 🛛 Save 🔀 Discard		
E All services	Tags	Application settings		gs
* FAVORITES	Bot management	Application settings		5.500 W W W
(e) Resource groups	Build	Application settings are encrypted at rest them in plain text in your browser by usin variables for access by your application a	and transmitted over an encrypted chann ig the controls below. Application Settings truntime Learn more	el. You can choose to display are exposed as environment
SQL databases	Analytics	+ New application setting Show	values 🖉 Advanced edit 💟 Filter	
Azure Cosmos DB	Channels	Name	Value	Source
 Virtual machines Load balancers 	Speech priming	MicrosoftAppId	Hidden value. Click show values button a	A 11 onfig
E Storage accounts	Bot Service pricing	MicrosoftAppPassword	Hidden value. Click show values button a	App Config
 Virtual networks Azure Active Direction 	xy III Configuration 12	GnAAuthKey	Hidden value. Click show values button a	App Config
Monitor	All App service settings	QnAEndpointHostName	Hidden value. Click show values button a	App Config
Advisor	Support + troubleshooting	QnAKnowledgebaseld	Hidden value. Click show values button i	App Config
Security Center Relp + support	R New support request	WEBSITE_NODE_DEFAULT_VERSION	Hidden value. Click show values button a	App Config

Figure 9.20: Copy bot ID

- 15. Paste the ID from Azure in the Bot ID field in Microsoft Teams App Studio.
- 16. On the scope option, select where you want to make it available. You can choose Personal, Team, or Group chat. Choose according to the features and the intent of your bot. The more options you select, the more possibilities you will give to your users to interact with it.
- 17. Click on Save.
- 18. On the Finish step, click on Test and distribute.



19. Click on **Download** to get the application package:



- 20. Open Microsoft Teams Apps Store.
- 21. Click on **Upload a custom app**, and select the upload for the organization to make it available to all users.
- 22. Once installed, click on the app and then click **Add**. To learn more about how to install custom apps on Microsoft Teams, read *Chapter 6, Extending Microsoft Teams Using Apps*.

After completing these steps, your bot has been built with QnA Maker on Azure, and that was done without writing a single line of code. Similar to how we created a bot using QnA Maker, in the next section, we will see how to do so using another tool.

Creating a bot using Power Virtual Agents

Microsoft has different tools that allow you to rapidly create bots without writing code. We looked at QnA Maker in the previous section. Now we will have a look at Power Virtual Agents.

Note: Power Virtual Agents licensing

Power Virtual Agents is not included in Microsoft 365 plans – it requires a separate license for it to work. More information about prices can be found on the Power Virtual Agents website at https://powervirtualagents.microsoft.com/.

To get started with Power Virtual Agents, do the following:

- 1. Open the sign-in page: https://powervirtualagents.microsoft.com.
- 2. Sign in if you already have a license or start a trial by clicking on Sign up free or Start free:



Figure 9.22: Sign in to Power Virtual Agents

3. On the **Create a new bot** popup, give your bot a name:



Figure 9.23: Create a new bot

4. Click on **Create** and wait a few seconds for the process to finish. Once it's created, you will enter Power Virtual Agents:



Figure 9.24: Power Virtual Agents layout

5. On the vertical menu, click on **Topics**. You will notice that the topics are already pre-populated with lessons that will help you to understand how Power Virtual Agents work with conditions and variables:

-	hands on 🕏	NCT Power Virtual Agents HR Bot						-
=		Test bot	+ New topic 👼 Suggest topics					
۵	Home	Track between topics 💽 💍 Reset 🚦						
(1)	Topics	Chat PD	Topics o					
₿	Entities		Existing (12) Suggested (0)	,0 s	earch	existin	g topics	
Ŀ	Analytics		✓ Name	Trigger phrases		St	atus	E
Ť	Publish		✓ User Topics (4)					
D	Manage 🗸 🗸 🌱		Lesson 1 - A simple topic	(4) When are you closed		C	On On	
			Lesson 2 - A simple topic with a condition and	(5) Are there any stores arour	nd	•	O On	
			Lesson 3 - A topic with a conditions, variables	(5) Buy items		•	O On	
			Lesson 4 - A topic with a conditions, variables	(5) What is the best product f	for	•	O On	
			System Topics (8)					
			Greeting	(52).Good afternoon				
0	Hide bot	Type your message	Escalate	(65) Talk to agent				

Figure 9.25: Topics

- 6. To add your own topic, click on **New topic**.
- 7. Provide a name and a description for your topic.
- 8. Enter a trigger phrase and click on Add. Try to start with 5-10 diverse phrases.
- 9. Click on Go to authoring canvas to start building your topic:

	hands on 🕏	Net Power Virtual Agents HR Bot		A D 🐵 ? 🌍
=		Test bot $ imes$	Vacations	层 Save topic 🔟 Delete
ଜ	Home	Track between topics 💽 💍 Reset 🚦	Column Analytics	
0	Topics	Chat P	Setup Analytics	
₿	Entities		Name * Trigger phrases (3) ①	් Go to authoring canvas
Ŀ.	Analytics		Vacations How might your customers ask about this topic? Try to start with 5-10 diver phrases.	Status
Î	Publish		Description Enter a trigger phrase Add	- 9
Þ	Manage \vee		Provide information about	
			Vacations	
			Vacation days	
			How many days of vacations do I have?	
		Type your message		
Θ	Hide bot			

Figure 9.26: Create a new topic

	hands on 🕏	NCT Power Virtual Age	ents HR Bot			Å	Q	۲	?	-
=		Test bot	×	Vacations	🕚 Discard changes 🦻 Undo 🤇	🤇 Redo	양 Topic	checker	۲	Save
ណ៍	Home	Track between topics ●	🖔 Reset 🗄							
6	Topics	Chat	Fa		Trigger Phrases (3)					
₿	Entities		1-		How many days of vacations do I have Vacation days Vacations	ve? 😫				
Ŀ	Analytics									
Ţ	Publish									
B	Manage 🗸 🗸			_	Message					
				©	٥					
				Q	+					
				0	Add node					
		Type your message	\triangleright	{x}						
U	Hide bot			_						

10. Click on the + icon to add a node. Nodes can be messages, questions, or conditions:

Figure 9.27: Authoring canvas

- 11. Build your topic as illustrated in the following screenshot and save it.
- 12. Test it in the test bot. The reply path will be highlighted in the build area:



Figure 9.28: Test bot

Create as many topics as you need for your bot until it is ready to be added to Microsoft Teams.

Packaging the bot using Power Virtual Agents

The process to get your new bot packaged and installed on Teams is similar to the one we have seen already in the previous section, *Packaging the Bot using QnA Maker*. The main difference is in the steps required to get the bot's ID.

To get the bot's ID to package it into a Microsoft Teams app, do the following:

- 1. In the vertical menu, click on Publish.
- 2. In the **Publish** window, click on the **Publish** button. The publication will take 15 minutes:



Figure 9.29: Publish

3. Scroll down and click on the Go to channels link.



4. Click on Microsoft Teams:

Figure 9.30: Channels

- 5. Click on Add to generate a new App ID.
- 6. Click on **Copy** to copy the app ID to the clipboard:

	hands on	S.Net Power Virtual	Agents HR Bot	A 0	0	1
-		Test bot	×	Microsoft Teams		×
ŵ	Home	Track between topics 🔘) 🖒 Reset 🕴	Set up this channel to let Microsoft Teams users chat with your bot. Learn how to s	et up Micros	oft
(10)	Topics	Charl	D1	leams channel		
B	Entitles	Chat	P.	Note that certain bot content may not appear the same on Microsoft Teams as it v Power Virtual Agents. For details, refer to our article on <u>supported channel conten</u>	ras authored	in
$ \underline{c} $	Analytics			You have consented to your data being shared with Microsoft Teams and to your o outside your organization's compliance and geo boundaries. This includes Govern	lata flowing ment Cloud	
1	Publish			environments. Learn more where your data is located and the Microsoft Privacy St	atement,	
0	Manage	w:		Connection info for Microsoft Teams		
				To allow users to access your bot, create a Microsoft Teams app package using the The App ID will be available after the channel has been added.	App ID belo	w.
				App ID		
				96596a2b-8b78-429e-b63f-e6a179e0214a	Co	ру
0	Hide bot	Type your message		Delete		lose

Figure 9.31: App ID

7. Follow the steps described in the *Packaging the bot created using QnA Maker* section (steps 1 to 7 and steps 19 to 22) to get the bot installed on Microsoft Teams.

Once packaged and installed, you will be able to interact with your virtual agent, as illustrated in the following screenshot:

	Microsoft Teams		Search or type a com	hand	HANDS ON SharePoint 🔎 🦛
, Activity	HR Bot Chat Ab	out			
Chat	_	<:>>	R Bot 3:38 PM I 🌒 appy to know you are planning to go on vacation.		
Teams			re you a senior or junior developer?		
:: Calendar			Junior Senior		
Calls					3:38 PM
files					Junior
		<~>>	R Bot 338 PM bu have 20 days of paid vacations		
			d that answer your question?		
			Yes No		
					3:38 PM Yes
		~ <u>`</u>	Reot 3:38 PM reat! Please rate your experience from 1 (worst) to 5 (best).		
(?) Help					
			rpe your questions here		

Figure 9.32: Power Virtual Agents bot running on Microsoft Teams

With Power Virtual Agents, you will be able to create complex scenarios for your bot without writing code. The graphical user interface allows you to easily see how things are working and how you can improve the replies of the bot.

Now that our bot is created and packaged, we are now ready to use it.

Using the bot on Microsoft Teams

Now that you have the bot installed on your tenant, you need to know how other members of the organization can interact with it.

Let's now see how to use the bot as a personal app:

1. You will need to click on ... to expand the More apps section and get access to it:



Figure 9.33: Installed bot on Microsoft Teams

Once you open the bot, you will be able to ask it private questions in a 1:1 chat without even mentioning the bot. Just type your question and wait for it to reply.

As you can see in the following screenshot, we have enabled the **Chit-chat** option so the bot is able to reply to questions other than the ones that were uploaded from the spreadsheet. This will make the user more comfortable when interacting with the bot:

₽	HR Bot	Chat	About			
					7:24 PM Hi, can you hear me?	
			≪≽	hrhandsontek-bot 7.24 PM Yup, I'm here.		
					7:24 PM How are you?	
			≪≽	hrhandsontek-bot 7:24 PM Awesome! Thanks for asking.		
				725 PM Tell me more about the referral prog	ram we have in place	ø
			<∾}	rhandsontek-bot 7:25 PM ou can earn up to \$1000USD for each referral. More information is available at https://handsontek.net/referral		
				Type your questions here		
				Α₂ ⊙ @ ₽ № ♀ ▶ ₩ Ο …	۵	

Figure 9.34: Bot interaction

The bot can also be used in the context of chats in channels and group chats. To use it, all you need to do is to mention it. Mentions on Microsoft Teams start with the @ sign followed by the name of the bot or the person.

In the following screenshot, you can see the bot being mentioned in a channel. The use of the bot in a channel allows you to keep a conversation about the same topic in one thread, as also illustrated in the screenshot:



Figure 9.35: Bot mention
Summary

In this chapter, you have learned how to build your own bot with artificial intelligence and without writing a single line of code. You have also learned how to package the bot into a Microsoft Teams app, how to make it available in the tenant, and about the ways you can use it to interact with bots.

The last chapter of this book is for users that have an administrator role in their organization. It will cover Microsoft Teams PowerShell and will explain how you can automate tasks such as team creation in your organization using scripts.

10 Microsoft Teams PowerShell – a Tool for Automation

In this chapter, we will cover the PowerShell modules available to manage Microsoft Teams. This is the most advanced chapter of the book and will teach you how you can optimize administrative tasks while managing Teams.

The PowerShell modules can be very handy and save you a lot of time while managing teams, channels, users' apps, or even policies. In this chapter, you will cover the following topics:

- What is PowerShell and how can you use it?
- Installing Microsoft Teams PowerShell
- What are the available cmdlets in the Microsoft Teams module?
- Installing the Skype for Business PowerShell module
- What are the available cmdlets in the Skype for Business module?
- Learning how to use PowerShell from examples

What is PowerShell and how can you use it?

PowerShell is a command-line shell that gives you access to a framework to automate and configure processes on Windows.

First released in 2006, it is mainly used on Windows due to the technical architecture that was used in the earlier versions of PowerShell. It recently became available for other platforms, such as Linux and macOS, but most of the modules available do not support these operating systems.

Instructions on PowerShell are done through the use of cmdlets, where each cmdlet is responsible for the execution of a specific operation. Cmdlets can be combined into PowerShell scripts to automate scenarios, as we will see in this chapter.

A PowerShell script works like a programming language and you can create variables, conditions, or loops depending on the scenarios you want to automate. Scripts have the ps1 file extension and can be written with any text editor.

Note

This chapter assumes that the reader has a basic knowledge of development concepts and command line usage. If you are not familiar with programming concepts, you will find a nice book that explain all the basic concepts here : https://www.packtpub.com/application-development/introduction-programming

How to use PowerShell

In Microsoft Windows, if you open the start menu and type PowerShell, you will see that the system has multiple applications to work with PowerShell installed by default, as illustrated in the following diagram:

All Apps Documents Email Web	Mo	re▼ & …		
Best match				
Windows PowerShell		\geq		
Apps		Windows PowerShell		
Windows PowerShell ISE	>	Арр		
Windows PowerShell (x86)	>			
Windows PowerShell ISE (x86)	>	C Open		
Developer PowerShell for VS 2019	>	Run as Administrator		
Settings		Run ISE as Administrator		
H PowerShell Developer Settings	>	Windows PowerShell ISE		
Allow local PowerShell scripts to run without signing	>	$\overline{\mathbf{v}}$		
 Replace Command Prompt with Windows PowerShell in the Win + X 	>			
Search the web				
PowerShell - See web results	>			

Figure 10.1: Opening PowerShell

Windows PowerShell is the console that allows you to execute single cmdlets, and the **Windows PowerShell ISE** is the editor that allows you to write automation scripts and test them.

To execute a PowerShell cmdlet, open the **Windows PowerShell** command line and type an instruction. Here's an example:

Get-Host | Select-Object Version

The following screenshot demonstrates how the instruction is run:



Figure 10.2: Executing PowerShell cmdlets

The execution of this cmdlet will print in the console the current version of PowerShell that is running on the operating system.

To build a script that executes several cmdlets, open the **Windows PowerShell ISE** and type your commands. Note that you can combine them with programming logic to format the outputs. The following script gets the version of PowerShell, and the version of Windows, and writes both on the screen:



Figure 10.3: Windows PowerShell ISE

While writing your script, you can use the editor to test it. If you click on the play button, this will execute the code and will give you the result or the execution error in the console.

To execute a script that you have built and saved previously, you must open the Windows PowerShell command line. Once open, you need to navigate to the folder where the script is located and execute it using the following syntax:

```
./scriptName.ps1
```

The following screenshot displays the script execution and the results printed in the console:



Figure 10.4: Script execution

In summary, we can say that PowerShell is a tool that allows the automation of repetitive tasks and has support for pretty much everything Microsoft-related. Now that you have been introduced to PowerShell, it's time to install the Microsoft Teams module.

Installing Microsoft Teams PowerShell

The PowerShell module for Microsoft Teams is not installed by default on Windows, so it needs to be added to the operating system.

Most of the official modules available can be found in the PowerShell gallery, a site where you can find a description for the module, installation instructions, and also the change log of each version. The PowerShell gallery is available at https://www.powershellgallery.com/.

To get the Microsoft Teams module installed in your system, perform the following steps:

1. On your computer, open the PowerShell command line with administrator permissions. To do so, search for Windows PowerShell on Windows and then select the option to **Run as Administrator**, as highlighted in the following screenshot:

All Apps Documents Email Web	o Mo	re ▼
Best match		
Windows PowerShell		\geq
Apps		Windows PowerShell
Windows PowerShell ISE	>	Арр
Vindows PowerShell (x86)	>	
Windows PowerShell ISE (x86)	>	C Open
Settings		🗵 Run as Administrator
Replace Command Prompt with	>	Run ISE as Administrator
Windows PowerShell in the Win + X		Windows PowerShell ISE
Search the web		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Windows PowerShell - See web results	>	
℅ Windows PowerShell		



2. On the command line, execute the following command:

Install-Module -Name MicrosoftTeams

3. Type Y followed by *Enter* to trust and enter the repository:



Figure 10.6: Installing the Microsoft Teams PowerShell module

4. Keep the console open while the download and installation are in progress.

Now that you have the Microsoft Teams module installed in your system, you are ready to start using it, but before doing so, you must know what cmdlets are available.

What are the available cmdlets in the Microsoft Teams module?

The cmdlets explained in this section are based on Microsoft Teams module 1.0.3 and they are divided into six different groups:

- Connection cmdlets
- Get cmdlets
- Set cmdlets
- New cmdlets
- Add cmdlets
- Remove cmdlets

In the following sections, you will find the name of the cmdlet, a description of it, and all the parameters you can use. The parameters are not explained in detail as the name is selfexplanatory. Each parameter is followed by the data type it receives.

Data types

Show-Command -name "Get-Team"

To better understand the cmdlets described in this section, check the data types used by PowerShell:

String: A string is used to represent text. In PowerShell, a string can be represented in the following format: This is a string.

Boolean: A Boolean is used to represent true or false. In PowerShell, Boolean values are represented in the following format: \$true or \$false.

While working with PowerShell, you can use the cmdlet Show-Command that will allow you to introduce the parameters through a graphical user interface. Show-Command is a very handy tool when you are still learning a PowerShell module, or you simply don't know what parameters a cmdlet receives. Show-Command is used in the following format:

windows Powersnei	
S C:\Users\JOFR> Show-command -name "Get-Team"	🔉 Get-Team — 🗆 🗙
	Parameters for "Get-Team":
	Filters Identity
	Archived:
	DisplayName: Project X
	MailNickName:
	User:
	Visibility:
	Common Parameters

Figure 10.7: Show-command cmdlet

Connection cmdlets

The descriptions and parameters of the connection cmdlets are as follows:

- **Connect-MicrosoftTeams**: This is the first cmdlet you need to execute in order to get access to the Microsoft Teams context of your tenant:
 - (a) -TenantId <String>
 - (b) -AccountId <String>
 - (c) -TeamsEnvironmentName <String>
- **Disconnect-MicrosoftTeams**: After executing your cmdlets, you can close the connection to your tenant using this cmdlet.

To know the ID of your tenant, you can use the Connect cmdlet without passing any parameter. On the login popup, provide your organizational credentials and, after a few seconds, you will get the information pertaining to your tenant, as shown in the following screenshot:

Windows PowerShell Windows PowerShell Copyright (C) Microsoft Corporation. All rights reserved. PS C:\Users\Joao> Connect-MicrosoftTeams Account : joao@handsonsp.onmicrosoft.com Environment : AzureCloud Tenant : d1c035a6-1dcf-457d-97e3-41V411V4WWW4 TenantId : d1c035a6-1dcf-457d-97e3-41V411V4WWW4 TenantId : handsonsp.onmicrosoft.com PS C:\Users\Joao>

Figure 10.8: Tenant ID

Get cmdlets

The descriptions and parameters of the get cmdlets are as follows:

- **Get-Team:** This is used to get information about teams. It can get all the teams, archived teams, or even all the teams to which a user belongs:
 - (a) -GroupId <String>
 - (b) -User <String>
 - (c) -Archived <Boolean>
 - (d) -Visibility <String>
 - (e) -DisplayName <String>
 - (f) -MailNickName <String>
- Get-TeamChannel: This retrieves all the channels in the team:
 - (a) -GroupId <String>
- **Get-TeamChannelUser**: This retrieves all the users of a channel, and it allows you to pre-filter users by role, that is, either **Owner** or **Member**:
 - (a) -GroupId <String>
 - (b) -DisplayName <String>
 - (c) -Role <String>
- **Get-TeamsApp**: This returns the information pertaining to the apps installed in your tenant. The distribution method accepts as a parameter **Global** (apps from the store) or **Organization** (custom apps):
 - (a) -Id <String>
 - (b) -ExternalId <String>
 - (c) -DisplayName <String>
 - (d) -DistributionMethod <String>
- **Get-TeamUser:** This retrieves the user information from a team. It allows you to pre-filter users by role, that is, either **Owner** or **Member**:
 - (a) -GroupId <String>
 - (b) -Role <String>

Most of the Microsoft Teams cmdlets need to get the group ID as a parameter. This is the unique identifier from the Office group associated with the team. If you need to get the group ID of your team, execute the following cmdlet using the team name:

```
Get-Team -DisplayName "Project X"
```

From the result data, you will get the group ID as shown in the following screenshot:





Set cmdlets

The descriptions and parameters of the set cmdlets are as follows:

- Set-Team: This allows you to modify the settings of an existing team:
 - (a) -GroupId <String>
 - (b) -DisplayName <String>
 - (c) -Description <String>
 - (d) -MailNickName <String>
 - (e) -Classification <String>
 - (f) -Visibility <String>
 - (g) -AllowGiphy <Boolean>
 - (h) -GiphyContentRating <String>
 - (i) -AllowStickersAndMemes <Boolean>
 - (j) -AllowCustomMemes <Boolean>
 - (k) -AllowGuestCreateUpdateChannels <Boolean>
 - (l) -AllowGuestDeleteChannels <Boolean>
 - (m) -AllowCreateUpdateChannels <Boolean>
 - (n) -AllowDeleteChannels <Boolean>

- (o) -AllowAddRemoveApps <Boolean>
- (p) -AllowCreateUpdateRemoveTabs <Boolean>
- (q) -AllowCreateUpdateRemoveConnectors <Boolean>
- (r) -AllowUserEditMessages <Boolean>
- (s) -AllowUserDeleteMessages <Boolean>
- (t) -AllowOwnerDeleteMessages <Boolean>
- (u) -AllowTeamMentions <Boolean>
- (v) -AllowChannelMentions <Boolean>
- (w) -ShowInTeamsSearchAndSuggestions <Boolean>
- **Set-TeamArchivedState**: This archives or unarchives a team. It can also make the SharePoint site read-only for members:
 - (a) -GroupId <False>
 - (b) -Archived <Boolean>
 - (c) -SetSpoSiteReadOnlyForMembers <Boolean>
- Set-TeamChannel: This allows you to modify the settings of an existing channel:
 - (a) -GroupId <String>
 - (b) -CurrentDisplayName <String>
 - (c) -NewDisplayName <String>
 - (d) -Description <String>
- **Set-TeamPicture**: This allows you to define the team picture for a team. The image path is the physical location of the image on your computer:
 - (a) -GroupId <String>
 - (b) -CurrentDisplayName <String>
 - (c) -NewDisplayName <String>
 - (d) -Description <String>
- **Set-TeamsApp**: This allows you to update a custom app already installed in your tenant. The path is the physical location of the app package on your computer, and the ID is the unique identifier of your app:
 - (a) -Id <String>
 - (b) -Path <String>

New cmdlets

The descriptions and parameters of the new cmdlets are as follows:

- **New-Team**: This allows you to create a new team and fill all the settings to apply by default with a single instruction:
 - (a) -DisplayName <String>
 - (b) -Description <String>
 - (c) -MailNickName <String>
 - (d) -Classification <String>
 - (e) -Visibility <String>
 - (f) -Template <String>
 - (g) -Owner <String>
 - (h) -AllowGiphy <Boolean>
 - (i) -GiphyContentRating <Boolean>
 - (j) -AllowStickersAndMemes <Boolean>
 - (k) -AllowCustomMemes <Boolean>
 - (l) -AllowGuestCreateUpdateChannels <Boolean>
 - (m) -AllowGuestDeleteChannels <Boolean>
 - (n) -AllowCreateUpdateChannels <Boolean>
 - (o) -AllowDeleteChannels <Boolean>
 - (p) -AllowAddRemoveApps <Boolean>
 - (q) -AllowCreateUpdateRemoveTabs <Boolean>
 - (r) -AllowCreateUpdateRemoveConnectors <Boolean>
 - (s) -AllowUserEditMessages <Boolean>
 - (t) -AllowUserDeleteMessages <Boolean>
 - (u) -AllowOwnerDeleteMessages <Boolean>
 - (v) -AllowTeamMentions <Boolean>
 - (w) -AllowChannelMentions <Boolean>
 - (x) -ShowInTeamsSearchAndSuggestions <Boolean>

- **New-TeamChannel**: This allows you to create a new channel and fill the default settings. The membership type is the parameter where you define whether the channel is **Public** or **Private**:
 - (a) -GroupId <String>
 - (b) -DisplayName <String>
 - (c) -Description <String>
 - (d) -MembershipType <String>
 - (e) -Owner <String>
- **New-TeamsApp**: This allows you to install a custom app. The path is the physical location of the app package on your computer:
 - (a) -DistributionMethod <String>
 - (b) -Path <String>

Add cmdlets

The descriptions and parameters of the add cmdlets are as follows:

- Add-TeamUser: This adds a user to a team as a Member or Owner:
 - (a) -GroupId<String>
 - (b) -User <String>
 - (c) -Role <String>
- Add-TeamChannelUser: This adds a user to a private channel as a Member or Owner:
 - (a) -GroupId <String>
 - (b) -DisplayName <String>
 - (c) -User <String>
 - (d) -Role <String>

Remove cmdlets

The descriptions and parameters of the remove cmdlets are as follows:

• **Remove-Team**: This removes a team and all its associated assets, including the SharePoint site collection and the Office group:

(a)-GroupId <String>

• **Remove-TeamChannel**: This removes a channel from a team. The use of this cmdlet will not delete any of the documents relating to the channel. They will continue to exist in the team SharePoint site collection:

```
(a)-GroupId <String>
```

```
(b) -DisplayName <String>
```

• Remove-TeamChannelUser: This removes a user from a private channel:

```
(a) -GroupId <String>
```

- (b) -DisplayName <String>
- (c) -User <String>
- Remove-TeamsApp: This removes an app from a team:
 - (a)-Id <String>
- Remove-TeamUser: This removes a user from a team:
 - (a) -GroupId <String>
 - (b) -User <String>

(c)-Role <String>

Even though Microsoft Teams provides its own PowerShell module, due to the legacy of the platform, there are things such as policies that are available through the use of the Skype for Business module, as we will see in the following section.

Installing the Skype for Business PowerShell Module

As mentioned several times during the book, operations related to policies need to be performed in batches of 20 users or through the use of PowerShell. The cmdlets included in the Microsoft Teams module do not support tasks related to policies. Those operations, however, can be executed using the Skype for Business PowerShell module. The Skype for Business module is not available in the PowerShell gallery, which means it needs to be downloaded and installed manually. To do this, perform the following steps:

- Open the Skype for Business download page: https://www.microsoft.com/ en-us/download/details.aspx?id=39366.
- 2. Click on the Download button and select the location to save it on your computer.
- 3. Open the .exe file, agree with the terms and conditions, and then click on Install:

Skype fo	r Business Online, Windows PowerShell Module S — 🗌	×			
-	Skype for Business Online, Windo PowerShell Module	WS			
MICROSO	OFT SOFTWARE LICENSE TERMS	^			
SKYPE FOR BUSINESS ONLINE WINDOWS POWERSHELL MODULE					
These license terms are an agreement between Microsoft Corporation (or based on where you live, one of its affiliates) and you. Please read them. They apply to the software named above, which includes the media on which you received it, if any. The terms also apply to any Microsoft					
		~			
	✓ I agree to the license terms and condition	s			
	Sector Close	E .			

Figure 10.10: Installing the Skype for Business module

4. If you have a PowerShell session already opened, you need to close and restart it before using the module

What are the available cmdlets in the Skype for Business module?

The cmdlets included in the Skype for Business module have a different syntax to the ones included in the Microsoft Teams module. You can easily identify a Skype cmdlet by the *Cs* prefix in the name.

This module was not built specifically for Microsoft Teams, which means that most of the cmdlets are not supported by the application. In the following sections, you can find all the related cmdlets that allow you to work with Microsoft Teams policies.

Note: List of cmdlets

The Skype for Business PowerShell module includes more cmdlets than the ones described in this section. You can take a closer look at the entire list of cmdlets at the following address: https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/powershell/module/skype/?view=skype-ps.

Get cmdlets

A description of each of the get cmdlets is as follows:

- **Get-CsTeamsAppSetupPolicy**: This gets all the app setup policies in the tenant with the IDs of the pinned apps.
- **Get-CsTeamsCallingPolicy**: This gets all the calling policies in the tenant with all the associated settings.
- Get-CsTeamsChannelsPolicy: This gets all the policies defined for the channels.
- Get-CsTeamsMeetingPolicy: This gets all the meeting policies and their settings.
- Get-CsTeamsMessagingPolicy: This gets all the messaging policies and their settings.

Grant cmdlets

A description of each of the grant cmdlets is as follows:

- Grant-CsTeamsAppPermissionPolicy: This applies an app permission policy to a single user:
 - (a) -Identity <String>
 - (b) PolicyName < String>
 - (c) PassThru < SwitchParameter>
 - (d) -WhatIf <SwitchParameter>

- Grant-CsTeamsAppSetupPolicy: This applies an app setup policy to a single user:
 - (a) -Identity <String>
 - (b) -PolicyName <String>
 - (c) -PassThru <SwitchParameter>
 - (d) -WhatIf <SwitchParameter>
- Grant-CsTeamsCallingPolicy: This applies a calling permission policy to a single user:
 - (a) -Identity <String>
 - (b) -PolicyName <String>
 - (c) -PassThru <SwitchParameter>
 - (d) -WhatIf <SwitchParameter>
- Grant-CsTeamsChannelsPolicy: This applies a channel policy to a single user:
 - (a) -Identity <String>
 - (b) -PolicyName <String>
 - (c) -PassThru <SwitchParameter>
 - (d) -WhatIf <SwitchParameter>
- Grant-CsTeamsMeetingPolicy: This applies a meeting policy to a single user:
 - (a) -Identity <String>
 - (b) -PolicyName <String>
 - (c) -PassThru <SwitchParameter>
 - (d) -WhatIf <SwitchParameter>
- Grant-CsTeamsMessagingPolicy: This applies a messaging policy to a single user:
 - (a) -Identity <String>
 - (b) -PolicyName <String>
 - (c) -PassThru <SwitchParameter>
 - (d) -WhatIf <SwitchParameter>

New cmdlets

A description of each of the new cmdlets is as follows:

- New-CsTeamsChannelsPolicy: This creates a new channel policy:
 - (a) -Identity <String>
 - (b) -AllowOrgWideTeamCreation <Boolean>
 - (c) -AllowPrivateTeamDiscovery <Boolean>
 - (d) -AllowPrivateChannelCreation <Boolean>
- New-CsTeamsMeetingPolicy: This creates a new meeting policy:
 - (a) -Identity <String>
 - (b) -Description <String>
 - (c) -AllowChannelMeetingScheduling <Boolean>
 - (d) -AllowMeetNow <Boolean>
 - (e) -AllowIPVideo <Boolean>
 - (f) -AllowAnonymousUsersToDialOut <Boolean>
 - (g) -AllowAnonymousUsersToStartMeeting <Boolean>
 - (h) -AllowPrivateMeetingScheduling <Boolean>
 - (i) -AutoAdmittedUsers <String>
 - (j) -AllowCloudRecording <Boolean>
 - (k) -AllowOutlookAddIn <Boolean>
 - (l) -AllowPowerPointSharing <Boolean>
 - (m) -AllowParticipantGiveRequestControl <Boolean>
 - (n) -AllowExternalParticipantGiveRequestControl <Boolean>
 - (o) -AllowSharedNotes <Boolean>
 - (p) -AllowWhiteboard <Boolean>
 - (q) -AllowTranscription <Boolean>
 - (r) -MediaBitRateKb <UInt32>
 - (s) -ScreenSharingMode <String>

- New-CsTeamsMessagingPolicy: This creates a new messaging policy:
 - (a) -Identity <String>
 - (b) -AllowOwnerDeleteMessage <Boolean>
 - (c) -Description <String>
 - (d) -AllowUserChat <Boolean>
 - (e) -AllowStickers <Boolean>
 - (f) -AllowUrlPreviews <Boolean>
 - (g) -AllowImmersiveReader <Boolean>
 - (h) -AllowUserTranslation <Boolean>
 - (i) -AllowUserEditMessage <Boolean>
 - (j) -AllowRemoveUser <Boolean>
 - (k) -ReadReceiptsEnabledType <String>
 - (l) -AllowMemes <Boolean>
 - (m) -AllowPriorityMessages <Boolean>
 - (n) -GiphyRatingType <String>
 - (o) -AllowGiphy <Boolean>

Remove cmdlets

A description of each of the remove cmdlets is as follows:

- Remove-CsTeamsAppPermissionPolicy: This removes an app permission policy:
 - (a) -Tenant <String>
 - (b) -Identity <String>
- Remove-CsTeamsAppSetupPolicy: This removes an app setup policy:
 - (a) -Tenant <String>
 - (b) -Identity <String>
- Remove-CsTeamsChannelsPolicy: This removes a channel permission policy:
 - (a) -Tenant <String>
 - (b) -Identity <String>

- Remove-CsTeamsMeetingPolicy: This removes a meeting policy:
 - (a) -Tenant <String>
 - (b) -Identity <String>
- Remove-CsTeamsMessagingPolicy: This removes a messaging policy:
 - (a) -Tenant <String>
 - (b) -Identity <String>

Combining Microsoft Teams and Skype for Business PowerShell modules allows you to automate pretty much all the administrative tasks you will have to implement with Microsoft Teams. In the following section, you will learn from examples how to build your own scripts.

Learning how to use PowerShell from examples

In this section of the book, you will find four examples of how PowerShell can be used to automate tasks within Microsoft Teams and the script used to solve each of the scenarios.

The code includes comments so that you can follow along with what is happening. Comments are identified by a hashtag (#). For better readability of the code, the comments only include a number, while the comment description is provided after the code section.

Example 1: Victor

Victor is the IT guy in his company and oftentimes, his colleagues ask him to create teams according to internal policies and conventions. To avoid doing this task manually over and over again, Victor has created a PowerShell script. This includes the following:

- 1. Team settings.
- 2. Team default channels.
- 3. Team default members.
- 4. Establishing a connection to Microsoft Teams: Using this cmdlet without parameters will open a login popup and will authenticate you in your organization tenant.
- 5. Team creation: The result is saved to a variable to use the group ID in the following instructions.

- 6. Channel creation: This loops through the channel list to create the channel. The group ID was saved in the New-Team instruction.
- 7. Adding default members to the team: This loops through the array of users and adds them to the team as members.

The following script and corresponding numbers show how Victor would do this:

```
#1
$teamName= "Project Y"
```

\$teamDescription= "The new generation of electric skateboards"

\$teamOwner= "joao@funskating.com"

\$teamVisibility= "Private"

\$teamEditMessagesPolicy= \$false

\$teamDeliteMessagesPolicy= \$false

#2

```
$teamChannels= @("Procedures", "Legal")
```

#3

```
$teamMembers= @("josh@funskating.com", "adele@funskating.com")
```

#4

Connect-MicrosoftTeams

#5

```
$teamDetails=New-Team -DisplayName $teamName -Description
$teamDescription -Owner $teamOwner -Visibility $teamVisibility
-AllowUserEditMessages $teamEditMessagesPolicy
-AllowOwnerDeleteMessages $teamDeliteMessagesPolicy
```

#6

```
for ($i=0; $i-lt$teamChannels.length; $i++) {
```

New-TeamChannel -GroupId \$teamDetails.GroupId -DisplayName \$teamChannels[\$i]

}

#7

for (\$i=0; \$i-lt\$teamMembers.length; \$i++) {
 Add-TeamUser -GroupId\$teamDetails.GroupId
-User\$teamMembers[\$i] -role"Member"
}

```
Disconnect-MicrosoftTeams
```

Example 2: John

John is heading up several projects in his company that are spread across the globe. Each project is assigned to a country and has its own team on Microsoft Teams. John wants to create a channel in each one of his teams where he can communicate the procedures for each country and where people can communicate about this topic. The script includes the following:

- 1. Establishing a team owner and a new channel name definition.
- 2. Connecting to Microsoft Teams and getting all the teams to which the user belongs. This will include those teams where the user is an owner and member.
- 3. Looping through all the teams
- 4. Getting the current team group ID and the list of owners.
- 5. Looping through the owners of the team.
- 6. Comparing the current owner of the team with the email defined at the top of the script. If the condition is true, this means that the current team is owned by John and a new channel is then created on it.

The following script and corresponding numbers show how John would do this:

```
#1
$teamOwnerEmail= "john@funskating.com"
$channelName= "Projects"
```

#2

Connect-MicrosoftTeams

\$teamsWhereIam = Get-Team -User \$teamOwner

#3

for (\$i=0; \$i-lt \$teamsWhereIam.length; \$i++) {

#4

```
$groupId= $teamsWhereIam[$i].GroupId
$teamOwners=Get-TeamUser -GroupId $groupId -Role Owner
#5
for ($j=0; $j-lt$teamOwners.length; $j++) {
    #6
    if($teamOwners[$j].User -eq $teamOwnerEmail){
        New-TeamChannel -GroupId $groupId -DisplayName
$channelName
    }
}
Disconnect-MicrosoftTeams
```

Example 3: The Funny Company

The Funny Company has a very informal culture and wants to make sure that this is reflected on Microsoft Teams. From now on, all teams should have all the fun settings on. The script will do the following:

- 1. Connect to Microsoft Teams.
- 2. Get all teams.
- 3. Loop through all teams.
- 4. Get each team group ID and define the fun settings.

The following script and corresponding numbers show how the Funny Company would do this:

```
#1
Connect-MicrosoftTeams
#2
$allTeams= Get-Team
#3
for ($i=0; $i-lt$allTeams.length; $i++) {
    #4
    $groupId=$allTeams[$i].GroupId
```

```
Set-Team -GroupId $groupId -AllowGiphy $true -
GiphyContentRating moderate -AllowStickersAndMemes $true -
AllowCustomMemes $true
}
```

```
Disconnect-MicrosoftTeams
```

Example 4: Hugh

Hugh is the Microsoft Teams administrator at his company and is responsible for managing all policies. Recently, he has installed a global app where all the company news and announcements are published. Even though the adoption of Microsoft Teams is great, users are not using the new app, mainly because it is hidden in the More apps menu. To increase adoption of the app, Hugh wants to apply a new policy to all users where the company app is the first one listed in the app bar. The script will include the following:

1. Authentication using the Skype for Business PowerShell module. This process will open a windows authentication popup where you must insert your credentials:

Windows PowerSł	nell credential request	?	×
		4	
Enter your credent	als.		
<u>U</u> ser name:	<u>£</u>	2	× 1
Password:			
	ОК	Can	cel

Figure 10.11: Authentication window

- 2. User definitions: This is the list of users to whom the new app setup policy will be applied.
- 3. Looping thorough the list of users and applying the company app policy.

The following script and corresponding numbers show how Hugh would do this:

```
#1
Import-ModuleSkypeOnlineConnector
$credentials= Get-Credential
$sfbSession= New-CsOnlineSession -Credential $credentials
Import-PSSession $sfbSession
#2
$usersEmails= @("peter@funskating.com","maria@funskating.com")
#3
for ($i=0; $i-lt$usersEmails.length; $i++) {
    Grant-CsTeamsAppSetupPolicy -identity $usersEmails[$i]
-PolicyName "Company App"
}
```

You can use these simple scenarios as a starting point for automating tasks on Microsoft Teams. This will save you a lot of time while ensuring consistency across all your teams and policies.

Summary

In this chapter, you have learned how you can automate processes on Microsoft Teams using the PowerShell modules. After this chapter, you should be able to build your PowerShell scripts to automate the administrative tasks you need to perform in your organization.

This book gave you a global overview of what Microsoft Teams is by covering all the basic features and concepts.

As you progressed into the book, it became more technical and gave you an overview of how things can be configured as an end user or as an admin. Finally, you learned how to achieve more by extending Teams and automating processes.

Now, you should be the real hero of Microsoft Teams in your organization and you are ready to empower others to achieve more using this awesome platform.

Thank you,

João Ferreira

Other Books You May Enjoy

If you enjoyed this book, you may be interested in these other books by Packt:



Microsoft 365 Certified Fundamentals MS-900 Exam Guide

Aaron Guilmette, Marcos Zanre, and Yura Lee

ISBN: 978-1-83898-217-1

- Gain insights into the exam objectives, test scenarios, and knowledge required before taking the MS-900 exam
- Understand the cloud services and SaaS models available in the Microsoft ecosystem
- Identify Windows deployment considerations using the Admin Center and User Portal experiences
- Implement enterprise mobility, device management, and application management within your organization
- Explore the reporting and analytics capabilities of Microsoft 365
- Discover various features of Azure Active Directory and other Microsoft 365 security tools



Deploying Microsoft 365 Teamwork: Exam MS-300 Guide

Aaron Guilmette

ISBN: 978-1-83898-773-2

- Discover the different Microsoft services and features that make up Office 365
- Configure cloud services for your environment and extend your infrastructure's capabilities
- Understand site architecture, site settings, and hub settings in SharePoint Online
- Explore business connectivity services for view and access options in SharePoint Online
- Configure Yammer to integrate with Office 365 groups, SharePoint, and Teams
- Deploy SharePoint Online, OneDrive for Business, and Microsoft Teams successfully, including bots and connectors

Leave a review - let other readers know what you think

Please share your thoughts on this book with others by leaving a review on the site that you bought it from. If you purchased the book from Amazon, please leave us an honest review on this book's Amazon page. This is vital so that other potential readers can see and use your unbiased opinion to make purchasing decisions, we can understand what our customers think about our products, and our authors can see your feedback on the title that they have worked with Packt to create. It will only take a few minutes of your time, but is valuable to other potential customers, our authors, and Packt. Thank you!

Index

Α

admin live event, managing as 141, 142 meetings, managing as 120-123 announcement creating 78, 79 apps about 176 bots 176, 181-183 connectors 176, 186-188 installing, on Microsoft Teams 177, 178 messaging 176 personal apps 176, 180 tabs 176, 184-186 types 179 uninstalling, from Microsoft Teams 203, 204 archived team restoring 166 attendee 99 Audio Conferencing about 124, 125 configuring 125-127 for administrators 125-128

В

bots about 181-183 creating, with Power Virtual Agents 273-277 creating, with QnA Maker 258-267 packaging, with Power Virtual Agents 277-279 packaging, with QnA Maker 267-272 using, on Microsoft Teams 279-281 branding 94

С

card editor 241 channel about 32 creating 33 creating, considerations 34, 35 deleting 169 limitations 173, 174 organizing 170 pinning 171 removing, from Pinned group 172 chat application Attach option 64, 65

Emojis 66 Format option 63 Giphy 67 Messaging Extensions option 69 Schedule a meeting option 68 Set Delivery options 63, 64 Stickers 68 using 62 chats about 56,76 additional members, adding 60 announcement, creating 78 audience, setting for message replies 80 channel conversation, starting from Outlook 87,88 channel, mentioning 82, 83 colleagues, mentioning 82, 83 components 57 messages, posting in multiple channels 80, 81 posts 76 Reply button, versus typing new message feature 77, 78 tags, using 84-86 team, mentioning 82, 83 thread, muting 81 cmdlets, Microsoft Teams module about 288, 289 add cmdlets 295 connection cmdlets 290 get cmdlets 291 new cmdlets 294, 295 remove cmdlets 296 set cmdlets 292, 293 cmdlets, Skype for Business module get cmdlets 298 grant cmdlets 298, 299 new cmdlets 300, 301

remove cmdlets 301 commands 46, 47 connectors about 186 adding 186-188 modifying 188, 189 contacts context menu options 61 managing 60 custom apps disabling 209, 210 enabling 208, 209 installing 213-215 installing, as administrator 216, 217 uploading 211, 212 working with 208

D

data types, PowerShell Boolean 289 String 289 desktop clients, Microsoft Teams Linux 18 macOS 17 document library 221, 222

F

filters function 45

G

global Microsoft Teams administrator governance, using as 160-162 governance using, as team owner 163, 164 guest users on Microsoft Teams 146-148

Η

hidden team adding, to Hidden Teams group 173

L

Linux Microsoft Teams, installing on 18 live event attendee 137 creating 129-132 limitations 143 managing, as admin 141, 142 on Microsoft Teams 128 options 133 presenter 136, 137 producer 134-136 recording 138, 139 reports, obtaining 138-140 transcripts 140 live event profiles attendee 129 organizer 129 presenter 129 producer 129

Μ

macOS Microsoft Teams, installing on 17 meeting notes managing 116 taking 115 meeting recordings managing 110-114 meetings about 90

content, sharing 105-109 limitations 143 managing, as admin 120-123 on mobile app 117-120 options 99-101 personal meeting controls 102-105 scheduling, directly 92, 93 scheduling, from Microsoft Outlook 93 setup options 96-99 transferring, between devices 120 message options accessing 72 Delete option 74 Edit option 73 Immersive Reader option 74, 75 Mark as unread option 74 Save this message option 73 Translate option 74 message replies audience, setting 80 messages deleting 74 editing 73 marking, as unread 74 posting, in multiple channels 80, 81 reacting to 75, 76 translating 74 messaging extensions using 189, 190 Messaging Extensions option More apps option 71 Praise app 70 Stream app 70 Weather app 72 Microsoft Exchange 53 Microsoft Stream 53 Microsoft Teams accessing 14

apps, installing on 177, 178 apps, uninstalling from 203, 204 bot, using on 279-281 calls 52 chat feature 56 clients 15 customizing 48-53 data storage 53 desktop clients 16, 17 devices 51 extending, with PowerApps 231-234 extending, with Power Automate 226-231 extending, with SharePoint 219 General tab 48 guest access checklist 148 guest users 146-148 installing, on Linux 18 installing, on macOS 17 layout 21, 22 main window 21, 22 mobile client 18 mobile layout 23 notifications 50 permissions 52 plans 14, 15 Privacy tab 49 reference link 15 signing in 19, 20 web app, reference link 15 web clients 15, 16 Microsoft Teams apps blocking 217-219 Microsoft Teams App Studio about 238, 239 app, building 242-250 app details form 243, 244 card editor 241

chat tab 240 Control library tab 242 Manifest editor 240 used, for integrating SharePoint and Microsoft Teams 251-255 Microsoft Teams education tenants reference link 150 Microsoft Teams, for mobile devices components 23 Microsoft Teams meeting scheduling 90-92 Microsoft Teams meeting requests customizing 94-96 Microsoft Teams module cmdlets 288, 289 Microsoft Teams PowerShell installing 287, 288 mobile clients, Microsoft Teams Android 18 iOS 19

0

OneDrive for Business 54 one-to-one private conversation starting 57 out-of-the-box apps document library 221, 222 SharePoint 224, 225 SharePoint News 222-224 out-of-the-box integrations using 220

Ρ

personal apps about 180 app bar, personalizing as administrator 195-197

app bar, personalizing as end user 193, 194 app installation, managing as administrator 197-199 managing 192, 193 managing, as administrator 199-203 uninstalling 204, 205 personal contacts list, creating 60 personal meeting controls 102-105 PowerApps used, for extending Microsoft Teams 231-234 Power Automate used, for extending Microsoft Teams 226-231 PowerShell about 284 usage examples 302-307 using 284, 285 PowerShell cmdlets executing 286 PowerShell gallery URL 287 PowerShell script about 284 executing 286 Power Virtual Agents used, for creating bot 273-277 used, for packaging bot 277-279 presenter 99 private channels about 150 creating 151, 152 features 153-155 scenario 151 security 156-159 structure 153-155

private chats using 57-59 private group chats creating 58 private teams scenario 146 public teams scenario 146 versus private teams 146

Q

QnA Maker used, for creating bot 258-267 used, for packaging bot 267-272

R

reply button versus typing new message feature 77, 78

S

saved messages accessing 73 SharePoint about 53, 224, 225 used, for extending Microsoft Teams 219 SharePoint News 222-224 site collection 151 Skype for Business download page reference link 297 Skype for Business PowerShell Module cmdlets 297 installing 296, 297 standard channels about 149 scenario 149, 150
Т

tab about 35, 36, 184, 185 creating 36, 37 modifying 185, 186 tags using 84-86 team about 23 creating 24-29 creating, considerations 30 members, adding 31, 32 team creation governance 159 team owner governance, using as 163, 164 teams archiving 164, 166 deleted team, restoring 168, 169 deleting 167, 168 limitations 173, 174 organizing 170 thread muting 81

W

whiteboards 116 Windows PowerShell ISE 286